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2015, AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, CIRCULAR DATED 28 SEPTEMBER, 2011 ISSUED BY SEBI ON GUIDELINES FOR ISSUE AND
LISTING OF STRUCTURED PRODUCTS/ MARKET LINKED DEBENTURES, SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE
COMPANIES (PROSPECTUS AND ALLOTMENT OF SECURITIES) RULES, 2014)
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Registered and Corporate Office: New No. 27, Old No. 4, Taylor's Road, Kilpauk, Chennai - 600 010
Contact Person: Mr. G. Srikanth, Chief Financial Officer; E-mail: srikanth@fivestargroup.in
Telephone No.: 044-4610 6200 Website: www.fivestargroup.in

Disclosure document (“Disclosure Document” / “Information Memorandum”) for issue up to 1,250 (One
Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty) Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Principal Protected
Market-Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs
only) each, aggregating up to Rs. 125,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Twenty Five Crores only)
with a green shoe option of up to 250 (Two Hundred and Fifty) Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured,
Redeemable, Principal Protected Market-Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures having a face value of Rs.
10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) each, aggregating up to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five
Crores only), in a single series (“Debentures”/ “NCDs”) on a private placement basis (the “Issue”).

BACKGROUND

This Disclosure Document is related to the Debentures to be issued by Five-Star Business Finance Limited (the
“Issuer” or “Company”) on a private placement basis and contains relevant information and disclosures required
for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the Debentures described under this Disclosure
Document has been authorised by the Issuer through a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Issuer on
August 31, 2020 and board of directors of the Issuer on June 10, 2020 read with the resolution passed by Business
and Resource Committee of the Board of Directors on January 25, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The present issue of
the Debentures in terms of this Disclosure Document is within the overall powers of the Board as per the above
shareholders’ resolution(s).

CREDIT RATING

The Debentures proposed to be issued by the Issuer have been rated by ICRA Limited (“Rating Agency”). The
Rating Agency has vide its letter dated January 25 2021 assigned a rating of ‘Provisional PP-MLD
[ICRAJAAA(CE)’ in respect of the Debentures. Please refer to Annexure 111 of this Disclosure Document for
the letter dated January 25 2021 from the Rating Agency assigning the credit rating abovementioned. The letter
disclosing the rating rationale adopted for the aforesaid rating will be obtained from the Rating Agency prior to
the Deemed Date of Allotment.
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LISTING
The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market segment of BSE Limited (“BSE”).
ISSUER’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

The Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that the information
contained in this Disclosure Document is true and fair in all material respects and is not misleading in any
material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other
facts, the omission of which makes this Disclosure Document as a whole or any of such information or the
expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect. The audited financial
information of the Issuer (including details of related party transactions) as disclosed in this Disclosure Document
has been updated as of September 30, 2020.

DISCLOSURE Each potential investor contemplating the purchase of any NCDs should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Company and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness of the Company as well as the structure of the Issue. Potential investors should consult their
own financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising
from an investment in the NCDs and acknowledge that the Debenture Trustee does not have the obligations of a
borrower or principal debtor or guarantor as to the monies paid by the investor for the Debentures.

ISSUE SCHEDULE
Issue Opening Date January 29, 2021
Issue Closing Date January 29, 2021

Deemed Date of
Allotment

January 29, 2021

The Company reserves the right to change the Issue Schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole
discretion, without giving any reasons or prior notice. The Issue shall be open for subscription during the banking
hours on each day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

ISSUER DEBENTURE TRUSTEE REGISTRAR TO THE

ISSUE
FIVE STAR N €3 NSDL
Business Finance Limi{ed

Technology, Trust & Reach

Catalyst Trusteeship NSDL Database Management

Five-Star Business Finance Limited Limited _
Limited Office No. 604, 6% floor, 4th Floor, Trade World, A Wing
New No. 27, Old No. 4, Taylor's Windsor, C.S.T. Road, Kamala Mills Compound Lower
Road, Kilpauk, Chennai - 600 010 Kalina, Santacruz (East), Parel, Mumbai - 400 013
Tel: 044-4610 6200 Mumbai — 400 098 Contact person: Mr. Nilesh
Website: www.fivestargroup.in Tel: +91 22 4922 0555 Bhandare, Manager

Tel: 9833515383(M)
Tel: +91 22 2499 4200
Email: info_ndml@nsdl.co.in

Website: catalysttrustee.com
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SECTION 1: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS

This Disclosure Document (the “Disclosure Document™) is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu
of prospectus under the Act. This Disclosure Document has not been submitted to or approved by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and has been prepared by the Company in conformity with
the extant Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
dated June 06, 2008, as amended from time to time, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dated September 02, 2015, as amended from
time to time, Circular dated September 28, 2011 issued by SEBI on Guidelines for Issue and Listing of
Structured Products/ Market Linked Debentures, Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated
September 01, 2016, as amended from time to time. This Issue of NCDs which is to be listed on the WDM
segment of the BSE is being made strictly on a private placement basis. This Disclosure Document does not
constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or an invitation to the public to subscribe to the
NCDs. Neither this Disclosure Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the NCDs
is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and a recipient of this Disclosure Document
should not consider such receipt a recommendation to purchase any NCDs. Each potential investor
contemplating the purchase of any NCDs should make its own independent investigation of the financial
condition and affairs of the Company and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Company as well
as the structure of the Issue. Potential investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other
professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in the NCDs
and should possess the appropriate resources to analyze such investment and the suitability of an investment
to the investor’s particular circumstances. No person has been authorized to give any information or to make
any representation not contained in or incorporated by reference in this Disclosure Document or in any
material made available by the Company to any potential investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made,
such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Company.

As per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended from time to time and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time and the Master Direction — Non-
Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016, as amended from time to time it is not necessary for a copy of
this Disclosure Document to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI or RBI for its review and / or approval.
Further, since the Issue is being made on a private placement basis, the provision of Section 26 of the
Companies Act, 2013 shall not be applicable and accordingly, a copy of this Disclosure Document has not
been filed with the Registrar of Companies.

This Disclosure Document, the Private Placement Offer Letter and the contents hereof are addressed only to
the intended recipients who have been addressed directly and specifically through a communication by the
Company. All potential investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable
to them for investing in this Issue. The contents of this Disclosure Document and/or the Private
Placement Offer Letter are intended to be used only by those potential investors to whom it is
distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and should not be reproduced by
the recipient or made public or its contents disclosed to a third person. No invitation is being made to
any person other than the investor to whom this Disclosure Document and Private Placement Offer
Letter has been sent. Any application by a person to whom this Disclosure Document and/or the
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Private Placement Offer Letter has not been sent by the Company may be rejected without assigning
any reason.

You shall not and are not authorised to: (1) deliver this Disclosure Document and/or the Private Placement
Offer Letter to any other person; or (2) reproduce this Disclosure Document and/or the Private Placement
Offer Letter, in any manner whatsoever. Any distribution or reproduction or copying of this Disclosure
Document and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter in whole or in part or any public announcement or any
announcement to third parties regarding the contents of this Disclosure Document and/or the Private
Placement Offer Letter is unauthorised. Failure to comply with this instruction may result in a violation of
applicable laws of India and/or other jurisdictions. This Disclosure Document has been prepared by the
Company for providing information in connection with the proposed Issue.

DISCLAIMER OF THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

The Company holds a certificate of registration bearing registration no. B-07.00286 issued by the RBI to
carry on the activities of a NBFC under section 45 1A of the RBI Act, 1934. However, the Debentures have
not been recommended or approved by the RBI nor does RBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this
Disclosure Document. It is to be distinctly understood that this Disclosure Document should not, in any way,
be deemed or construed that the securities have been recommended for investment by the RBI. RBI does not
take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of the Issuer, or the securities being issued by the
Issuer or for the correctness of the statements made or opinions expressed in this Disclosure Document.
Potential investors may make investment decision in the securities offered in terms of this Disclosure
Document solely on the basis of their own analysis and RBI does not accept any responsibility about
servicing/ repayment of such investment.

DISCLAIMER OF THE SECURITIES & EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA

As per the provisions of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended from
time to time and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time to time, a copy of this Disclosure Document is not required to be filed with or submitted to SEBI
for its review/approval. Accordingly, this Disclosure Document has not been filed with SEBI. The
Debentures have not been recommended or approved by SEBI nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or
adequacy of this Disclosure Document. It is to be distinctly understood that this Disclosure Document should
not, in any way, be deemed or construed that the same has been cleared or vetted by SEBI. SEBI does not
take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any scheme or the project for which the Issue is
proposed to be made, or for the correctness of the statements made or opinions expressed in this Disclosure
Document. The issue of Debentures being made on private placement basis, filing of this Disclosure
Document is not required with SEBI, however SEBI reserves the right to take up at any point of time, with
the Issuer, any irregularities or lapses in this Disclosure Document.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

As required, a copy of this Disclosure Document would be duly filed with BSE in terms of SEBI (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this
Disclosure Document to the BSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this Disclosure
Document has been reviewed, cleared or approved by BSE, nor does BSE in any manner warrant, certify or
endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Disclosure Document. BSE does not
warrant that the NCDs thereof will be listed or will continue to be listed on BSE nor does BSE take any
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responsibility for the soundness of the financial and other conditions of the Company, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project of the Company.

DISCLAIMER OF THE TRUSTEE

The Debenture Trustee, ‘ipso facto’ does not have the obligations of a borrower or a principal debtor or a
guarantor as to the monies paid/invested by Debenture Holders.

DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the
concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating Agency has based its ratings on
information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Rating Agency does not,
however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for
any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose
bank facilities/instruments are rated by the Rating Agency have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount
and type of bank facilities/instruments.

DISCLAIMER OF THE ARRANGER

It is advised that the Issuer has exercised due diligence by itself to ensure complete compliance of prescribed
disclosure norms in this Disclosure Document. The role of the Arranger in the assignment is confined to
marketing and placement of the Debentures on the basis of this Disclosure Document as prepared by the
Issuer. The Arranger has neither scrutinised/ vetted nor has it done any due diligence for the purposes of
verification of the contents of this Disclosure Document. The Arranger shall use this document for the
purpose of soliciting subscription to eligible investors in the Debentures to be issued by the Issuer on private
placement basis. It is to be distinctly understood that the aforesaid use of this document by the Arranger
should not in any way be deemed or construed that the document has been prepared, cleared, approved or
vetted by the Arranger; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness
of any of the contents of this document; nor does it take responsibility for the financial or other soundness
of the Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme of the Issuer. The Arranger or any of its directors,
employees, affiliates or representatives does not accept any responsibility and/or liability for any loss or
damage arising of whatever nature and extent in connection with the use of any of the information contained
in this document.

FORCE MAJEURE BEFORE CLOSING DATE

Notwithstanding anything herein contained the Issuer shall not bear responsibility or liability for any losses
arising out of any delay in or interruptions of performance of the exchange with regard to the Reference
Index or the Issuer’s obligations under this Disclosure Document due to any Force Majeure Event, act of
God, act of Governmental Authority, act of the public enemy or due to war, the outbreak or escalation of
hostilities, riot, fire, flood, civil commotion, insurrection, labour difficulty (including, without limitation, any
strike, or other work stoppage or slow down), severe or adverse weather conditions, communications line
failure, or other similar cause beyond the reasonable control of the Issuer. The Company reserves the right
to withdraw the Issue at any time prior to the closing date thereof in the event of any unforeseen development
adversely affecting the economic and/or regulatory environment or otherwise. In such an event, the Company
will refund the application money, if any, collected in respect of the Debentures without assigning any
reason.
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ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The NCDs will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the Depositories
for the issue of the NCDs in dematerialised form. The investor will have to hold the Debentures in
dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take necessary steps to credit
the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the investor with its depositary participant.
The Issuer will make the Allotment to Investors on the Deemed Date of Allotment after verification of the
Application Form, the accompanying documents and on realisation of the application money.

DISCLAIMER RELATING TO THE DEBENTURES

Please refer to Annexure 1 setting out the detailed scenario analysis/ valuation matrix showing value of the
security under different market conditions along with graphic representation.

DISCLAIMER OF VALUATION AGENT

The Issuer has appointed a VValuation Agent. Any valuations as may be provided by the Valuation Agent, on
the website of the Issuer and the Valuation Agent or otherwise, do not represent the actual price of the
Debentures that may be received upon sale or redemption of Debentures. They merely represent the
Valuation Agent’s computation of the valuation which may in turn be based on several assumptions. The
valuation will reflect the independent views of the Valuation Agent. It is expressly stated that the valuation
will not be the view of the Issuer or its affiliates. The Issuer will not review the valuation and will not be
responsible for the accuracy of the valuations. The valuations that will be provided by the Valuation Agent
and made available on the website of the Issuer and the Valuation Agent, at a frequency of not less than once
a calendar week, and the said valuation will not represent the actual price that may be received upon sale or
redemption of the Debentures. It will merely represent the Valuation Agent’s computation of the valuation
which may in turn be based on several assumptions. The valuations that will be provided by the Valuation
Agent may include the use of proprietary models (that are different from the proprietary models used by the
Issuer and/or the Valuation agent) and consequently, valuations provided by other parties (including the
Issuer and/or the Valuation agent) may be significantly different. The Valuation Agency will publish a
valuation on its website at least once every calendar week. The valuation shall be available on the website
of the Valuation Agency and the Issuer.

SECURITY MAY BE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE DEBENTURES

In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors under
the terms of the Debentures, the Debenture Trustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of security
documents, and other related documents. It is the duty of the Debenture Trustee to monitor the maintenance
of the security/ asset cover, however, the Debenture Holder(s)’ recovery in relation to the Debentures will
be subject to and shall depend on the market scenario prevalent at the time of enforcement of the security.
The value realised from the enforcement of the Security may be insufficient to redeem the Debentures.
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SECTION 2: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given below

in this Disclosure Document.

General terms

Term
Company/ Issuer

Company related terms

Term
Board of Directors/Board
Director(s)

KMP
Memorandum and Articles

Issue related terms

Term
Act

Allotment/Allot
Application Form

Applicable Law

Assets Under Management
/ AUM

Assignment Documents

Description
Five-Star Business Finance Limited

Description
The board of directors of the Company or any committee thereof

Director(s) of the Company, as may change from time to time, unless
otherwise specified

Key managerial personnel, as defined under the Companies Act, 2013

The Memorandum & Atrticles of Association of the Company, as amended
from time to time

Description

The Companies Act, 1956, and to the extent repealed and replaced by the
Companies Act, 2013, shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and shall
include any other statutory amendment or re-enactment thereof

The allotment of the NCDs or Debentures

The form in which an investor can apply for subscription to the NCDs, set
out in Annexure | hereto

Shall mean all applicable statutes, enactments or acts of any legislative body
in India, laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations, notifications,
guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders of any Governmental
Authority and any modifications or re-enactments thereof

Means and includes the outstanding principal amount of the loans originated
by the Issuer on its own books (including loans which have been securitised
where the Issuer continues to remain as the servicer / collection agent) as
well as loan originated on behalf of other entities by entering into partnership
agreements but not included on the Issuer’s own book, where the Issuer is
acting as servicer / collection agent

Shall mean such documents as will be entered into between the Company
and the SPV for the purposes of the transaction described under the sub
heading “Trigger Event Consequences” under row titled “Description
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Term

Beneficial Owner(s)

BSE / Stock Exchange
Cash Collateral

Coupon
Coupon Rate
Coupon Payment Date

Debenture Documents

Debenture Holder

Debenture Trustee

Debenture Trustee
Agreement

Debenture Trust Deed

Deed of Hypothecation
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Description

regarding Security” under paragraph 4.20 herein.

Means the Debenture Holder(s) of the Debentures in dematerialised form
whose name is recorded as the Debenture Holders with the Depository.

BSE Limited

Shall mean the amount placed by the Company in the form of fixed
deposit(s) as per the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed (which Cash
Collateral shall be lien marked in favour of the Debenture Trustee), in
accordance with the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed.

Shall have the meaning set out under row titled “Coupon Rate” in paragraph
4.20 (Issue Details) herein

Shall have the meaning set out under row titled “Coupon Rate” in paragraph
4.20 (Issue Details) herein

Shall have the meaning set out under row titled “Coupon Payment Date”
in paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details) herein

Shall mean the documents executed in relation to the issue of the Debentures
and the creation of the Security and shall include this Disclosure Document,
the Private Placement Offer Letter, the Debenture Trustee Agreement, the
Debenture Trust Deed, the agreement in relation to Cash Collateral, Deed of
Hypothecation, the SPV Guarantee, the tri-partite agreements entered into
with the Depository and the registrar and share transfer agent, this Deed,
resolutions passed by the board and shareholders authorising the issue and
allotment of Debentures and any other document that may be designated by
the Debenture Trustee as a Debenture Document.

Shall mean the several persons/companies who will, from time to time, be
holders of the Debentures and whose names will be entered in the Register
of Debenture Holders as Debenture Holders and whose names will be
recorded as the beneficial owners of the Debentures, with the Depository;

Trustee for the Debenture Holders, in this case being Catalyst Trusteeship
Limited

Shall mean the debenture trustee agreement entered into by and between the
Company and the Catalyst Trusteeship Limited for the appointment of
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited as Debenture Trustee in relation to the
Debentures.

Deed to be executed intra alios by and between Debenture Trustee and the
Company for the purposes of the issuance of the Debentures

Deed to be executed inter alios by and between the Company and the
Debenture Trustee for the purposes of creating hypothecation over: (i) the
Identified Receivables; (ii) the Cash Collateral; (iii) all right, title and
interest of the Company in the property belonging to the SPV Trust, whether
as a residual beneficiary or pursuant to the contribution deemed to be made
available by the Company to the SPV Trust in terms of the Assignment
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Term

Deemed Date of Allotment
Default Interest
Depository(ies)
Depositories Act

Depository Participant/DP
Digital Level

Disclosure Document
DP-1D

ECS

Eligibility Criteria

Expected Maturity Date

FIMMDA
Final Fixing Date
Final Fixing Level

Final Settlement Date

Financial Indebtedness
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Description

Documents, in terms of the SPV Trust Deed.

Shall mean the date on which the Debentures shall be allotted to the
Debenture Holders

Shall have the meaning set out under row titled “Default Interest Rate” in
paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details) herein

A depository registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 1996, as
amended from time to time, in this case being NSDL

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time
A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

Means 100% of the closing yield of the Reference Index i.e. last traded
closing yield of 5.79 G-Sec 2030, as on the date of observation, as published
on the Bloomberg Ticker IGB 5.79% 11/05/2030

This Disclosure Document through which the Issue is being made
Depository Participant Identification Number
Electronic clearing system

shall mean the criteria set out in sub-paragraph 6(c) under paragraph |
(Representations and warranties of the Company) of Annexure V herein

shall mean the date falling on the expiry of 27 (Twenty Seven) months and
1 (One) day from the Deemed Date of Allotment i.e. April 30, 2023,;

The Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India
15 (Fifteen) Business Days prior to the Expected Maturity Date

Last traded closing yield of the Reference Index on the Final Fixing Date,
as determined in accordance with the Digital Level

Shall mean the date on which the obligations in relation to the Outstanding
Amounts have been irrevocably discharged in full and/or the Debentures,
have been redeemed by the Company in full and the Debenture Trustee has
provided a written confirmation to the Company in this regard

Shall mean any indebtedness for or in respect of:

1. moneys borrowed;

2. any amount availed of by acceptance of any credit facility;

3. any amount raised pursuant to the issuance of any notes, bonds,
debentures, loan stock or any other similar securities or instruments;

4. the amount of any liability in respect of any lease or hire purchase
contract which would, in accordance with generally accepted principles
of accounting in India, be treated as a finance or capital lease;

5. receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables sold in the
ordinary course of business or to the extent that they are sold on a non-
recourse basis);
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Force Majeure

Governmental Authority

Identified Loans

Identified Loan Agreements
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Description

6. any amount raised under any other transaction (including any forward
sale or purchase agreement) having the commercial effect of a
borrowing;

7. any derivative transaction entered into in connection with protection
against or benefit from fluctuation in price (and, when calculating the
value of any derivative transaction, only the marked to market value
shall be taken into account);

8. any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee, indemnity,
bond, standby or documentary letter of credit or any other instrument
issued by a bank or financial institution;

9. the amount of any liability under an advance or deferred purchase
agreement if one of the primary reasons behind the entry into such
agreement is to raise finance; or

10. any put option, guarantees, keep fit letter(s), letter of comfort, etc by
whatever name called, which gives or may give rise to any financial
obligation(s);

11. any preference shares (excluding any compulsorily convertible
preference shares);

12. (without double counting) the amount of any liability in respect of any
guarantee or indemnity for any of the items referred to in paragraphs (1)
to (11) above.

Means any war, strike, lock-out, national disaster, act of terrorism, an act of
Issuer occurring after such obligation is entered into, or such obligation has
become illegal or impossible in whole or in part, or any breakdown, failure
or malfunction beyond the control of the Issuer of any telecommunication
or computer system including, without limitation unavailability of any
communication system, systems outages breakdowns, breach or virus in the
processes or payment and delivery mechanism, sabotage, fire, flood,
explosion, acts of God, civil commotion, strikes or industrial action of any
kind, riots, insurrection, acts of government, computer hacking unauthorised
access to computer data and storage devices, computer crashes, etc.

shall include the President of India, the Government of India, the Governor
and the Government of any State in India, any Ministry or Department of
the same, any municipal or local government, any authority or private body
exercising powers conferred by Applicable Law and any court, tribunal or
other judicial or quasi-judicial body, and shall include, without limitation, a
stock exchange and any regulatory body.

Shall mean the facilities granted by the Company to the Obligors on the
terms and conditions set out in the Identified Loan Agreements, which are
hypothecated / to be hypothecated under the terms of the Deed of
Hypothecation;

Shall mean the loan agreement(s) entered into between the Company and
Obligor(s) setting out the terms and conditions for the Identified Loans
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Term

Identified Receivables

Initial Fixing Date
Initial Fixing Level

Issue
Majority Debenture
Holder(s)

Material Adverse Effect

Maturity Date

Minimum Security Cover

NEFT
NSDL
Obligor

Outstanding Amounts

Post  Trigger Expected
Payout Dates

Private Placement Offer
Letter

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

Description

availed of by the Obligor(s)

Shall mean the aggregate of all amounts payable to the Company by the
Obligors, pursuant to the Identified Loan Agreements, including interest,
additional interest, overdue charges, premium on prepayment proceeds
received on prepayment/ foreclosure, more particularly set out in the
Debenture Documents

January 25, 2021

Last traded closing yield of the Reference Index as on the Initial Fixing Date,
as determined in accordance with the Digital Level.

Private placement of the Debentures

Means Debenture Holders holding an aggregate amount representing more
than 51% (Fifty One Percent) of the value of the nominal amount of the
outstanding Debentures.

Shall mean the change or consequence of an event, circumstance, occurrence
or condition which, has caused, as of any date of determination, or could
reasonably be expected to cause a material adverse effect, on (i) the financial
condition, business or operation of any of the Company, (ii) the ability of
any of the Company to perform their obligations hereunder or under any
Debenture Documents, or (iii) the legality, validity, binding nature or
enforceability of any of the Debenture Documents

Shall mean the day on which the Debentures are redeemed in full, whether
on account of scheduled repayment or prepayment or payment consequent
to the occurrence of an Event of Default

Shall have the meaning set out under row titled ‘Description regarding
Security’ in paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details) herein.

National Electronic Fund Transfer Service
National Securities Depository Limited

Means any person to whom loan has been extended by the Company and
includes its successors or permitted assigns

Shall mean the aggregate of the principal amount, Coupon, Default Interest,
any outstanding remuneration of the Debenture Trustee, fees, costs, charges,
expenses and all present and future moneys, liabilities due, owing or
incurred from time to time to the Company under or in connection with the
Debentures, and/or any Debenture Document (in each case, whether alone
or jointly, or jointly and severally, with any other person, whether actually
or contingently, and whether as principal, surety or otherwise)

Shall have the meaning set out under row titled “Payment Mechanism” in
paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details) herein

Shall mean the private placement offer cum application letter(s) prepared in
compliance with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
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Rating Agency
RBI

Reference Index /
Underlying Index

Register of  Debenture
Holders

RTGS
SEBI

SEBI (ILDS) Regulations
SEBI (LODR) Regulations

Scheduled Maturity Date

Secured Property

Security / Security Interest

Private & Confidential
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Description

Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.
ICRA Limited

Reserve Bank of India

Means 10 year Government security: 5.79 G-Sec 2030 having ISIN:
IN0020200070 and maturity on 11-05-2030. The details of which are
published on the Bloomberg Ticker IGB 5.79% 11/05/2030.

If the said Reference Index is discontinued or ceases to be available, then
Reference Index shall be such index as may be stipulated by the Debenture
Trustee (acting for and on behalf and on the instructions of all the Debenture
Holders).

Shall mean the register maintained by the Company containing the name(s)
of the Debenture Holder(s), which register shall be maintained at the
Registered Office of the Company.

Real Time Gross Settlement

The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act,
1992

Means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

Means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Shall mean the date falling on the expiry of 27 (Twenty Seven) months and
1 (One) day from the Deemed Date of Allotment i.e. April 30, 2023,
provided however that in the event any Trigger Event occurs prior to (or on)
the date referred to above, the Scheduled Maturity Date shall stand extended
to the date falling on the expiry of 84 (Eighty Four) months from the Deemed
Date of Allotment i.e. January 29, 2028

Shall collectively mean: (i) a first ranking and exclusive charge over
receivables due and payable by certain customers of the Company to the
Company from certain identified loan agreements; (ii) a first ranking and
exclusive charge over the Cash Collateral made available by the Company
on the terms set out hereunder; (iii) a first ranking and exclusive charge over
all right, title and interest of the Company in the property belonging to the
SPV Trust, whether as a residual beneficiary or pursuant to the contribution
deemed to be made available by the Company to the SPV Trust in terms of
the Assignment Documents, in terms of the SPV Trust Deed; and upon the
occurrence of a Trigger Event, additionally secured by way of (i) a first
ranking and exclusive charge over the Identified Receivables assigned to the
SPV by the Company; and (ii) an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee
to be provided by the SPV, in terms of the Assignment Documents

Shall mean the security created to secure the obligations of the Issuer in
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Security Provider

SPV

SPV Account

SPV Trust
SPV Trust Deed

SPV Trustee

Valuation Agency

Transaction Documents
Trigger Event

WDM

Private & Confidential
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Description

relation to the Debentures and shall be the security identified under row
titled “Description regarding Security” in paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details)
herein.

Shall mean any persons providing the Security for securing the Outstanding
Amounts in relation to the Debentures.

Shall have the meaning assigned to the term ‘SPV’ under row titled
‘Description regarding Security’ in paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details) herein.

Shall mean an account under the name and style of ‘Dhruva X1 01 2021” and
which account number shall be separately intimated, opened and maintained
by the SPV Trust and operated under the signature of the SPV Trustee

Shall mean the Dhruva XI 01 2021 settled in terms of the SPV Trust Deed

Shall mean the trust deed, to be executed by Catalyst Trusteeship Limited in
its capacities as settlor and SPV Trustee respectively, inter alia in relation to
the settlement of the SPV Trust, the appointment of the SPV Trustee as the
trustee thereof, the objects of the SPV Trust and the duties and powers of
the SPV Trustee

Shall mean Catalyst Trusteeship Limited in its capacity as the trustee of the
SPV Trust

Means ICRA Analytics Limited, an AMFI appointed valuation agency as
stipulated by SEBI vide circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/17/2011 dated September
28, 2011, as amended from time to time

Shall mean collectively (i) the Assignment Documents; and (ii) the
Debenture Documents

Shall mean the events identified under row titled “Trigger Events” under
paragraph 4.20 (Issue Details) herein

Wholesale Debt Market
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SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

The following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged by
the management of the Company. Potential Investors should carefully consider all the risk factors in this
Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter for evaluating the
Company and its business and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the
Debentures. The Company believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in
investing in the Debentures but does not represent that the statements below regarding risks of holding the
Debentures are exhaustive. The ordering of the risk factors is intended to facilitate ease of reading and
reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. Investors
should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Information Memorandum and/or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and reach their own views prior to making any investment
decision.

3.1 REPAYMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE ISSUER.

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e., the redemption amount) and
any other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the Issuer.
Potential Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will not be able to satisfy their obligations under the
Debentures. In the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement or similar
proceedings to avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums due on the
Debentures may not be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

3.2 THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even if there
is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity. Potential Investors
may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

3.3 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the event of deterioration in the
financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the Rating Agency may downgrade the rating of the
Debentures. In such cases, potential investors may incur losses on revaluation of their investment or make
provisions towards sub-standard/ non-performing investment as per their usual norms.

3.4 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF NCDS.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, are subject to price risk. The price of such securities
will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise, prices of fixed
income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the prices
is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of prevailing
interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing economy,
are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of the Debentures.

35 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types of investors. Potential
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Investors are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any
financial, legal, tax and other implications of this investment.

3.6 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential Investors are urged to
consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

3.7 SECURITY MAYBE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE DEBENTURES

In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors under
the terms of the Debentures, the Debenture Trustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of security
documents, and other related documents. The Investor’s recovery in relation to the Debentures will be subject
to (i) the market value of such secured property, (ii) finding willing buyers for the Security at a price
sufficient to repay the potential Investors amounts outstanding under the Debentures. The value realised from
the enforcement of the Security may be insufficient to redeem the Debentures.

3.8 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT
COULD IMPAIR THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations and
policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect the
profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its activities,
increasing costs or otherwise.

3.9 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors of the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it
operates or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable
to it.

3.10 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for
credit and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or negative
growth of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its performance.
Any such slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition.
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3.11 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

A The Issuer provides secured loans to the clients and if the Issuer is unable to control the level of
non-performing loans (“NPAs”) in the future, or if the Issuer’s loan loss reserves are insufficient
to cover future loan losses, the financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected.

As at September 30, 2020, the gross NPA was 50.28 crores on a gross portfolio of Rs.3928.11 crores (1.28%
of gross portfolio).

The Issuer cannot assure that it will be able to effectively control and reduce the level of the NPAs of its
Client Loans. The amount of its reported NPAs may increase in the future as a result of growth of Client
Loans. If the Issuer is unable to manage NPAs or adequately recover its loans, the results of its operations
will be adversely affected.

The current loan loss reserves may not be adequate to cover an increase in the amount of NPAs or any future
deterioration in the overall credit quality of the Issuer’s total loan portfolio. As a result, if the quality of the
Issuer’s total loan portfolio deteriorates the Issuer may be required to increase the loan loss reserves, which
will adversely affect the Issuer’s financial condition and results of operations. The Issuer’s borrowers are
from the middle and lower middleclass segments and, as a result, might be vulnerable if economic conditions
worsen or growth rates decelerate in India, or if there are natural disasters such as floods and droughts in
areas where the Issuer’s members live. Moreover, there is no precise method for predicting loan and credit
losses, and the Issuer cannot assure that the Issuer’s monitoring and risk management procedures will
effectively predict such losses or that loan loss reserves will be sufficient to cover actual losses. If the Issuer
is unable to control or reduce the level of its NPAs or poor credit quality loans, the Issuer’s financial condition
and results of the Issuer’s operations could be materially and adversely affected.

B. Lending to small businesses poses unique risks not generally associated with other forms of
lending in India, and, as a result, the Issuer may experience increased levels of NPAs and related
provisions and write-off that negatively impact results of operations.

Issuer’s core business is to provide collateralised loans to small business owners primarily in the urban and
semi-urban areas. Any downturn in the area of activity by borrowers could adversely affect the ability of
borrowers to make loan repayment on time and in turn negatively impact the Issuer’s operation. Due to the
precarious circumstances of borrowers and non-traditional lending practices the Issuer may, in the future
experience increased level of non-performing loans and related provisions and write-offs that negatively
impact its business and results of operations.

The Issuer has separated sales from credit risk department. This helps in better credit evaluation of the
customer. A credit enhancement happens by the way of hypothecation of stocks/machineries and or mortgage
of immovable property. The ability to repay the loan is taken care of by the internal credit evaluation and
intention to repay is taken care of by the collaterals obtained.

C. The Issuer is exposed to certain political, regulatory and concentration of risks

Due to the nature of its operations, the Issuer is exposed to political, regulatory and concentration risks. The
Issuer believes a mitigate to this is to expand its geographical reach and may consequently expand its
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operations other states. If it is not effectively able to manage such operations and expansion, it may lose
money invested in such expansion, which could adversely affect its business and results of operations.

D. The Issuer’s business and results of operations would be adversely affected by strikes, work
stoppages or increased wage demands by employees

The employees are not currently unionized. However, there can be no assurance that they will not unionize
in the future. If the employees unionize, it may become difficult to maintain flexible labour policies, and
could result in high labour costs, which would adversely affect the Issuer’s business and results of operations.

E. The Issuer’s insurance coverage may not adequately protect it against losses. Successful claims
that exceed its insurance coverage could harm the Issuer’s results of operations and diminish its
financial position

The Issuer maintains insurance coverage of the type and in the amounts that it believes are commensurate
with its operations and other general liability insurances. The Issuer’s insurance policies, however, may not
provide adequate coverage in certain circumstances and may be subject to certain deductibles, exclusions
and limits on coverage.

In addition, there are various types of risks and losses for which the Issuer does not maintain insurance, such
as losses due to business interruption and natural disasters, because they are either uninsurable or because
insurance is not available to the Issuer on acceptable terms. A successful assertion of one or more large
claims against the Issuer that exceeds its available insurance coverage or results in changes in its insurance
policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger deductible or co-insurance requirement,
could adversely affect the Issuer’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

F. Issuer requires certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting business and failure to
obtain or retain them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect operations.

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. The Issuer requires certain
approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions for operating its business, including registration with the
RBI as a NBFC pursuant to Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934. Further, such approvals, licenses,
registrations and permissions must be maintained/renewed over time, applicable requirements may change
and the Issuer may not be aware of or comply with all requirements all of the time. Additionally, RBI has
issued detailed directions on prudential norms inter alia prescribing guidelines on income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning requirements applicable to NBFCs, exposure norms, disclosures in the
balance sheet, requirement of capital adequacy, restrictions on investments in land and building and unquoted
shares besides others. In particular, the Issuer is required to obtain a certificate of registration for carrying
on business as a NBFC that is subject to numerous conditions. In addition, its branches are required to be
registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the states in which they are located. The shops
and establishments laws regulate various employment conditions, including working hours, holidays and
leave and overtime compensation. If the Issuer fails to obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or
renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, its business may be adversely affected. If the Issuer fails to
comply, or a regulator claims that it has not complied, with any of these conditions, the Issuer’s certificate
of registration may be suspended or cancelled and it shall not be able to carry on such activities. If the Issuer
fails to comply with the NBFC Directions and fails to maintain the status of NBFC. it may attract penal
provisions under the RBI Act, 1934 for non-compliance. The penal action can also result in RBI cancelling

Page 18



Disclosure Document Private & Confidential
Date: January 29, 2021 For Private Circulation Only

the Certificate of Registration issued to the NBFC.

G. Competition from banks and financial institutions, as well as state-sponsored programs, may
adversely affect our profitability and position in the Indian NBFC lending industry

The Issuer faces most significant competition from other NBFCs and banks in India. Many of the institutions
with which Issuer competes can have greater assets and better access to, and lower cost of, funding than the
issuer. In certain areas, they may also have better name recognition and larger member bases than Issuer.
Issuer anticipates that it may encounter greater competition as they continue expanding the operations in
India, which may result in an adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition.

H. The economic fallout from the spread of the COVID-19 virus may impact the Issuer’s business
prospects, financial condition, result of operations and credit risk

The spread of the COVID-19 virus has affected millions across the globe and the same coupled with measures
taken by the governments including lockdowns/ curfew has not only affected day to day lives of people but
has also given a hard blow to the supply chain of factories, with trade routes being disturbed and slowing
down of the industry, trade, commerce and business activities across all sectors.

However, the extent of negative financial impact from any resurgence of Covid cases and resultant
reimposition of local/national lockdowns etc cannot be reasonably estimated at this time but a sustained
economic slowdown may significantly affect our business, financial condition, liquidity, cashflows and
results of operations and the same will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot
be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the COVID-19 virus
and the actions to contain the COVID-19 virus or treat its impact, among others. Consequently, there may
be a negative effect on the Company’s ability to service the obligations in relation to the Debentures, should
such events occur in the future.

3.12 PRODUCT RELATED RISKS

A. The composition of the securities underlying the Reference Index to which a Debenture may be linked
may change over time.

The composition of the constituents of the Reference Index to which the Debentures are linked may change
over time. The Reference Index sponsor may, in its sole discretion, add, delete or substitute the securities
underlying the index or make other methodological changes required by certain corporate events relating to
the securities underlying the Reference Index that could change the value of the index. There may be
additions to the securities in Reference Index to which the Debenture Holders may not want exposure, or
deletions of securities to which they would want exposure. The Debenture Holders should not place undue
reliance on the creditworthiness, business plans or prospects or other factors relating to any particular issuer
of constituents of Reference Index as of the date hereof.

B. Structure Risks
The Debentures being structured debentures are sophisticated instruments which involve a significant degree

of risk and are intended for sale only to those Investors capable of understanding the risks involved in such
instruments. Please note that both the return on the Debentures and the return of the principal amount in full
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are at risk if the Debentures are not held till, or for any reason have to be sold or redeemed, before the
Scheduled Maturity Date. The Debentures are a principal protected product only upon maturity.

The Debentures are structured and are complex and an investment in such a structured product may involve
a higher risk of loss of a part of the initial investment as compared to investment in other securities unless
held till final Scheduled Maturity Date. The Debenture Holder shall receive at least the face value of the
Debenture only if the Investor holds and is able to hold the Debentures till the Scheduled Maturity Date.
Prior to investing in the Debentures, a prospective Investor should ensure that such prospective Investor
understands the nature of all the risks associated with the investment in order to determine whether the
investment is suitable for such prospective Investor in light of such prospective Investor’s experience,
objectives, financial position and other relevant circumstances. Prospective Investors should independently
consult with their legal, regulatory, tax, financial and/or accounting advisors to the extent the prospective
Investor considers necessary in order to make their own investment decisions.

An investment in Debentures where the payment of premium (if any), and/or coupon and/or other
consideration (if any) payable or deliverable thereon is determined by reference to one or more equity or
debt securities, indices, baskets, formulas or other assets or basis of reference will entail significant risks not
associated with a conventional fixed rate or floating rate debt security. Such risks include, without limitation,
changes in the level or value of the relevant underlying equity or debt securities or basket or index or indices
of equity or debt securities or other underlying asset or basis of reference and the holder of the Debentures
may receive a lower (or no) amount of premium, coupon or other consideration than the holder expected.
The Company has no control over a number of matters that are important in determining the existence,
magnitude and longevity of such risks and their results, including, but not limited to, economic, financial
and political events. In addition, if an index or formula used to determine any amounts payable or deliverable
in respect of the Debentures contains a multiplier or leverage factor, the effect of any change in such index
or formula will be magnified. In recent times, the values of certain indices, baskets and formulas have been
volatile and volatility in those and other indices, baskets and formulas may occur in the future.

C. Model Risk

Investment in the Debentures is subject to model risk. The Debentures are created on the basis of complex
mathematical models involving multiple derivative exposures which may or may not be hedged and the
actual behaviour of the securities selected for hedging may significantly differ from the returns predicted by
the mathematical models.

D. Credit Risk

While the repayment of sums due at maturity is provided by the Issuer, investors should be aware that receipt
of any coupon payment and principal amount at maturity on the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of
the Issuer. Investors assume the risk that the Company will not be able to satisfy their obligations under the
Debentures and investors may or may not recover all or part of the principal amount in case of default by the
Issuer.

Any stated credit rating of the Company reflects the independent opinion of the referenced rating agency as
to the creditworthiness of the rated entity but is not a guarantee of credit quality of the Company. Any
downgrading of the credit ratings of the Company or its parent or affiliates, by any rating agency could result
in a reduction in the value of the Debentures. In the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition,
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scheme of arrangement or similar proceedings to avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Company,
the payment of sums due on the Debentures may be substantially reduced or delayed.

E. The Debenture Holders should consult their own tax, legal, accounting experts to determine the
impact of any change in valuation, returns etc. of these debentures in case of any prepayment or early
redemption or premature exit by the Company relating to Debentures due to linkages to the reference
asset

An investment in Debentures that has payments of principal, coupon or both, indexed to the value of any
equity share, index or any other rate, asset or index, or a basket including one or more of the foregoing and
/or to the number of observation of such value falling within or outside a pre-stipulated range (each of the
foregoing, a “Reference Value”) will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional fixed rate or
floating rate debt security. Such risks include, without limitation, changes in the applicable Reference Value
and how such changes will impact the amount of any principal or coupon payments linked to the applicable
Reference Value. The Company has no control over a number of matters that are important in determining
the existence, magnitude and longevity of such risks and their results, including economic, financial and
political events. Past performance of any Reference Value to which any principal or coupon payments may
be linked is not necessarily indicative of future performance. Investors should be aware that a Reference
Value may go down as well as up and/or be volatile and the resulting impact such changes will have on the
amount of any principal or coupon payments will depend on the applicable index formula. The Debenture
Holder shall receive at least the face value of the Debenture only if the investor holds and is able to hold the
Debentures and the Debentures are not sold or redeemed or bought back till the Maturity Date.

If so specified, the early redemption amount, if any, may in certain circumstances be determined by the
Valuation Agency(ies) based upon the market value of the Debentures less any costs associated with
unwinding any hedge positions relating to the Debentures. In the event the terms and conditions do not
provide for a minimum redemption amount even in the event of an early redemption, then on such occurrence
a holder may receive less than 100.00% of the principal amount. In case of principal/capital protected market
linked debentures, the principal amount is subject to the credit risk of the Issuer whereby the Debenture
Holder may or may not recover all or part of the funds in case of default by the Issuer. However, if the
Debentures are held till the Maturity Date, subject to credit risk of the Issuer, the Debenture Holder of the
Debenture will receive at least the principal amount.

The Debentures are likely to be less liquid than conventional fixed or floating rate debt instruments. No
representation will be made as to the existence of a market for the Debentures. While the Company intends
under ordinary market conditions to indicate and/or procure indication of prices for any such Debentures
there can be no assurance as to the prices that would be indicated or that the Company will offer and/or cause
to purchase any Debentures. The price given, if any, will be affected by many factors including, but not
limited to, the remaining term and outstanding principal amount of the Debentures, the level of the Reference
Value, fluctuations in interest rates and/or in exchange rates, volatility in the Reference Value used to
calculate the amount of any coupon or principal payments, and credit spreads. Consequently, prospective
Investors must be prepared to hold the Debentures for an indefinite period of time or until the redemption or
maturity of the Debentures. Trading levels of any Debentures will be influenced by, among other things, the
relative level and performance of the applicable Reference Value and the factors described above.
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SECTION 4: DISCLOSURES AS PER SEBI REGULATIONS

This Disclosure Document is prepared in accordance with the provisions of regulations issued by SEBI, RBI
and Companies Act, 2013 and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per Schedule | of
the SEBI (ILDS) Regulations.

4.1 Documents Submitted to the Exchange(s)

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to BSE:

A

H.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited Annual Reports;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Copy of the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on August 31, 2020, authorizing the issue/offer of non-convertible debentures
by the Company for aggregate amounts not exceeding Rs 3000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three
Thousand Crores only);

Copy of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors dated June 10, 2020 read with the
resolution passed by the Business and Resource Committee of the Board of Directors dated
January 25, 2021 authorising the issuance of the Debentures and the list of authorised
signatories;

Copy of the resolution passed by the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on
August 31, 2020 authorising the Company to borrow and create security in relation to such
borrowings, upon such terms as the Board may think fit, up to an aggregate limit of Rs.
7000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Thousand Crores only);

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the
charge, where applicable, including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within
the time frame prescribed in the relevant regulations/act/rules etc. and the same would be
uploaded on the website of the designated stock exchange, where the debentures have been
listed, within 5 (five) working days of execution of the same.

Any other particulars or documents that the BSE may call for as it deems fit.

4.2 Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee:

A

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited Annual Reports;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Latest audited / limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone
financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and
auditor qualifications, if any;
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An undertaking to the effect that the Issuer would, until the redemption of the debt
securities, submit the details mentioned in point (D) above to the Trustee within the
timelines as mentioned in SEBI LODR Regulations issued by SEBI vide circular No.
SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 dated September 2, 2015, as amended from time to
time, for furnishing / publishing its half yearly/ annual result. Further, the Issuer shall within
180 (One Hundred and Eighty) days from the end of the financial year, submit a copy of
the latest annual report to the Trustee and the Trustee shall be obliged to share the details
submitted under this section with all Debenture Holders within 2 (Two) Business Days of

their specific request.

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. Date of Incorporation May 07, 1984. Our Company was incorporated as a public
limited company under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956.
2. Registered and | New No. 27, Old No. 4, Taylor’s Road, Kilpauk,
Corporate Office of the | Chennai — 600 010
Issuer
3. Registration of the | Corporate Identification Number:
Issuer U65991TN1984PLC010844 issued by the Registrar of
Companies, Chennai.
The Company holds a certificate of registration bearing
registration no. B-07.00286 issued by the RBI to carry on
the activities of a NBFC under Section 45 1A of the RBI
Act, 1934.
4. Compliance Officer of | Ms. Shalini B
the Issuer
5. Contact Person and | Mr. G. Srikanth
Chief Financial Officer | Tel: 044- 46106200
of the Issuer E-mail: srikanth@fivestargroup.in
6. Arranger, if any CredAvenue Private Limited
12th Floor, Prestige Polygon, No. 471, Annasalai,
Nandanam, Chennai, Tamil Nadu- 600035
7. Trustee to the Issue Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
Office No. 604, 6th floor, Windsor, C.S.T. Road,
Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400 098,
Tel: +91 22 4922 0555
Website: www.catalysttrustee.com
8. Registrar to the Issue NSDL Database Management Limited
Trade World, A — Wing, 4th & 5th Floors, Kamala Mills
Compound, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400 013
9. Credit Rating | ICRA Limited
Agency(ies) of the Issue | 3rd Floor, Electric Mansion, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai — 400 025.
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10. Auditor(s) of the Issuer | B.S.R. & Co. LLP,
KRM Tower, 1st and 2nd Floor,
No. 1, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai — 600 031

4.4 A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business
A.  Overview

Five-Star Business Finance Limited (formerly known as Five-Star Business Credits Limited) is a
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC-ND-SI”)
registered with the Reserve Bank of India. The company was established in 1984 and has been
operating in the financial services space for more than 35 years.

The Company was originally promoted by Mr V K Ranganathan and is currently being managed
by Mr D Lakshmipathy, who joined the Board of the company in 2002, and is currently its
Chairman and Managing Director. Under his leadership, over the last 9 years, the Company has
grown from a branch network of 6 to more than 200 today and from an AUM of Rs.18 Crores to
more than Rs.3900 Crores in this period. The management comprises of professionals who have
longstanding experience and expertise in the financial services industry and have the necessary
skills to carry out their responsibilities.

The Company is currently engaged mainly in providing Collateralized Small Business Loans to its
customers in urban, semi-urban and fast-growing rural geographies. All its loans are collateralised
and fully secured against property. The collaterals are usually the residential house property of the
borrower(s) (self-occupied in a majority of cases) with exclusive charge resting with Five-Star. The
loans disbursed by the Company are to small businessmen engaged predominantly in service-
oriented businesses with loans typically ranging from Rs.1 Lakh to Rs.10 Lakh and Average Loan
Ticket Size of about Rs. 4 Lakhs and tenor of up to 7 years.

As at September 30, 2020, Five-Star operated 261 branches in 8 states — Tamil Nadu (87 branches;
including 2 in Puducherry), Andhra Pradesh (67 branches), Telangana (38 branches), Karnataka
(32 branches), Maharashtra (4 branches) Madhya Pradesh (27 branches), Chhattisgarh (3 branches)
and Uttar Pradesh (1 branch) with a borrower base of more than 1,50,000 customers and a total
portfolio under management more than Rs. 3900 Crores.
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B.  Corporate Structure/Organization Structure:

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

FIVE STAR N\
Busl F

usiness Finance Limited

|
e e mmemm—ememme—eeme—e——e—ee——————————————————————————— e emad
v v
‘ - | 1
v v v ! 4 J v 1 1 1
Head sriead Head Chief  company ChiefCredit Head  Head  Head Head Legal & | '"“"; Head- Risk &
Account inanca reasury osurY Secretary Officer HR Admin  Operations Business & Collections Recovery infoqmation Compliance
Reporting Officer Technology
| | 1 |
| \ l ¥ !
v v " . o "
Fiel Fi e 9
Branch F e & fed Credit e (;redn Operations Team Collections State Heads
Cashiers Accounting il Rices Internal
Team Y Audit Team
Regional Managers

*Appointed w.e.f April 2020

\ 4

Area Managers

\

Branch Managers

\

Field Officers

C.  Key operational and financial parameters for the last 3 audited years on a consolidated basis
(wherever available) else on a standalone basis.

(Rs. in Crores)

Parameters Audited Audited Audited Unaudited
IGAAP INDAS INDAS INDAS
. . - March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | September
For Financial Entities 2018 2019 2020 30, 2020
Net Worth 600.15 1365.12 1944.58 2134.25
Total Debt 549.75 954.91 2350.20 3061.81
of which:
— Non Current Maturities of Long - - - -
Term Borrowing*
- Short Term Borrowing - - - -
Current Maturities of
Long Term Borrowing i i i i
Net Fixed Assets 4.54 7.44 11.06 9.52
Non Current Assets 21.68 10.10 15.09 13.03
Cash and Cash equivalents 131.45 219.73 451.13 1300.91
Current Investments - - - -
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Current Assets - - - -
Current Liabilities 8.57 24.67 44.88 57.78
Assets Under Management 1008.26 2112.8 3892.23 3928.11
Off balance sheet assets - - - -
Interest Income 192.32 389.74 746.82 497.11
Interest Expense 57.77 75.92 216.94 158.74
Provisioning & Write Offs 9.32 7.55 49.34 1.44
PAT 55.83 156.28 260.83 188.85
Total comprehensive income 55.83 156.28 260.83 188.85
Gross NPA (%) 1.43% 0.88% 1.37% 1.28%
Net NPA (%) 0.95% 0.68% 1.13% 1.01%
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 58.82% 64.09% 52.94% 58.43%

Note 1: FY 2019, FY 2020 and FY 2021 Q1 & H1FY2021 figures are as per IND-AS. Figures for 2018
are as per IGAAP and hence may not be directly comparable.

Gross NPA for FY2019, FY2020 is Stage 3 Assets while Net NPA for FY2019, FY2020 and is

calculated as Stage 3 Assets less ECL for Stage 3 Assets.

Note 2: AUM & Debt for FY19, FY20 & H1 FY2021 are net of unamortized processing fee as per Ind

AS; AUM is gross of provisions.

*In relation to the numbers which have not been provided against some of the particulars set out
hereinabove, we note that the Company does not prepare its financial statements in a manner that
enables it to disclose such numbers, and the numbers are currently in unaudited form and have not

been disclosed.

D. Gross Debt Equity Ratio of the Company:

Before the issue of debt securities

1.31

After the issue of debt securities

1.37

Calculations:

As on December 31, 2020, debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as follows:

(Rs. in Crores)

Debt 2912.44
Equity 2229.77
Debt/Equity 1.31

Subsequent to the issue, debt-to-equity ratio shall be calculated as follows:

(Rs. in Crores)

Debt 3062.44
Equity 2229.77
Debt/Equity 1.37
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E.  Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding new projects:
Not applicable
4.5 A Brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:
A Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end i.e. December 31, 2020:
Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs
Authorised
Equity Share Capital 5500.00
Issued and Subscribed
Equity Shares 2718.94
Fully Paid- up
Equity Shares 2564.36
*17,17,597 Partly paid shares have been issued with paid-up value of INR 1 per share
B. Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.e. December 31, 2020, for the last five
years:
S. Date of Change (AGM/
No EGM) Change / Remarks/ Amounts
Increase in Authorised Capital from Rs.
1] 21-Feb-2014 (EGM) 7,00,00,000 to Rs. 12,00,00,000
. Increase in Authorised Capital from Rs.
2| 12-April-2016 (EGM) 12,00,00,000 to Rs. 20,00,00,000
Increase in Authorised Capital from Rs.
3| 28-Jul-2018 (EGM) 20,00,00,000 to Rs. 30,00,00,000
. Increase in Authorised Capital from Rs.
4. | 17-Mar-20 (Amalgamation) 30,00,00,000 to Rs. 55,00,00,000
C. Equity share capital history of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. December 31, 2020, for
the last five years:
Cumulative Remarks
No. of . . No of Equity | Equity
Date of | Shares e 5l Con5|derat|on Nature of Equity Share Share
value Price (Rs. in - .
Allotment | allotted (Rs.) (Rs.) Crores) Allotment Shares Capital | Premium
(lakhs) ' ' Issued / (Rs.In | (Rs.In
Paid-up lakhs) lakhs)
Private
21-Feb-14 20 10 85 1,700.00 90,00,000 900 1500
Placement
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Cumulative Remarks
No. of . . No of Equity | Equity
Date of | Shares e Iss_ue Con3|de|_’at|on Nature of Equity Share Share
value Price (Rs.in - .
Allotment | allotted (Rs) (Rs)) Crores) Allotment Shares Capital | Premium
(lakhs) ' ' Issued / (Rs.In | (Rs.In
Paid-up lakhs) lakhs)
03-Feb-15| 12 | 10 | 130 156000 | TV 140200000 | 1,020 | 1440 NIL
Placement
29-Sep-15 | 35 | 10 | 130 455 Private | 1 05,50,000 | 1,085 | 420 NIL
Placement
30-Nov- 195 | 10 130 195 Private | 1 1700,000 | 1,070 | 180 NIL
15 Placement
30-Jun-16 | 3565 | 10 | 31963 | 1139498 | "MV 144265052 | 1427 | 11088 | M-
Placement
09-Jun-17 | 1.88 | 10 10 18.8 ESOP | 1,44,53,052 | 1,445 0 NIL
18-AUG- | 4715 | 10 674.4 31,800.00 Private | 4 91 68354 | 1,017 | 31328 NIL
17 Placement
25Sep-17 | 001 | 10 85 0.43 ASOP | 1,91,68,854 | 1,017 0.3 NIL
24-3ul-18 | 0.08 | 10 130 10.4 ASOP | 1,91,76,854 | 1,918 10 NIL
03-Aug- | 4687 | 10 | 132072 | 61,899.87 Private | » 38 63,682 | 2,386 | 61431 NIL
18 Placement
12-Sep-18 | 0.01 | 10 85 0.43 ESOP | 2,38,64,182 | 2,386 0.3 NIL
12-Dec-18 | 001 | 10 130 13 ESOP | 2,38,65,182 | 2,387 1.2 NIL
27-Dec-18 | 025 | 10 10 3 ESOP | 2,38,90,182 | 2,389 0 NIL
08-Feb-19 | 0.02 | 10 130 2.08 ESOP |2,3891,782 | 2,380 | 1.92 NIL
28-Feb-19 | 0.07 | 10 130 9 ESOP | 2,38,98,782 | 2,390 8.4 NIL
29-Mar- NIL
19 0.01 | 10 130 1 ESOP |2,3899,582 | 2,390 | 0.96
16'?3”‘ 001 | 10 130 2 ESOP |239,00,982 | 2,390 | 10.02 NIL
28un-19 | 0 10 130 0 ESOP |2,39,01,182 | 2,390 | 1.43 NIL
11Jul-19 | 0 10 130 0 ESOP |2,39,01,232 | 2,390 | 0.34 NIL
22-Jul-19 | 1332 | 10 | 2364.4 31,500 Private | 55233494 | 2523 | 3136678 | -
Placement
AT | oo | 10 130 156 ESOP | 2,52,34,694 | 2523 | 4386 NIL
24-Sep-19| 0 10 130 0.13 ESOP NIL
24-Sep-19 | 001 | 10 85 0.43 Esop | 20235294 2524 | 2.03 NIL
06-Dec-19 | 1.19 | 10 10 11.92 ESOP | 2,53,54,532 | 2,535 | 146.52 NIL
12-Dec-19 | 056 | 10 10 5.58 ESOP | 2,54,10,294 | 2,541 | 68.70 NIL
25-Feb-20 | 7.50** | 10 | 2,364.40 75 Private | 5 61,60294 | 2616 | 675 NIL
Placement
2LMar- | g ggex | 10 | 1037.94 96.76 Rights 1 5 7127801 | 2,713 | 87.08 NIL
20 Issue
17'?0“9' 052 | 10 10 5.20 ESOP |271,79,801 | 2,718 | 64.26 NIL
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Cumulative Remarks
No. of . - No of Equit Equit
Date of | Shares T Iss_ue Con3|de|_’at|on Nature of Equity Sﬂarg Sﬂarg
Allotment | allotted VELLE FiEE el Allotment Shares Capital | Premium
(Rs.) (Rs.) Crores) X
(lakhs) Issued / (Rs.In | (Rs.In
Paid-up lakhs) lakhs)
30-Sep-20 | 0.01 10 130 1.82 ESOP 2,71,81,291 | 2,718 10.11 NIL
22-Oct-20 0.03 10 130 3.38 ESOP 2,71,83,891 | 2,718 18.17 NIL
10-Nov-20 0.03 10 130 3.64 ESOP 2,71,86,691 | 2,719 16.17 NIL
30-Nov-20 0.02 10 674.40 12.14 ESOP 2,71,88,491 | 2,719 40.61 NIL
04-Dec-20 0.01 10 130 1.30 ESOP 2,71,89,491 | 2,719 7.19 NIL

**17,17,597 Partly paid shares have been issued with paid-up value of INR 1 per share

D. Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last 1 (one) year:
During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company vide its board meeting dated August 29, 2019
had approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme”) of its wholly owned subsidiary - Five-
Star Housing Finance Private Limited with the Company and their respective shareholders under
Section 233 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act. The appointed date under the
aforesaid Scheme is April 1, 2019. This scheme has been approved by the regulatory authorities. As
required by the IND AS 103 - Business Combinations, pooling of interest method has been
considered for common control business combination and accordingly, the assets and liabilities are
reflected in the books of the Company at their respective carrying amounts.
E. Details of any reorganization or reconstruction in the last 1 (one) year:
There has been no reorganisation or reconstruction in the last 1 (one) year.
4.6 Details of the shareholding of the Company as on December 31, 2020:
A Shareholding pattern of the Company as on December 31, 2020:
Number of shares
S. No. Category Paid-up Capital held in demat
form
% of
No. of shares .
Held sharegoldm
A Promoters Holding
1 Indian:
Individual — D Lakshm!pathy and 60.27.801 99 17 60.27.801
Immediate Relatives
Bodies Corporate - -
Sub Total 60,27,801 22.17 60,27,801
2 Foreign Promoters - -
Sub Total (A) 60,27,801 22.17 60,27,801
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B Non Promoters’ Holding
Matrix Partners Inltljlzil_:_n(\:/estment Holdings 41,00.999 15.08 41,00.999
Matrix Partners India Investments Il
Extension, LLC 68,897 0.25 68,897

NHPEA Chocolate Holding B.V. 35,98,051 13.23 35,98,051
Norwest Venture Partners X — Mauritius 25,69,650 9.45 25,69,650
SCI Investments V 25,69,650 9.45 25,69,650
TPG Asia VII SF Pte. Ltd. 61,10,673 22.47 61,10673
Indian Public 20,10,470 7.39 16,44,840
Directors and relatives 1,33,300 0.49 1,33,300

Sub Total (B) 2,11,61,690 77.83 2,07,96,050

GRAND TOTAL 2,71,89,491 100.00 2,68,23,861

B. List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on December 31, 2020:

S.no Name of Shareholder No. of Shares % of

Holding

1 TPG Asia VII SF PTE Ltd 6110673 22.47%
2 Matrix Partners India Investment Holdings 4100999 15.08%

I, LLC

3 D Lakshmipathy 3710771 13.65%
4 NHPEA Chocolate Holding B.V. 3598051 13.23%
5 SCI Investments V 2569650 9.45%
6 Norwest Venture Partners X - Mauritius 2569650 9.45%
7 Hema 2089060 7.68%
8 Atma Ram Builders (P) Ltd. 545510 2.01%
9 Krishnan Rangarajan 275793 1.01%
10 Ramasamy Jayachandran 212368 0.78%

4.7 Following details regarding the directors of the Company:
A. Details of current directors of the Company:

This table sets out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Directors:

S. Name, designation and Age Address Directo Other Directorship
N DIN (in r of the
0. year Compa
D) ny since
1. | D Lakshmipathy 46 | Old No. 22, New | June, NIL
Chairman & Managing No.39, Outer | 2002
Director Circular Road,
Kilpauk Garden,
DIN: 01723269 Kilpauk,
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S. Name, designation and Age Address Directo Other Directorship
N DIN (in r of the
0. year Compa
S) ny since
Chennai - 600
010.
2. | A Ramanathan 72 | Plot No. 28, 18th | Februar | 1.Samasta Microfinance
Independent Director Street, TANSI | y, 2016 | Limited
Nagar, 2. Svasti  Microfinance
DIN: 02645247 Velachery, Private Limited
Chennai - 600 3. Unnati Microfin Private
042. Limited
4, Hindusthan Microfinance
Private Ltd
5.
6. Mangal Credit and
Fincorp Limited
7. South India Finvest
Private Limited
8. Asirvad Micro Finance
Limited
9. Magalir Micro Capital
Private Limited
3. | Bhama Krishnamurthy 66 | No. B1/23, | April, | 1. Reliance Industrial
Independent Director Technocrat, 2016 | Infrastructure Limited
Cooperative 2. Cholamandalam
DIN: 02196839 Housing Investment and Finance
Society, Twin Company Limited
Tower Lane, 3. Networkl8 Media &
Veer Savarkar Investments Limited
Marg, 4, Muthoot Microfin
Prabhadevi, Limited
Mumbai - 400 5. Thirumalai Chemicals
025. Limited
6. CSB Bank Limited
4. | R Anand 59 | No. 22, Warren | July, 1. Sterling Holiday Resorts
Independent Director Road, 2016 Limited
Mylapore, 2. Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
DIN: 00243485 Chennai — 600 3. Nani Palkhivala
004. Arbitration Centre
4. Chennai International
Centre
5. Jasmine Concrete Exports
Private Limited
5. | Vikram Vaidyanathan 39 B-602, Zen August, | 1. Blue Jay Finlease Limited
Nominee Director - Matrix Garden, 2015 2. Ver Se Innovation Private
Partners No.6, Artillery Limited
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S. Name, designation and Age Address Directo Other Directorship
N DIN (in r of the
0. year Compa
S) ny since
Road, 3. Mswipe Technologies
DIN: 06764019 Ulsoor, Private Limited
Behind 4. Sarvaloka Services-On-
Cambridge Call Private Limited
Hospital, 5. OFB Tech Private
Bangalore - 560 Limited
008. 6. Goddard  Technical
Solutions Private Limited
7. Mswipe Capital Private
Limited
8. Amica Financial
Technologies Private
Limited
9. AF Capital Private
Limited
10. Atv Ventures LLP
11. Matrix Partners India
Advisors LLP
12. OLA Financial Services
Private Limited
13. Ditya Finance Private
Limited
6. | B. Haribabu 61 | No0.39/28, Septem | NIL
Independent Director Gajapathy ber,
Street, Shenoy 1996
DIN: 01509249 Nagar,
Chennai - 600
030.
7. | L R Raviprasad 58 | Old No.59, New | June, | 1.Vasumathi Properties
Non-Executive Director No.11, 2002 Private Limited
Gajapathy
DIN: 01522796 Street, Shenoy
Nagar,
Chennai - 600
030.
8. | Ling Wei Ong 46 | Flat B, 33 Floor, | June, | ZCL chemicals limited
Nominee Director - Morgan One Pacific 2016
Stanley Heights,
No.1, Wo Fung
DIN: 02405458 Street, Hong
Kong.
9. | Arjun Saigal 41 | 536, Sainik July, | 1. Southern Health Foods
Farms, 2016 | Private Limited
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S. Name, designation and Age Address Directo Other Directorship
N DIN (in r of the
0. year Compa
S) ny since
Alternate Director to Ling New Delhi - 110 2. Sahajanand  Medical
Wei Ong- Morgan Stanley 062. Technologies Private
Limited
DIN: 07556188 3. Kogta Financial (India)
Ltd
4, Centrum Housing
Finance Limited
10.| V Thirulokchand 44 | Door No.1, 11th | Decemb | NIL
Non-Executive Director Block, MMDA | er, 2016
Colony,
DIN: 07679930 Mogappair East,
Chennai - 600
037.
11.| G V Ravishankar 42 | 17AETA August, | 1. Prataap Snacks Limited
Nominee Director - Sequoia Binny Crescent 2017 | 2. Pure N Sure Food Bites
Capital Apts., Private Limited
Benson Cross 3. Go Fashion (India)
DIN: 02604007 Road, Private Limited
Benson Town, 4. Indigo Paints Private
Bangalore - Limited
560046. 5. Faces Cosmetics India

Private Limited
6. Manappuram Finance
Tamil Nadu Limited

7. India Shelter Finance
Corporation Limited
8. Capfloat Financial
Services Private Limited

9. Vini Cosmetics Private
Limited

10. Finova Capital Private
Limited

11. Sequoia Capital India
Advisors Private Limited
12. Rupeek Fintech Private
Limited

13. Home vista Decor and
Furnishings Private Limited
14. Fintech Blue Solutions
Private Limited

15. K12 Techno Services
Private Limited
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S. Name, designation and Age Address Directo Other Directorship
N DIN (in r of the
0. year Compa
S) ny since
16. Think & Learn Private
Limited
17. Suburban Diagnostics
(India) Private Limited
18. Rebel Foods Private
Limited
12.| Sanjeev Mehra 38 | 2A Nibbana June, | 1. Shriram General
Nominee Director — TPG Annexe 95-A, 2020 | Insurance Company Limited
Asia VIl SF Pte. Ltd. Pali Hill Road, 2. Shriram Life Insurance
Pali Hill, Bandra Company Limited
DIN: 07491208 (W), Mumbai
400 050
*Company to disclose name of the current directors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list and/or
ECGC default list, if any: None
B. Details of change in directors since last three years as on December 31, 2020:
Date of CD(';ﬁCt;r: of_the
Name Designation DIN Appointment/ np ysTce
Resignation ("? case 0
resignation)
M K Ganeshram Director 01385144 30-01-2015 24-04-1985
Rishi Navani Nominee Director 01758427 05-08-2015 12-03-2014
M Anandan Chairman 00033633 21-08-2015 21-04-2010
Vikram Vaidyanathan Nominee Director 06764019 21-08-2015 -
M K Mohan Independent Director | 00481064 09-06-2016 20-09-1984
Ramanathan Annamalai | Independent Director | 02645247 26-02-2016 -
Kalpana lyer Independent Director | 01874130 12-04-2016 -
Bhama Krishnamurthy | Independent Director | 02196839 12-04-2016 -
Ling Wei Ong Nominee Director 02405458 30-06-2016 -
Alternate director to
Arjun Saigal Mr. Ling Wei Ong 07556188 28-07-2016 -
Anand Raghavan Independent Director | 00243485 28-07-2016 -
Vasan Thirulokchand Non-Executive 07679930 |  15-12-2016 -
Director
Ganapathyagraharam
Venkataraman Nominee Director 01522796 18-08-2017 -
Ravishankar
Kalpana lyer Independent Director | 01874130 30-04-2018 12-04-2016
Gaurav Trehan Nominee Director 03467781 03-08-2018 22-05-2020
Sanjeev Mehra Nominee Director 07491208 10-06-2020 -
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Name Address Auditor Since Remarks
KRM Tower, 1st and 2nd Floor,
M/s BEL?’& Co. No. 1, Harrington Road, Chetpet, | September, 2018 NIL
Chennai — 600 031
Details of change in auditors since last three years:
Date of
Name Address Appointment / Remarks
Resignation
No0.48, Masilamani Road, Balaji
M/s Iz:aggnayya Nagar, Royapettah, Chennai — September 22, 2018 NIL
' 600 014.
KRM Tower, 1st and 2nd Floor,
M/s BELF;& Co. No. 1, Harrington Road, Chetpet, | September 22, 2018 NIL
Chennai — 600 031

Details of borrowings of the Company, as on latest quarter end i.e. December 31, 2020:

Details of Secured Loan Facilities as on December 31, 2020:

(Rs. in Crores)

Category/ Ampunt Outstanding . Repayment
Name of the availed/ | Amount as on | Securit
lender typ_e .Of sanctione | December 31 Date/
facility ’ y Schedule
d 2020

Federal Bank TL - Banks 0.63 1.25 30-03-2021
TL1 10.00

Federal Bank TL - Banks 3.08 1.25 23-03-2022
TL2 10.00

State Bank of TL - Banks 9.07 1.25 31-03-2022
India TL1 40.00

South Indian TL - Banks 0.26 1.11 02-03-2021
Bank TL1 5.00

South Indian TL - Banks 1.67 1.33 28-03-2022
Bank TL2 5.00

Karnataka TL - Banks 0.19 1.33 28-02-2021
Bank TL1 5.00

RBL Bank TL - Banks 1.18 1.2 21-02-2021
TL5 20.00

RBL Bank TL - Banks 15.00 1.2 31-12-2021
TL6 50.00
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RBL Bank
TL7

TL - Banks

50.00

20.59

1.2

18-02-2022

AU Small
Finance Bank
TL1

TL - Banks

20.00

1.22

11

15-03-2021

Equitas Small
Finance Bank
TL1-Tranche 1

TL - Banks

15.00

141

11

05-03-2021

Equitas Small
Finance Bank
TL1-Tranche 2

TL - Banks

10.00

1.25

11

05-04-2021

Kotak
Mahindra
Bank TL1

TL - Banks

20.00

1.67

1.15

27-02-2021

YES Bank
TL1

TL - Banks

25.00

2.78

1.15

05-04-2021

EQUITAS
SMALL
FINANCE
BANK TL 3

TL - Banks

25.00

9.03

11

05-01-2022

AU Small
Finance Bank
TL3

TL - Banks

38.00

24.07

11

03-02-2024

Bandhan Bank
TL1

TL - Banks

30.00

13.33

1.15

28-03-2022

Bank of
Baroda TL2

TL - Banks

50.00

32.50

1.2

30-03-2024

Woori Bank

TL - Banks

45.00

20.00

1.05

30-04-2022

YES Bank
TL2

TL - Banks

30.00

14.17

1.15

31-05-2022

KVB TL-2

TL - Banks

10.00

7.19

1.15

31-05-2024

Federal Bank
TL-4

TL - Banks

15.00

9.38

1.25

29-06-2023

Ujjivan SFB
TL1

TL - Banks

25.00

15.16

11

30-08-2022

Utkarsh SFB
TL1

TL - Banks

20.00

11.11

11

31-08-2022

State Bank of
India TL2

TL - Banks

200.00

162.76

1.25

31-12-2024

Oriental Bank
of Commerce
TL1

TL - Banks

30.00

24.50

1.2

31-12-2024

Indusind Bank
TL-1

TL - Banks

30.00

20.83

1.2

31-01-2023

Private & Confidential
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Equitas Small TL - Banks 15.17 1.15 05-02-2023
Finance Bank 21.00
TL4
SBM Bank TL - Banks 14.25 1.1 26-02-2023
TL-2 19.00
Andhra Bank TL - Banks 39.58 1.15 25-02-2025
TL-1 50.00
Bandhan Bank | TL - Banks 31.11 1.15 01-04-2023
TL2 40.00
Union Bank of | TL - Banks 30.85 1.15 31-03-2025
India TL1 40.00
RBL Bank TL - Banks 90.15 1.2 30-06-2023
TLS8 100.00
AU Small TL - Banks 5.83 11 05-11-2023
Finance Bank 10.00
TL (Five-Star
Housing)
Bank of India TL - Banks 40.00 1.15 15-05-2023
TL1 40.00
State Bank of TL - Banks 48.33 1.25 31-05-2023
India TL3 50.00
Capital SFB TL - Banks 14.24 1.2 01-09-2023
TL1 15.00
Utkarsh SFB TL - Banks 2391 11 25-08-2023
TL2 25.00
Ujjivan SFB TL - Banks 23.61 1.1 31-10-2023
TL2 25.00
Kotak TL - Banks 24.31 1.15 10-11-2023
Mahindra 25.00
Bank TL2
Equitas Small TL - Banks 23.00 1.15 05-12-2023
Finance Bank 23.00
TL5
Federal Bank TL - Banks 10.00 1.15 31-12-2023
TL-5 10.00
FEDERAL Cash Credit - 1.25 -
BANK LTD 5.00
CITY UNION | Cash Credit 1.47 1.33 -
BANK 5.00
RBL BANK Cash Credit - 1.2 -
LTD 5.00
YES BANK Cash Credit - 1.15 -

3.00
Sundaram TL - NBFC 4,56 1.18 22-03-2022
Finance TL4 15.00

For Private Circulation Only

Page 37



Disclosure Document
Date: January 29, 2021

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

Nabkisan TL1 TL - NBFC 0.81 1.15 31-01-2021
13.00

Bajaj Finance TL - NBFC 2.00 1.1 19-02-2021

Ltd TL1 20.00

HLF TL3 TL - NBFC 11.14 11 28-12-2022
20.00

Bajaj Finance TL - NBFC 13.02 1.2 31-01-2023

Ltd TL2 25.00

Tata Capital TL - NBFC 3.94 11 20-02-2022

TL-1 10.00

Nabkisan TL2 TL - NBFC 9.38 1.1 01-06-2024
13.40

Cholamandala | TL - NBFC 7.28 1.1 01-04-2024

m Finance 10.00

TL3

Vivriti TL - NBFC 3.56 1.1 30-03-2024

Capital-TL1 5.00

Nabsamruddhi | TL - NBFC 12.00 11 30-11-2024

Finance TL1 15.00

Sundaram TL - NBFC 7.00 1.18 22-12-2022

Finance TL5 10.00

Sundaram TL - NBFC 21.80 1.18 22-02-2023

Finance TL6 30.00

Tata Capital TL - NBFC 6.18 1.1 05-02-2024

TL-2 7.80

Aditya Birla TL - NBFC 25.00 1.15 01-02-2023

Finance TL-1 25.00

Vivriti TL - NBFC 20.07 1.1 27-04-2023

Capital-TL2 25.00

Bajaj Finance TL - NBFC 5.00 1.1 29-09-2022

(Five-Star 10.00

Housing)

SIDBI TL - NBFC 20.00 1.1 10-04-2021
40.00

MAS TL - NBFC 50.00 1.1 20-12-2023

Financial 50.00

Services TL 6-

10

Bajaj Finance TL - NBFC 30.00 1.15 28-12-2023

Ltd TL3 30.00

Hero Fincorp TL - NBFC 40.00 1.18 03-07-2023

TL1 40.00

NCD - Retail NCD 0.04

NCD - FMO- NCD - 1 06-12-2020

30 Crs 30.00
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NCD - IFMR
CAPITAL-45
Crs

NCD

45.00

11

28-12-2020

NCD - HLF-
30 Crs

NCD

30.00

11

28-12-2020

NCD - AK
Capital-25 Crs

NCD

25.00

5.00

11

07-02-2021

NCD - AK
Capital-15 Crs

NCD

15.00

3.00

11

15-03-2021

NCD - IFMR
(AU SFB)-24
Crs

NCD

24.00

24.00

11

28-02-2021

NCD - FT-200
Crs

NCD

200.00

200.00

11

28-03-2023

NCD-FT-
March 2019

NCD

500.00

11

30-11-2021

NCD-AK
Capital-100
Crs

NCD

100.00

100.00

11

29-03-2022

NCD-
KARVY-30
Crs

NCD

30.00

30.00

11

03-07-2022

NCD-MLD-20
Crs

NCD

20.00

20.00

11

11-04-2024

NCD-
responsAbility
-125 Crs

NCD

125.00

125.00

11

03-07-2022

NCD-Vivriti
Samrath Bond

NCD

15.00

15.00

11

28-08-2025

NCD-DCB-
TLTRO-15
Crores

NCD

15.00

15.00

11

13-05-2026

NCD-BOM-
TLTRO-25Crs

NCD

25.00

25.00

11

26-05-2023

NCD-SBI-
TLTRO-50Crs

NCD

50.00

50.00

1.25

12-06-2023

NCD-Union
Bank-TLTRO-
15Crs

NCD

15.00

15.00

1.25

21-04-2023

NCD-Bank of
India-TLTRO-
50Crs

NCD

50.00

50.00

1.25

21-04-2023

NCD-Punjab
& Sindh Bank-
PCG 2.0-50Cr

NCD

50.00

50.00

11

21-04-2023
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NCD-Bank of NCD 50.00 11 03-01-2022

Maharashtra- 50.00

PCG 2.0-50Cr

NCD-Bank of NCD 50.00 11 03-01-2022

India-PCG 50.00

2.0-50Cr

NCD-Punjab NCD 25.00 1.1 03-01-2022

National 25.00

Bank-PCG

2.0-25Cr

NCD-Union NCD 25.00 1.1 21-02-2022

Bank of India- 25.00

PCG 2.0-25Cr

NCD-MLD- NCD 25.00 1.25 28-02-2023

Ambit-25Crs 25.00

NCD- NCD 70.00 11 22-02-2023

responsAbility 70.00

-70 Crs

NCD-IOB- NCD 25.00 11 19-05-2022

PCG 2.0-25Cr 25.00

NCD-MLD- NCD 40.00 1.01 15-03-2022

UNIFI-40Crs 40.00

NCD-MLD- NCD 75.00 1.25 16-12-2022

Dhruva VI 75.00

NCD-MLD- NCD 50.00 1.25 17-12-2022

Dhruva VI 50.00

Athena Securitizatio 98.3483 30.32 17-05-2022
n

Medici Securitizatio 99.0543 54.85 17-07-2024
n

Kastellorizo Securitizatio | 131.3657 94.92 17-05-2025
n

Otis Securitizatio 39.34 22-06-2023
n 70.10

Central Bank Securitizatio 77.32 15-05-2025

of India-PCG n 100.00

DA

Bank of Securitizatio 79.44 15-07-2025

Baroda-PCG n 106.96

DA

Dhruva Il1 Securitizatio 71.72 15-10-2024
n 89.57

Dhruva IV Securitizatio 78.93 21-04-2025
n 85.91

Dhruva V Securitizatio 46.02 16-11-2025
n 46.02

For Private Circulation Only
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Dhruva VIII Securitizatio 25.00 15-12-2024
n 25.00

B. Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as on December 31, 2020:
NIL
C. Details of Non-Convertible Debentures as of December 31, 2020:

(Rs. in Crores)

Cou Amount Secured | Prim
Debentur | Maturity | Date of on Tenu Outstan / ary Credit
e Series Date allotment | P re . Unsecu | Secu | Rating
ding o
red rity
2017-02-
INE128S | 2021-02- 11.4 11 | CAREA:
07143 07 07 5% 48 7.50 Secured times Stable
2017-03-
INE128S | 2021-03- 11.4 11 | CAREA:
07242 15 15 506 | 48 450 | Secured | iec | Stable
2017-02-
INE128S | 2021-02- 11.2 11 | ICRAA
07267 26 28 50 | 48 | 2400 | Secured | ool Staple
2018-03-
INE128S | 2023-03- 10.2 11 | CARE A:
07317 28 28 1% | 90 5.00 | Secured | ;oo | Stable
2018-04-
INE128S | 2023-03- 10.2 11 | CARE A:
07325 28 21 105 | 80 | 6500 | Secured | ;o o) Tstaple
2018-05-
INE128S | 2023-03- 10.2 11 | CAREA:
07333 28 28 10 | 60 | 6500 | Secured | oo | stable
2018-06-
INE128S | 2023-03- 10.2 11 | CAREA:
07341 28 28 100 | 60 | 6500 | Secured | oo staple
2019-03-
INE128S | 2022-03- 126 11 | ICRAA
07358 29 29 4% | 3 5.00 | Secured | ;oo | Stable
2019-04-
INE128S | 2024-04- 11.4 11 | ICRAA
07366 11 11 0% | B0 | 38000 | Secured | ;oo | Staple
2019-04-
INE128S | 2022-04- 12.6 11 | ICRAA
07374 16 16 4% 36 30.00 Secured times Stable
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Cou Amount Secured | Prim
Debentur | Maturity | Date of Tenu / ary Credit
- pon Outstan :
e Series Date allotment re . Unsecu | Secu | Rating
ding L
red rity
Mark
CARE PP
INE128S | 2022-07- | 2019-05- | et 1.1
07382 03 29 Link 38 20.00 Secured times MLD A
Stable
ed
2019-05-
INE128S | 2022-05- 12.6 1.1 | ICRAA
07390 28 28 a9 | 36 | 3000 | Secured | ;oo Siaple
2019-06-
INE128S | 2022-06- 12.6 1.1 | ICRAA
07408 28 28 a9 | 36 | 3500 | Secured | ;oo Siaple
2019-08-
INE128S | 2025-08- 11.8 1.1 | CAREA:
07416 28 28 8% 2 125.00 | Secured times Stable
2020-05-
INE128S | 2026-05- 12.7 1.1 | ICRAA
07424 13 13 50 | 36 | 1500 | Secured | ool Staple
2020-05-
INE128S | 2023-05- 10.5 1.1 | ICRAA
07432 28 2 0% | 36 | 1500 | Secured | ool Stable
2020-06-
INE128S | 2023-06- 11.0 1.25 | ICRAA
07440 12 12 0% | 38 | 2500 | Secured | 4o ol Staple
2020-06-
INE128S | 2023-04- 11.0 1.25 | ICRAA
07457 21 24 0% | 33 | 11500 | Secured | 4o ol Staple
2020-07-
INE128S | 2022-01- 9.75 1.1 | ICRAA
07465 03 03 9% | 18 | 5000 | Secured | io ol Staple
2020-07-
INE128S | 2022-01- 9.75 1.1 | ICRAA
07473 31 31 9 | 18 | 100.00 | Secured | oo ol Siaple
2020-08-
INE128S | 2022-02- 9.50 1.1 | ICRAA
07481 20 20 9% | 18 | 5000 | Secured | ool Staple
Mark PP-
INE128S | 2023-02- 20283:09' et 30 2500 | Secured 1.25 | MLDIIC
07499 22 Link ' times RAJA
ed Stable
2020-09-
INE128S | 2029-09- 10.9 1.1 | ICRAA
07507 30 30 10 | 108 | 70.00 | Secured | ;| Staple
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Cou Amount Secured | Prim
Debentur | Maturity | Date of Tenu / ary Credit
- pon Outstan :
e Series Date allotment re . Unsecu | Secu | Rating
ding L
red rity
INE128S | 2022-05- | 2020-11- | 9.50 11 ICRAA
07515 22 19 % | 18 | 2500 | Secured | yes | stable
Mark PP-
INE128S | 15/06/202 | 15/12/202 et 1.01 | MLDJIC
07523 3 0 Link | 30 | 20.00 | Secured | ;oos | RAJA
ed Stable
Mark PP-
INE128S | 15/03/202 | 15/12/202 et 1.01 | MLDJIC
07531 2 0 Link | 15 | 2000 | Secured | ool RAJA
ed Stable
Mark PP-MLD
INE128S | 2027-12- | 2020-12- et 1.25 [ICRA]
07549 16 16 Link | 84 | 7500 | Secured | oo | AAA(CE)
ed (Stable)
Mark PP-MLD
INE128S | 2027-12- | 2020-12- et 1.25 [ICRA]
07556 17 17 Link | 84 | 5000 | Secured | cooo | AAA(CE)
ed (Stable)

*Primary security over Exclusive charge on receivables of the company

List of Top 10 Debenture Holders (as on December 31, 2020):

(Rs. in Crores)

S. No. Name of the Lender Amount Outstanding
1. UTI INTERNATIONAL WEALTH CREATOR 4 195.00
2. FRANKLIN INDIA CREDIT RISK FUND 156.00
3. BANK OF INDIA 100.00
4. BANK OF MAHARASHTRA 75.00
5. NORTHERN ARC CAPITAL LIMITED 69.80
6. A K CAPITAL FINANCE LIMITED 54.37
7. PUNJAB AND SIND BANK 50.00
8. STATE BANK OF INDIA 50.00
9. UNIFI AIF 40.00
10. UNION BANK OF INDIA 40.00

The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with name of the counterparty
(like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group-company, etc) on behalf of whom it has been
issued. (if any):

NIL
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F. Details of Commercial Paper:
NIL

G. Details of rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally
Convertible Debentures / Preference Shares) as on December 31, 2020:

NIL

H. Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term
loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued
by the Company, in the past 5 years:

NIL

I Details of any outstanding borrowings taken / debt securities issued where taken / issued (i) for
consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount, or (iii)
in pursuance of an option:

NIL
4,10  Details of Promoters of the Company:
A. Details of Promoter Holding in Company as on latest quarter end, i.e. December 31, 2020:

Total Percentage (%0)
Total No. M. i shares Shareholding as No. of of shares
Name of . held in X
S. No. of Equity - percentage (%) shares pledged with
Shareholders dematerialised
shares £ of total no. of Pledged | respect to shares
orm .
equity shares owned

1. D. Lakshmipathy 3710771 3710771 13.65% Nil Nil
2. L. Hema 2089060 2089060 7.68% Nil Nil
3. R. Deenadayalan 163200 163200 0.60% Nil Nil
4. D. Varalakshmi 44770 44770 0.16% Nil Nil
5. L. Sritha 20000 20000 0.07% Nil Nil
411  Abridged version of the Audited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Information (like

Profit and Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for at least last three years

and auditor qualifications, if any.

Provided in Annexure V1 of this Information Memorandum.
4.12  Abridged version of Latest Audited/ Limited Review Half Yearly Consolidated and Standalone

Financial Information and auditors’ qualifications, if any:

Provided in Annexure V11 of this Information Memorandum.
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4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality
(e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting
in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time of Issue which may affect
the issue or the Investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the debt securities.

The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change at the time
of issue from the position as on the date of the last audited financial statements of the Issuer, which
may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest/ continue to invest in the debt securities of
the Issuer. The Issuer is in the process of capital raise which could result in change in the capital
structure.

Names of the Debentures Trustees and Consents thereof

The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Debentures is Catalyst Trusteeship Limited. Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited has given its written consent for its appointment as debenture trustee to the Issue
and inclusion of its name in the form and context in which it appears in this Information
Memorandum and in all the subsequent periodical communications sent to the Debenture Holders.
The consent letter from Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure IV of this Information
Memorandum.

Rating Rationale(s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening of the Issue)/ credit
rating letter issued (not older than one month on the date of opening of the Issue).

The Rating Agency has assigned a rating of Provisional PP-MLD [ICRA]JAAA(CE) (pronounced as
Provisional principal protected market linked debentures ICRA Triple A Credit Enhancement) with
“Stable” outlook to the Debentures. Instruments with this rating are considered to have highest
degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry lowest
credit risk.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document/ letter with
similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not contain
detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of payment by
the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer document.

The Debentures are credit enhanced inter alia by an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee to be
provided by the SPV Trustee in favour of the Debenture Trustee, having such terms and conditions
as more particularly set out in the Debenture Trust Deed and the relevant Transaction Documents.
Names of all the recognised stock exchanges where the debt securities are proposed to be listed:
The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE. The Issuer shall comply
with the requirements of the listing agreement for debt securities to the extent applicable to it on a
continuous basis.

Other details:

Debenture Redemption Reserve Creation:
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4.19

As per Section 71 of the Act, any company that intends to issue debentures must create a debenture
redemption reserve to which adequate amounts shall be credited out of the profits of the company
until the redemption of the debentures. However, at present under the Companies (Issuance of Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, non-banking financial companies are exempt from this
requirement in respect of privately placed debentures. Pursuant to this exemption, the Company does
not presently intend to create any reserve funds for the redemption of the Debentures.

Issue / instrument specific regulations:

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act
including the notified rules thereunder, the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the
applicable RBI guidelines.

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 6 (Other Information and Application
Process) of this Information Memorandum.

A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:

The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may be inspected at the
Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 AM to 4.00 PM on working days.

S. No. Nature of Contract

1. Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Atrticles of Association of the Issuer.

Board resolution dated June 10, 2020 read together with the resolution passed by
2. Business and Resource Committee of the Board of Directors on January 25, 2021
authorising the issue of Debentures offered under terms of this Disclosure Document

Shareholder resolution dated August 31, 2020 authorizing the issue of non-convertible
debentures by the Company.

Shareholder resolution dated August 31, 2020 authorizing the borrowing limits of the
Company and the creation of security in respect of such borrowings.

Copies of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years.

Letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited dated January 25, 2021 giving its consent to
act as Debenture Trustee.

Letter for Registrar and Transfer Agent.

4
5.
6. Credit rating letter from the Rating Agency dated January 25, 2021.
7
8
9

Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.

Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar &
Transfer Agent and NSDL.
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FSBFL NCD Covered MLD VI 2020

Five-Star Business Finance Limited

Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Principal
Protected Market-Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures

The Debentures are proposed to be secured inter alia by a first
ranking and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over: (i)
the Identified Receivables together with all right, title and
interest in relation thereto including the rights in relation to the
security interests created in connection therewith; (ii) the Cash
Collateral; and (iii) a first ranking and exclusive charge over all
right, title and interest of the Company in the SPV Trust,
whether as residual beneficiary or in connection with the
contribution deemed to be made available by the Company to
the SPV Trust in terms of the Assignment Documents.

The Company is issuing the Debentures with an intention to
create a ‘dual recourse bond’ structure upon occurrence of a
Trigger Event, i.e., in order to ensure that the Identified
Receivables is bankruptcy remote from the Company upon
occurrence of a Trigger Event.

Accordingly, upon occurrence of a Trigger Event, the
Company will be, without the need for any further notice in this
regard: (i) deemed to be assigning its right, title and interest in
the Identified Receivables to the SPV Trust; and (ii) assigning
its right, title and interest in the Cash Collateral to the SPV
Trust. The SPV Trust will be executing (within the timelines
stipulated herein) a guarantee and a deed of hypothecation in
favour of the Debenture Trustee, acknowledging that all
Identified Receivables acquired by the SPV Trust shall be
utilized for the purposes of redeeming the Debentures and shall
remain subject to an encumbrance in favour of the Debenture
Trustee and that the Cash Collateral shall continue to be utilized
in accordance with the terms set out under the Transaction
Documents.

Senior

Private Placement

The investor to whom this Disclosure Document is specifically
addressed, is eligible to apply for this private placement of
Debentures subject to fulfilling its respective investment
norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to it by
submitting all the relevant documents along with the
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Application Form. The persons to whom the Disclosure

Document has been circulated to, may include but not limited

to:

1. Financial Institutions: registered under the applicable laws

in India which are duly authorized to invest in Bonds;

Insurance companies

Provident, Gratuity, Pension & Superannuation Funds

Regional Rural Banks

Mutual Funds

Companies, Bodies Corporate authorized to Invest in

bonds

7. Trusts, Association of Persons, Societies registered under
the applicable laws in India which are duly authorized to
invest in bonds

8. FPIs

9. Individuals

10. Scheduled Commercial Banks

11. Co-operative Bank

12. Partnership Firms

13. HUF through Karta

oML N

The Debentures shall be listed on the Wholesale Debt Market
segment of the BSE within a period of 4 (Four) trading days
from the Issue Closing Date.

The Company shall at all times comply with Applicable Law
in relation to the issuance of the Debentures and the listing of
the Debentures on the BSE and shall further ensure all
approvals required from any Governmental Authority and
resolutions required to issue, list or maintain such listing of the
Debentures are in place.

The Company does hereby agree and undertake that it shall
(furnish all such information and documents as may be required
by the BSE and by SEBI for the continuous listing of the
Debentures. All expenses, costs, charges incurred for the
purpose of listing of the Debentures shall be borne and paid by
the Company.

In the event that the Debentures are not listed on the BSE within
a period of 4 (Four) trading days from the Issue Closing Date,
the Company shall pay default interest calculated at the rate of
1% (One Percent) per annum on the outstanding principal
amount of the Debentures over and above the Coupon Rate for
the period commencing from the Deemed Date of Allotment
and expiring on the date the Debentures are listed on the WDM
of the BSE.
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Provisional PP-MLD [ICRA]JAAA(CE) by the Rating Agency

Private placement of up to 1,250 (One Thousand Two Hundred
and Fifty) non-convertible debentures aggregating up to Rs.
125,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Twenty Five Crores
only) with a green shoe option of up to 250 (Two Hundred and
Fifty) non-convertible debentures aggregating up to Rs.
25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores only).

Green shoe option to retain oversubscription of an amount of
up to 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores only).

The monies raised through the issue the Debentures shall be
used for general corporate purposes in the ordinary course of
business of the issuer including for repayment/ re-financing of
existing debt.

The monies raised through the issue the Debentures shall be
used for general corporate purposes in the ordinary course of
business of the issuer including for repayment/ re-financing of
existing debt.

1. The coupon payable on the Debentures (“Coupon’) shall
be either linked to the performance of the Underlying
Index, and shall be determined in the following manner:
() if Final Fixing Level is less than or equal to 12%

(Twelve Percent), then the Coupon payable shall be an
amount which provides a rate of return (calculated on
XIRR basis using the Microsoft Excel function) of 9%
(Nine Percent) on the principal amount of the
Debentures;

(b) if Final Fixing Level is greater than 12% (Twelve
Percent) but less than or equal to 18% (Eighteen
Percent), then the Coupon payable shall be an amount
which provides a rate of return (calculated on XIRR
basis using the Microsoft Excel function) of 8.95%
(Eight Decimal Point Nine Five Percent) on the
principal amount of the Debentures;

(c) if Final Fixing Level is greater than 18% (Eighteen
Percent), the Coupon payable shall be NIL.

(The rate of Coupon as shall be determined from the above shall

hereinafter be referred to as the “Coupon Rate”).

2. While the Coupon has been promised to be paid on the
Scheduled Maturity Date or upon the exercise of Call
Option, as the case may be, the Company is expected to
meet payments of Coupon on the Post Trigger Expected
Payout Dates.
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3. Without the need for any further act or deed of the Parties

4.

upon the occurrence of a Trigger Event, the Coupon Rate

applicable on the Debentures shall become fixed and split

into two components as set out below:

(@) Promised Coupon: The Coupon promised to be paid
shall be an amount which provides a rate of return
(calculated on XIRR basis using the Microsoft Excel
function) of 15.25% (Fifteen Decimal Point Two Five
Percent) on the outstanding principal amount of the
Debentures, and shall accrue from the Deemed Date of
Allotment;

(b) Expected Coupon: In addition to the Promised Coupon,
subject to availability of cashflows, the Coupon
expected to be paid shall be an amount which provides
a rate of return (calculated on XIRR basis using the
Microsoft Excel function) of 20% (Twenty Percent) on
the outstanding principal amount of the Debentures
(after taking in consideration any amounts paid
towards the Promised Coupon), and shall accrue from
the Deemed Date of Allotment.

The Coupon shall be computed on Actual / Actual basis,
i.e. Actual / 365 (Three Hundred Sixty Five) days (or 366
(Three Hundred Sixty Six) days in the case of a leap year.

Without the need for any further act or deed of the Parties upon
the occurrence of a Trigger Event, the Coupon Rate applicable
on the Debentures shall become fixed and split into two
components as set out below:

1.

Promised Coupon: The Coupon promised to be paid shall
be an amount which provides a rate of return (calculated on
XIRR basis using the Microsoft Excel function) of 15.25%
(Fifteen Decimal Point Two Five Percent) on the
outstanding principal amount of the Debentures, and shall
accrue from the Deemed Date of Allotment;

Expected Coupon: In addition to the Promised Coupon,
subject to availability of cashflows, the Coupon expected
to be paid shall be an amount which provides a rate of
return (calculated on XIRR basis using the Microsoft Excel
function) of 20% (Twenty Percent) on the outstanding
principal amount of the Debentures (after taking in
consideration any amounts paid towards the Promised
Coupon), and shall accrue from the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

Please refer to the details provided in row titled ‘Coupon Rate’
above.
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Please refer to the details provided in row titled ‘Coupon Rate’
above.

Please refer to the details provided in row titled ‘Coupon Rate’
above.

N/A

The Coupon shall be computed on Actual / Actual basis, i.e.
Actual / 365 (Three Hundred Sixty Five) days (or 366 (Three
Hundred Sixty Six) days in the case of a leap year).

The Company shall be liable to pay the Debenture Holders
interest on application money, at the Coupon Rate for the
period commencing from the credit of subscription monies in
respect of the Debentures in the account of Company, ending
on the date falling 1 (One) day prior to the Deemed Date of
Allotment. The interest on application monies shall be paid by
the Company to the Debenture Holders, together with Coupon
payable, on the Maturity Date.

Without prejudice to the rights of the Debenture Trustee and/or
the Debenture Holders upon the occurrence of any default, in
case of failure by the Company in making payment of the
Outstanding Amounts as per the Debenture Documents or upon
occurrence of any Event of Default, the Company shall be
liable to pay default interest which shall be calculated at the rate
of 2% (Two Percent) per annum on the outstanding principal
amount of the Debentures over and above the Coupon Rate.

In the event that the Debentures are not listed on the WDM of
the BSE within a period of 4 (Four) trading days from the Issue
Closing Date, the Issuer shall pay default interest calculated at
the rate of 1% (One Percent) per annum on the outstanding
principal amount of the Debentures over and above the Coupon
Rate for the period commencing from the Deemed Date of
Allotment and expiring on the date the Debentures are listed on
the WDM of the BSE.

If not already executed, the Company shall execute the
Debenture Trust Deed within 3 (Three) months from the
closure of the issue of the Debentures, failing which the
Company shall pay interest of at least 2% (Two Percent) per
annum to the Debenture Holders, without prejudice to any
liability arising on account of violation of the provisions of any
applicable law, over and above the Coupon Rate on the
Debentures, till the execution of the Debenture Trust Deed.

27 (Twenty Seven) months and 1 (One) day from the Deemed
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Date of Allotment provided however that in the event any
Trigger Event occurs prior to (or on) the date referred to above,
the Scheduled Maturity Date shall stand extended to the date
falling on the expiry of 84 (Eighty Four) months from the
Deemed Date of Allotment

The date of falling on the expiry of 27 (Twenty Seven) months
and 1 (One) day from the Deemed Date of Allotment being
April 30, 2023, provided however that in the event any Trigger
Event occurs prior to (or on) the date referred to above, the
Scheduled Maturity Date shall stand extended to the date
falling on the expiry of 84 (Eighty Four) months from the
Deemed Date of Allotment i.e. January 29, 2028.

The Debentures are structured in such a manner that the
principal amount of the Debentures and the Coupon due
thereon are promised to be paid on the Scheduled Maturity Date
or upon the exercise of Call Option, as the case may be, unless
a Trigger Event has occurred prior to the Scheduled Maturity
Date or the exercise of Call Option.

The expected payout schedule with respect to the Debentures
upon the occurrence of any Trigger Event, shall be prepared by
the Company and shared by the Company with the Debenture
Trustee and SPV Trustee, and this schedule shall be prepared
on the basis that payments will be made to the Debenture
Holders on the 22" day of every calendar month (“Post
Trigger Expected Payout Dates™). It is clarified that if the
22" day of any calendar month is not a Business Day, the
immediately succeeding Business Day will be treated as the
Post Trigger Expected Payout Dates.

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh only) per Debenture plus
accrued Coupon if any.

NA

January 25, 2021

15 (Fifteen) Business Days prior to the Expected Maturity Date

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh) per Debenture

NA

NA

NA
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NA

NA

1. The Company shall have the option to redeem the

Debentures in full by paying all the Outstanding Amounts
in relation to the Debentures to the Debenture Holders on
the Expected Maturity Date or upon the occurrence of a
Trigger Event or on any day post the occurrence of a
Trigger Event (“Call Option”). For the purposes of
exercising this option, the Company shall provide a written
notice to the Debenture Trustee at least 30 (Thirty)
Business Days prior to the Expected Maturity Date and
shall redeem the Debentures in full by the Expected
Maturity Date by depositing the Outstanding Amounts into
such account as required in terms of the Debenture Trust
Deed on the Expected Maturity Date by 2.00 PM, which
shall be utilised by the Debenture Trustee for payment to
the Debenture Holders as per the Transaction Documents.

In the event the Company proposes to exercise the Call
Option upon occurrence of a Trigger Event, the Company
shall provide a written confirmation in this regard to the
Debenture Trustee within 7 (seven) Business Days from
the occurrence of a Trigger Event. In the event that the
Company has issued such a notice, the Company shall
redeem the Debentures in full on, or prior to, the expiry of
30 (thirty) days from the date of occurrence of the relevant
Trigger Event.

In the event the Company proposes to exercise the Call
Option on any day post the occurrence of a Trigger Event,
the Company shall provide a written confirmation in this
regard to the Debenture Trustee at least 30 (Thirty)
Business Days prior to exercising such Call Option. In the
event that the Company has issued such a notice, the
Company shall redeem the Debentures in full on, or prior
to, the expiry of the said 30 (Thirty) Business Days.

In the event that the Company does not exercise the Call
Option available to the Company on the Expected Maturity
Date or having exercised the Call Option fails to redeem
the Debentures in full by the Expected Maturity Date, then
the Company shall be required to (unless otherwise agreed
to by the Majority Debenture Holders) redeem the
Debentures in full on, or prior to, the expiry of 20 (Twenty)
Business Days from the Expected Maturity Date by
depositing the Outstanding Amounts into such account as
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required in terms of the Debenture Trust Deed which shall
be utilised by the Debenture Trustee for payment to the
Debenture Holders as per the Transaction Documents.

5. Further, in the event that the Company does not exercise
the Call Option available to the Company on the Expected
Maturity Date or fails to redeem the Debentures in full by
the Expected Maturity Date for any reason whatsoever, the
Trigger Event consequences shall follow, including the
consequence regarding fixation of Coupon Rate as set out
in sub-paragraph 3 under the row titled “Coupon Rate”
under this paragraph 4.20.

Shall be the Expected Maturity Date i.e. April 30, 2023, or upon
the occurrence of any Trigger Event or on any day post the
occurrence of any Trigger Event, as the case may be.

At Par, along with the Coupon to be paid as per Coupon Rate

Please refer to the details provided in row titled ‘Call Option’
above.

In the event that post the occurrence of any Trigger Event, the
Company (in its capacity as the servicer of ldentified Loans)
fails to deposit the collections pertaining to the Identified
Receivables into the SPV Account (bank account of the Trust
as identified under the Assignment Documents) within 10
(Ten) calendar days from the expiry of the scheduled timelines
agreed for such deposit under the Assignment Document for
any reason whatsoever and the Minimum Security Cover falls
below 1 (One) time (“Accelerated Redemption Event”), the
Company shall redeem the Debentures in full without the
requirement of any further action from the Debenture Trustee.

Upon the occurrence of the Accelerated Redemption Event, all
the Outstanding Amounts shall become due and payable by the
Company within 30 (Thirty) days from the date of Accelerated
Redemption Event, and the Company shall deposit all the
Outstanding Amounts into such account as required in terms of
the Debenture Trust Deed , within the abovementioned
timeline, which monies shall be utilised towards redemption of
Debentures as per the Transaction Documents.

After the expiry of 12 (Twelve) months from the Deemed Date
of Allotment, any of the Debenture Holders may request, in
writing (“Premature Exit Request”), the Company to redeem
the Debentures held by the Debenture Holders.

Upon receipt of a Premature Exit Request, the Company may
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at its option, without being obliged to do so, redeem (or buy
back or cause to be purchased) the Debentures held by the
Debenture Holder(s) who has issued the Premature Exit
Request.

The amounts payable to the Debenture Holders who have
issued the Premature Exit Request, assuming that the Company
has decided to accommaodate the request, would be an amount
mutually agreed between the Company and the Debenture
Holder(s) who has issued the Premature Exit Request

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained elsewhere,
the Company may at any time buy back the Debentures held by
any of the Debenture Holders (in the event that the relevant
Debenture Holders agree to same) at a price mutually agreed
between the Company and the relevant Debenture Holders.

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh Only) per Debenture

10 (Ten) Debentures and in multiples of 1 (One) Debenture
thereafter

January 29, 2021

January 29, 2021

January 29, 2021

January 29, 2021

Demat only

Demat only

Cheque(s)/ electronic clearing services (ECS)/credit through
RTGS system/funds transfer to the specified bank account of
the Debenture Holder.

NSDL

“Business Day” means any day of the week (excluding
Sundays or any day which is a public holiday for the purpose
of Section 25 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 (26 of
1881) in Mumbai and any other day on which banks are closed
for general business in Mumbai, India) shall be a Business Day
for the purpose of the Debenture Trust Deed.

In the event that any of the Record Dates or the Post Trigger
Expected Payout Dates falls on a day that is not a Business Day,
the immediately succeeding Business Day shall be considered
as the effective date(s) for that payment or determination, as the
case may be.
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In the event that the date for performance of any event or the
Maturity Date falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the
immediately preceding Business Day shall be considered as the
effective date for that payment or the date for performance of
such event.

Means 10 (Ten) Business Days prior to any date on which on
which any payment is to be made by the Company/ the
Debenture Trustee to the Debenture Holders

As set out in Annexure V herein

The security to be provided or caused to be provided by the
Company as security for the discharge of the Outstanding
Amounts in relation to the Debentures shall consist of:

(a) a first ranking and exclusive charge over the Identified
Receivables together with all right, title and interest in
relation thereto including the rights in relation to the
security interests created in connection therewith;

(b) a first ranking and exclusive charge over the Cash
Collateral;

(c) afirst ranking and exclusive charge over all right, title and
interest of the Company in the SPV Trust, whether as
residual beneficiary or in connection with the contribution
deemed to be made available by the Company to the SPV
Trust in terms of the Assignment Documents.

(collectively referred to as the “Security” / “Security
Interest”).

The Company shall submit to the Debenture Trustee, on a
monthly basis, details of the collections towards the Identified
Receivables, in such format as mutually agreed.

The security cover for the Debentures shall be tested on the
basis of the value of the Identified Receivables. The expected
security cover which is to be provided by the Identified
Receivables is at least 1.25 (One Decimal Point Two Five)
times of the principal amount outstanding on the Debentures
along with interest accrued thereon (“Minimum Security
Cover”).

For the purposes of determining whether Minimum Security
Cover is being maintained: (i) only the principal amounts of the
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Identified Receivables shall be considered; (ii) if any of the
Identified Receivables are due and payable after the expiry of
83 (Eighty Three) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment,
then such Identified Receivables will not be taken into
consideration; (iii) the principal amounts outstanding under any
of the Identified Loan Agreements, with respect to which there
are overdues for more than 30 (Thirty) days, shall not be taken
into consideration; (iv) if the principal amounts outstanding
under the Identified Loan Agreements overdue for more than 1
(One) day but less than 30 (Thirty) days exceeds 5% (Five
Percent) of the total principal outstanding under the Identified
Loan Agreements, then the entire principal amounts pertaining
to all the Identified Loans which are overdue for a period of
more than 1 (One) day but less than 30 (Thirty) days, will not
be taken into consideration for testing whether the Minimum
Security Cover is being maintained.

The Minimum Security Cover will be tested on a monthly basis,
at the end of each month. In the event that the Minimum
Security Cover is not being maintained at any time, the
Company shall identify additional loan receivables which meet
the Eligibility Criteria, which additional loan receivables shall
be provided as security by the Company in favour of the
Debenture Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Deed of
Hypothecation within 5 (Five) Business days of the close of the
month. Such additional loan receivables shall then form part of
the ‘Identified Receivables’ in the manner contemplated under
the Deed of Hypothecation.

Trigger Event Consequences:

1. The Company is issuing the Debentures with an intention
to create a ‘dual recourse bond’ structure upon occurrence
of a Trigger Event, i.e., ensure that the Identified
Receivables is bankruptcy remote from the Company upon
occurrence of a Trigger Event.

2. Accordingly, upon occurrence of a Trigger Event, the
Company shall, without the need for any further notice in
this regard, assign its right, title and interest in the
Identified Receivables and Cash Collateral to the SPV
Trust together with all right, title and interest in relation
thereto including the rights in relation to the security
interests created in connection therewith, subject to the
charge created over such Identified Receivables in favour
of the Debenture Trustee. The SPV Trust shall execute an
unconditional and irrevocable guarantee (“SPV
Guarantee”) and a deed of hypothecation in favour of the
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Debenture Trustee, acknowledging that all Identified
Receivables and Cash Collateral acquired by the SPV Trust
shall be utilized for the purposes of redeeming the
Debentures and shall remain subject to an encumbrance in
favour of the Debenture Trustee. The transfer of Identified
Receivables and Cash Collateral on the occurrence of
Trigger Event would not discharge the Company of its
obligations in relation to the Debentures including its
obligations with respect to payment of the Outstanding
Amounts in terms of the Debenture Documents and the said
obligations of the Company shall continue till the Final
Settlement Date. The SPV Guarantee shall at all times, rank
senior to any beneficial payments made by the SPV Trust
to the Company.

Upon the occurrence of a Trigger Event, the Cash
Collateral shall be drawn upon and utilised towards
payment to Debenture Holders in the manner set out in the
Transaction Documents.

Upon the occurrence of any Trigger Event, all cashflows
collected towards the Identified Receivables shall be
utilized on the Post Trigger Expected Payout Dates solely
for the purposes of redemption of the Debentures in the
manner set out in the Transaction Documents.

Shall mean:
1. The Debenture Documents;
2. The Assignment Documents.

The Company shall have submitted the following to the
Debenture Trustee:

1.

2.

Certified true copy of the constitutional documents of the
Company.

Certified true copies of the special resolutions of the
shareholders of the Company under Sections 42 of the Act
and under Section 180 of the Act (if applicable).

A certified true copy of the resolution of the board of
directors of the Company under Sections 71 and 179 of the
Act and the SEBI regulations, (i) approving the issue of the
Debentures and creation of Security for the Debentures; (ii)
approving the terms of the transactions contemplated by
the relevant Debenture Documents; (iii) approving the
transfer/assignment of Identified Receivables to the SPV
on occurrence of Trigger Event; (iv) approving the terms
of the transactions contemplated by the Assignment
Documents (iv) resolving to execute the relevant
Debenture Documents and the Assignment Documents;
and (v) authorising a specified person or persons to execute
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the relevant Debenture Documents and relevant
Assignment Documents on its behalf and to do all such acts
and things as may be necessary to give effect to the relevant
Debenture  Documents and relevant  Assignment
Documents and the transactions contemplated by the
relevant Debenture Documents and relevant Assignment
Documents.

The Company shall have filed the resolutions (if
applicable) specified in 2 and 3 above with the Registrar of
Companies prior to issuing the Disclosure Document.

A certificate of an independent practicing chartered
accountant, certifying that there are no proceedings
pending against the Company (as an assessee) under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 which would warrant the
requirement of permission / certificate from the Assessing
Officer under Section 281 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for
the creation of Security.

Execution of the Debenture Trustee Agreement.

The Company shall have submitted to the Debenture
Holders / Debenture Trustee, all required documents for the
purpose of satisfying its respective know your customer
requirements.

Issuance of this Disclosure Document and Private
Placement Offer Letter, containing disclosures required in
terms of the SEBI (ILDS) Regulations and the Companies
Act.

The Company shall have submitted to the Debenture
Trustee its audited account statements for the most recent
financial year or audited financial half-year.

. The Debenture Trustee should have received the draft legal

opinion in relation to the Transaction Documents from
Wadia Ghandy & Co., in such form and manner as is
acceptable to the Debenture Trustee.

. Payment of legal and other fees and expenses in connection

with the issuance of the Debentures, which are to be borne
upfront.

. Receipt of draft Rating Rationale from the Rating Agency,

confirming the expected rating.

. Creation of Cash Collateral in the form of fixed deposit(s)

(which fixed deposit shall be lien marked in favour of the
Debenture Trustee) with Indusind Bank Limited in terms
of this Deed and written confirmation thereof to be
provided to the Debenture Trustee.

. Evidence that all the conditions precedent have been

satisfied by the Company to the satisfaction of the
Debenture Trustee and the receipt by the Debenture
Trustee of a conditions precedent compliance certificate in
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this regard, in a form and manner acceptable to the
Debenture Trustee.

The Company shall ensure that upon issuance of the
Debentures, the allotment and the dematerialised credit of
the same occurs within 1 (One) Business Day from the
Deemed Date of Allotment.

The Company shall ensure that the Debentures are listed
and traded on the BSE within 4 (Four) trading days from
the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

The execution of the Debenture Documents and the
relevant Assignment Documents, in the form and manner
acceptable to the Debenture Trustee, within a maximum
period of 15 (Fifteen) Business Days from the Deemed
Date of Allotment;

Creation of security over the Identified Receivables and the
Cash Collateral and other assets as identified in Deed of
Hypothecation and intimation of the details of the
Identified Receivables to the Debenture Trustee within a
maximum period of 15 (Fifteen) Business Days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment.

Confirmation that the Identified Receivable over which
Security is created is in line with the Eligibility Criteria and
additional criteria, if any, indicated by the Debenture
Holders within a maximum period of 15 (Fifteen) Business
Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Filing of a return of allotment on the issue of the
Debentures in Form PAS-3 specified pursuant to Rule 14
of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 by the Issuer, with the registrar of companies,
within 15 (Fifteen) days from the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

Receipt of final legal opinion from Wadia Ghandy & Co.
Registration of hypothecation over the property over which
the Security Interest is created in terms of the Debenture
Documents, with the Registrar of Companies and Central
Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and
Security Interest of India (CERSAI) within a maximum
period of 30 (thirty) days from the date of execution of the
Deed of Hypothecation.

The Debenture Trustee should have received the tax
opinion in relation to the structure contemplated under the
Transaction Documents from such firm as may be agreed
upon by the Debenture Trustee (acting on behalf of the
Debenture Holders), in such form and manner as is
acceptable to the Debenture Trustee, on or prior to the
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10.

11.

12.

Deemed Allotment Date, within 30 (Thirty) days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment.

The Company shall ensure that the agreement for Cash
Collateral is executed and the Cash Collateral is transferred
to the Cash Collateral account (to be identified in the
Transaction Documents) and maintained in the form of
fixed deposit(s) which shall be lien marked in favour of the
Debenture Trustee and written confirmation thereof is
provided to the Debenture Trustee, within a maximum
period of 60 (Sixty) days from the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

The Company shall ensure that it receives the final rating
in respect of the Debentures and submits the final rating
letter to the Debenture Trustee within 60 (Sixty) days from
the Deemed Date of Allotment.

A certificate by: (i) an independent chartered accountant
certifying the Purpose of the proceeds of the Debentures,
to be submitted within a maximum period of 90 (Ninety)
days from the Deemed Date of Allotment; and (ii) the
statutory auditor of the Company certifying the Purpose of
the proceeds of the Debentures, to be submitted.

If one or more of the events specified below happen(s), the
same shall constitute a “Trigger Event”:

1.

2.

Any corporate action, legal proceedings or other procedure
or step is taken in relation to the Company (including the
making of an application, the presentation of a petition, the
filing or service of a notice or the passing of a resolution)
in relation to:

(@) the suspension of payments, a moratorium of any
indebtedness, winding-up, insolvency, dissolution,
administration or reorganisation of the Company with
an intention of winding up or liquidating or declaring
insolvent the Company (by way of voluntary
arrangement, scheme of arrangement or otherwise)
and which is not withdrawn/dismissed/cured within
10 (Ten) Business Days; or

(b) a composition, compromise, assignment or
arrangement with any creditor of the Company; or

(c) the appointment of a liquidator, supervisor, receiver,
administrative receiver, administrator, compulsory
manager, trustee or other similar officer in respect of
the Company or any of its assets.

Failure of the Issuer to comply with any of the covenants

set out under any of the Debenture Documents or any of

the Assignment Documents (including without limitation
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failure to comply with paragraph Il (Information
Covenants) of Annexure V herein, which breach if capable
of being remedied has not been remedied to the satisfaction
of the Debenture Trustee, within a maximum period of 20
(Twenty) days from occurrence;

Any or all of the representations and warranties provided
by the Company under any Debenture Document or any of
the Assignment Documents, being untrue, incomplete,
incorrect or misleading;

Occurrence of an Event of Default.

The rating of the Debentures is downgraded from ‘AAA’
to ‘AA+’ or below;

The credit rating of the Company is downgraded below ‘A’
by any rating agency;

Failure on the part of the Company to maintain Minimum
Security Cover;

The capital adequacy ratio of the Company, calculated in
accordance with RBI guidelines, falling below 17%
(Seventeen Percent);

The gross non-performing assets of the Company exceeds
4% (Four Percent);

. The net non-performing assets of the Company exceeds 3%

(Three Percent);

. If there is any negative cumulative asset liability mismatch

for the Company as at the end of each financial quarter,
calculated for the next 12 (Twelve) months on the basis of
the expected assets and liabilities;

. Failure on the part of the Company to exercise the Call

Option, or after having exercised the Call Option, failure to
redeem the Debentures pursuant to such exercise on or
prior to the Expected Maturity Date;

. Failure on the part of the Company to redeem the

Debentures on or prior to the Expected Maturity Date;

. Failure on the part of the Company to meet the prefunding

obligations;

. Any change in Applicable Law which in the opinion of the

Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of the
Majority Debenture Holders), would invalidate the
assignment of the Identified Receivables to the SPV Trust;
provided that for triggering the said event, the Debenture
Trustee (acting on the instructions of the Majority
Debenture Holders) shall be entitled to require the
Company to obtain at the cost and expense of the Company
a legal opinion confirming such change in Applicable Law
and the consequences thereof from any of the following
legal counsels, which legal opinion shall be promptly
shared with the Debenture Holders by the Debenture
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

Trustee (upon receipt thereof): (i) Cyril Amarchand
Mangaldas, (ii) Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas, (iii)
Khaitan & Co., (iv) Wadia Ghandy & Co. and (v) Phoenix
Legal,

The Company has defaulted in making any payments due
on Financial Indebtedness incurred by the Company;

If one or more legal or governmental proceedings have
been initiated against the Company, which in the opinion
of the Debenture Trustee has a Material Adverse Effect;
The Company is in default in relation to servicing
obligations (by whatever name called) undertaken by the
Company for securitisation transactions, where the
originator is the Company;

Any expropriation, attachment, sequestration, distress or
execution affects any assets of the Company, which in the
opinion of the Debenture Trustee has a Material Adverse
Effect;

The Company repudiates a Debenture Document to which
it is a party or evidences an intention to repudiate
Debenture Documents to which it is a party;

The Company ceasing or threatening to cease to carry on
its respective business;

One or more events, conditions or circumstances whether
related or not, has occurred or is reasonably expected to
occur which, in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee, could
have a Material Adverse Effect;

It is or becomes unlawful for the Company to perform any
of its obligations under the Debenture Documents
including relating to the Outstanding Amounts and/or the
Security; and

If the Debenture Documents or any part thereof ceases, for
any reason whatsoever, to be valid and binding or in full
force and effect.

Upon the occurrence of any Trigger Event:

1.

The Scheduled Maturity Date shall, automatically without
the need for any further deed or action, stand extended such
that the Scheduled Maturity Date shall fall on January 29,
2028 i.e. 84 (Eighty Four) months from the Deemed Date
of Allotment;

The consequences set out under - the sub-heading “Trigger
Event Consequences” in the row titled “Description of
Security” under this paragraph 4.20, under the row titled
“Call Option” (if exercised by the Company), and the
payment mechanism post Trigger Event as set out in the
Debenture Trust Deed, shall ensue;
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The Coupon Rate shall stand increased as set out under sub-
paragraph 3 under the row titled “Coupon Rate”, without
the need for any further act or deed of the Parties and the
Promised Coupon shall become payable on a monthly basis
as per the terms of this Deed and the Expected Coupon is
expected to be paid from the excess cashflows as per the
terms of this Deed;

The SPV Guarantee would be deemed to be invoked and
all collections shall be routed and deposited in the SPV
Account by the Company in its capacity as the servicer as
more particularly set out in the SPV Guarantee and shall be
utilised for meeting payment to the Debenture Holders as
per the ‘Waterfall Mechanism’ set out in the SPV Trust
Deed,

The Company shall not, without the prior written consent
of the Debenture Trustee, declare or pay any dividend or
make any other distributions to its shareholders;

The Debenture Trustee shall be entitled to appoint a
Nominee Director on the board of the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed;
and

The Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of the
Majority Debenture Holders) shall be entitled to appoint an
alternate collection / servicing agent in relation to the
Identified Receivables.

If one or more of the events specified below, happen(s), the
same shall constitute an “Event of Default”:

1.

Failure on the part of the Company to make payment of all
or any part of Outstanding Amounts, on the Scheduled
Maturity Date;

If the Company does not comply with its obligations to
assign the Identified Receivables and/ or Cash Collateral to
the SPV upon the occurrence of a Trigger Event;

A Trigger Event has occurred, and the Debentures have not
been entirely redeemed after utilising proceeds received
from liquidation of the Identified Receivables and the Cash
Collateral;

Failure of the Company to carry out the obligations as a
consequence of the Accelerated Redemption Event;

Post the occurrence of a Trigger Event, any failure by the
Company (in its capacity as servicer for the Identified
Loans) to deposit the Identified Receivables collected into
the SPV Account within 10 (Ten) calendar days from the
expiry of the scheduled timelines for deposit of the same as
set out under the Assignment Documents.
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SEBI has issued vide circular no.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22,
2020 (“SEBI REF Circular”), the guidelines/ instructions in
relation to creation of Recovery Expense Fund (“REF”) in
order to enable the debenture trustees to take prompt action for
enforcement of security in case of ‘default’ in listed debt
securities to be used in the manner decided in the meeting of
the holders of debt securities. The Company will create and
maintain a Recovery Expense Fund as per the provisions of the
regulations issued by SEBI and the SEBI REF Circular, as
amended form time to time, and if during the currency of these
presents, any guidelines are formulated (or modified or revised)
by any Governmental Authority under Applicable Law in
respect of creation/maintenance of the Recovery Expense
Fund, the Company shall abide by such guidelines and execute
all such supplemental letters, agreements and deeds of
modifications as may be required by the Debenture Trustee
(who shall forthwith forward them to the Debenture Holders)
and shall also cause the same to be registered, where necessary.

Details:

The Company shall within the timelines prescribed under the
SEBI REF Circular create REF in relation to the Issue, by
deposit of an amount equal to 0.01% of the Issue size subject
to maximum of Rs. 25 lakhs towards REF with BSE in such
form as prescribed under the SEBI REF Circular.

Purpose:

In the event of default, the Debenture Trustee shall obtain the
consent of Debenture Holders for enforcement of security and
shall inform the same to BSE. BSE will release the amount
lying in the REF to the Debenture Trustee within 5 working
days of receipt of such intimation.

The REF will be refunded to the Issuer in accordance with the
SEBI REF Circular.

Please refer to Annexure V herein, the row titled
“Consequences of Trigger Event” under paragraph 4.20 and
row titled “Consequences of Events of Default” under
paragraph 4.20

On and at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default,

the Debenture Trustee shall:

1. declare that all or part of the Outstanding Amounts be
immediately due and payable;
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2. if so directed by the Majority Debenture Holder(s), enforce
the charge over the Secured Property in accordance with
the terms of the Transaction Documents;

3. exercise any other right that the Debenture Trustee and / or
Debenture Holder(s) may have under the Debenture
Documents or under Indian law.

In the event the Company defaults in making any payments due
on Financial Indebtedness incurred it, the same shall be
considered as a Trigger Event

To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on
behalf of the Debenture Holders. All rights and remedies under
the Debenture Documents shall rest in and be exercised by the
Debenture Trustee without having it referred to the Debenture
Holders. Any payment made by the Company to the Debenture
Trustee, for the benefit of the Debenture Holders, shall
discharge the Company to the Debenture Holders.

As set out in in Section 3 (Risk Factors) of this Disclosure
Document.

As per Annexure 11 to this Disclosure Document.

The Debentures and documentation will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of India and the Courts
in New Delhi shall have jurisdiction to determine any dispute
arising in relation to the Debentures.

ICRA Analytics Limited, appointed valuation agency as
stipulated by SEBI vide circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/17/2011
dated September 28, 2011, as amended from time to time

The Valuation Agency will publish a valuation on its website
at least once every calendar week. The valuation shall be
available on the website of the Valuation Agency and the
Issuer.

The latest and historical valuations for these Debentures will be
published on the website of the Issuer www.fivestargroup.in
and the Valuation Agency(ies) www.icranalytics.com.

Upon request by any Debenture/NCD Holder for the valuation
of these Debentures/NCDs, the Issuer shall provide them with
the latest valuation.

The fees payable to the Valuation Agent shall be borne solely
by the Issuer and the same shall not exceed 0.02% (Zero
Decimal Point Zero Two Percent Percent) on the face value of
the outstanding Debentures.
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Note:
1. While the debt securities are secured to the tune of 100% of the principal and interest amount or as

per the terms of Information Memorandum, in favour of Debenture Trustee, it is the duty of the
Debenture Trustee to monitor that the security is maintained, however, the recovery of 100% of the
amount shall depend on the market scenario prevalent at the time of enforcement of the security.

2. The penal interest rates mentioned above as payable by the Issuer are independent of each other

3. In the event of any conflict between the terms set out herein and the Debenture Trust Deed, the terms
of the Debenture Trust Deed shall prevail.

4.21  Undertakings — Creation of Security
The Company hereby confirms that the Secured Property over which charge is created / proposed to

be created in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of the Debenture Holders) to secure
the obligations of the Company in relation to the Debentures, are free from any encumbrances.
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()
(b)
()
(d)
(€)
()

(9)

SECTION 5: WILFUL DEFAULT RELATED DISCLOSURES

Name of the bank declaring the entity as a wilful defaulter: None

The year in which the entity is declared as a wilful defaulter: None

Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a wilful defaulter: None

Name of the entity declared as a wilful defaulter: None

Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: None

Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the issuer in order to enable Investors to take informed
decisions: None

Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: None
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SECTION 6: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Disclosure Document, the Private Placement Offer
Letter, Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Debenture
Documents.

6.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable subject to the provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed. The Debenture(s)
shall be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and other
Applicable Laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred subject to and in
accordance with the rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL/CDSL and the relevant DPs of the transferor
or transferee and any other Applicable Laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The normal procedure
followed for transfer of securities held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these
Debentures held in dematerialised form. The seller should give delivery instructions containing details of the
buyer’s DP account to his DP.

6.2 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the Debenture
Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by cheque/ECS/ NEFT/fund
transfer/RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose hames appear on the list of beneficiaries maintained by
the Depository(ies). The names would be as per Depository(ies) records on the record date fixed for the
purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit
corporate action. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by
NEFT/RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

6.3 Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to Applicable Laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or
part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the Issuer, with its
subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies,
as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for
use of the aforesaid information.

6.4 Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than those
available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture Holders the right to
receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the shareholders of the Issuer.

6.5 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or

reject any application for subscription to the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason
thereof.
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6.6 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors (as given hereunder) may apply for the Debentures by completing the Application
Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the instructions contained therein. The
minimum number of Debentures that can be applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the
Application Form. No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application forms should be
duly completed in all respects and applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected.
The name of the applicant’s bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the
applicant. This is required for the applicant’s own safety and these details will be printed on the refund orders
and /or redemptions warrants.

The applicant should transfer payments required to be made in relation to the Issue by NEFT/RTGS, to the
bank account of the Issuer as per the details mentioned in paragraph 6.10 hereinbelow.

6.7 Application Procedure

Potential investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the Disclosure
Document during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date (both dates
inclusive) and by filling out Part - B of the Private Placement Offer Letter. The Issuer reserves the right to
change the issue schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any
reasons or prior notice. The Issue will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during
the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

6.8 Fictitious Application
All fictitious applications will be rejected.
6.9 Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any application, in
part or in full, without assigning any reason. Subject to the aforesaid, in case of over subscription, priority
will be given to investors on a first come first serve basis. The investors will be required to remit the funds
as well as submit the duly completed Application Form and Part - B of the Private Placement Offer Letter
along with other necessary documents to Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

6.10 Payment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh
only) per Debenture is payable along with the making of an application. Applicants can remit the application
amount through RTGS or any other permitted mode on Pay-in Date. The details of the bank account of the
Issuer for pay-in of application monies are as under:

Bank Name RBL Bank Limited
Bank Account No. 409000464102
Account Type Current Account
Bank Branch Name and Address T Nagar, Chennai
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| IFS Code [RATN0000113

6.11  Eligible Investors

The following categories of investors, when specifically approached and have been identified upfront, are
eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment
norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant documents along
with the Application Form (“Eligible Investors”):

a) Financial Institutions: registered under the Applicable Laws in India which are duly authorized to
invest in Bonds;

b) Insurance Companies

C) Provident, Gratuity, Pension & Superannuation Funds

d) Regional Rural Banks
e) Mutual Funds

f) Companies, Bodies Corporate authorized to Invest in bonds

0) Trusts, Association of Persons, Societies registered under the Applicable Laws in India which are
duly authorized to invest in bonds

h) FPIs

i) Individuals

)} Scheduled Commercial Banks

k) Co-operative Bank

)} Partnership Firms

m) HUF through Karta

n) Any other person (not being an individual or a group of individuals) eligible to invest in the
Debentures.

All Eligible Investors are required to check and comply with Applicable Law(s) including the relevant rules
/ regulations / guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue of Debentures and the Company, is
not in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor,
neither is the Company required to check or confirm the same.

Although above investors are eligible to apply however only those investors, who are individually addressed
through direct communication by the Company/ Arranger, are eligible to apply for the Debentures. No other
person may apply. Hosting of the Information Memorandum on the website of the BSE should not be
construed as an offer or an invitation to offer to subscribe to the Debentures and the same has been hosted
only as it is stipulated under the SEBI (ILDS) Regulations. Eligible Investors should check their eligibility
before making any investment.

All potential investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential investors in the Issue may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory
requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities by such categories of
persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory requirements
applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants ought to seek
independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.
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6.12  Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP’s of NSDL/CDSL prior
to making the application.
b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number and DP

- ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form”.

C) Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s respective beneficiary
account(s) with the DP.
d) For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to those

appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should necessarily be
in the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with the DP.

e) If incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be deemed to be an incomplete
application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the sole discretion of the Issuer.

f) For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the applicant as
registered with his/her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the applicant. The applicant is
therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic details given in the Application
Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer
would not be liable for the losses, if any.

0) The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose names
appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the Depository(ies) as on the record date. In
case of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not identified in the records of the
Depository(ies) as on the record date, the Issuer would keep in abeyance the payment of the
redemption amount or other benefits, until such time that the beneficial owner is identified by the
Depository(ies) and conveyed to the Issuer, whereupon the redemption amount and benefits will be
paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

6.13  Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with CDSL and / or NSDL for issue and holding of Debenture
in dematerialised form.

6.14  List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the Depository(ies) to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each record date.
This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

6.15  Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the
names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the investor and the tax exemption
certificate/document of the investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed
Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified
to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as may be specified by the
Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.
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In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a certified
true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along with other
constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making the application,
failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application
in whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures
of all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application
Form.

6.16  Procedure for application

The investor should make a separate application in respect of each scheme of the mutual fund registered with
the SEBI and such applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that the application made
by the investor clearly indicated their intention as to the scheme for which the application has been made.

The application forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of:

A SEBI registration certificate

B. Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions

C. Specimen signature of authorized signatories

6.17  Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details
Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant and the

magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of redemption amount
and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through NEFT/RTGS.

6.18  Mode of Payment
All payments must be made through NEFT/RTGS/Cheque/ Fund Transfer as set out in the Application Form.
6.19 Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be dispatched
within 7 (Seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

6.20 Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s)/redemption warrant(s)/demand draft(s)/credit
through RTGS system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list
of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the Issuer on maturity
to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holder(s) on the
Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform NSDL and accordingly the account of the
Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL will be adjusted.
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On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the liability of the
Issuer shall stand extinguished.

6.21  Right to further issue the Debentures

The Company reserves right to make multiple issuances under the same ISIN with reference to SEBI Circular
CIR/IMD/DF-1/67/2017 dated June 30, 2017 and SEBI Circular CIR/DDHS/P/59/2018 dated March 28,
2018. Issue can be made either by way of creation of fresh ISIN or by way of issuance under the existing
ISIN at premium /par/discount as the case may be in line with SEBI Circular.

6.22  Right to Re Purchase / prepay/buy back/ Reissue Debenture(s):

The company may partially or fully pre-pay/ buy back any specific ISIN subject to internal policy and
regulatory permissions and subject to the provisions of the transaction documents executed by the Company.

Where the Company has redeemed or bought back any Debenture(s), the Company shall have and shall be
deemed always to have had the right to keep such issuance alive without extinguishment for the purpose of
resale or reissue and in exercising such right, the Company shall have and be deemed always to have had the
power to resell or reissue such Debentures either by reselling or reissuing the same Debentures or by issuing
other Debentures in their place. This includes the right to reissue original Debentures.

6.23  Addition/extension/consolidation of securities under existing ISIN:

The Company shall have the right to reissue or cancel or extension or addition of debt securities in future
under the same ISIN from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 or any
such applicable regulations permitting to do so. Upon such reissue or extension or addition of debt securities
the person entitled to the debentures shall have and shall be deemed always to have had, the same rights and
priorities as if the debentures had never been redeemed.

Where the Company has repurchased / redeemed any such NCD’s subject to the provisions of the Companies
act, 2013 and other applicable regulations, the Company shall have and shall be deemed always to have the
right to keep such ISINs alive for the purpose of reissue or addition of debt securities and in exercising such
right, the Company shall have and shall be deemed always to have had the power to consolidate/regrouped
such NCDs either by reissuing or extending or adding of debt securities under the same ISIN or by issuing
other debentures in their place in either case, at such price and on such terms and conditions (including any
variations, dropping of or additions to any terms and conditions originally stipulated) as the Company deem
fit within the applicable regulations.
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SECTION 7: DECLARATION

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guideline issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Information Memorandum is
contrary to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other applicable laws, as the case
may be. The information contained in this Information Memorandum is as applicable to privately placed
debt securities and subject to information available with the Issuer. The extent of disclosures made in the
Information Memorandum is consistent with disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of
securities made by the companies in the past.

The Issuer and the directors of the Company, hereby further declare that:

A. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
hereunder;

B. The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply that payment
of dividend or interest or repayment of the Debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central
Government;

C. the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in this
Information Memorandum,;

For Five-Star Business (iiljncc Limited

e

Authorised Signatory I\
Name: Srikanth G  *x 27
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date: January 29, 2021
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ANNEXURE I: FORMAT OF APPLICATION FORMS

FIVE STAR [N\

Business Finance Limited

FIVE-STAR BUSINESS FINANCE LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: May 07, 1984; CIN: U65991TN1984PL.C010844
Registered and Corporate Office: New No. 27, Old No. 4, Taylor's Road, Kilpauk, Chennai - 600 010
Contact Person: Mr. G. Srikanth, Chief Financial Officer; E-mail: srikanth@fivestargroup.in
Telephone No.: 044-4610 6200 Website: www.fivestargroup.in

| DEBENTURE APPLICATION FORM SERIAL NO. lojofJolo]ofof[o]o] |

ISSUE OF UP TO 1,250 (ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY) RATED, LISTED,
SENIOR, SECURED, REDEEMABLE, PRINCIPAL PROTECTED MARKET-LINKED, NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES HAVING A FACE VALUE OF RS. 10,00,000/- (RUPEES TEN
LAKHS ONLY) EACH, AGGREGATING UP TO RS. 125,00,00,000/- (RUPEES ONE HUNDRED
AND TWENTY FIVE CRORES ONLY) WITH A GREEN SHOE OPTION OF UP TO 250 (TWO
HUNDRED AND FIFTY) RATED, LISTED, SENIOR, SECURED, REDEEMABLE, PRINCIPAL
PROTECTED MARKET-LINKED, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES HAVING A FACE
VALUE OF RS. 10,00,000/- (RUPEES TEN LAKHS ONLY) EACH, AGGREGATING UP TO RS.
25,00,00,000/- (RUPEES TWENTY FIVE CRORES ONLY), IN A SINGLE SERIES ON PRIVATE
PLACEMENT BASIS

DEBENTURES APPLIED FOR:
Number of Debentures in words

Amount Rs. /- in words Rupees Crore Only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:

RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to Five Star Business Finance Limited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) Rs. /-_(In words) Only

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN
SIGNATURE
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APPLICANT’S ADDRESS
ADDRESS

STREET
CITY
PIN PHONE FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO. IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

WE ARE [-]

We have read and understood the Terms and Conditions of the issue of Debentures including the Risk Factors
described in the Disclosure Document and the Private Placement Offer Letter and have considered these in
making our decision to apply. We bind ourselves to these Terms and Conditions and wish to apply for
allotment of these Debentures. We request you to please place our name(s) on the Register of Holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant’s
Signature

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form. Details
of my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:
DEPOSITORY NSDL () CDSL ()
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME
DP-ID
BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft
[ Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS /
NEFT/RTGS/other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)
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Applicant’s
Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)
(TEAR HERE)
ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP
| (To be filled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. - T-01-1-1-1-1-1-1

Received from

Address
Cheque/Draft/UTR  # Drawn on for
Rs. on account of application of Debenture
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ANNEXURE II: ILLUSTRATION OF CASH FLOWS

Appendix A: Disclosure of cash flows (pursuant to SEBI Circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/18/2013 dated
29th October 2013)

Illustration of Bond Cash Flows

Company Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Face Value (per security) Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh only)
Issue Date January 29, 2021

Date of Allotment

January 29, 2021

Redemption Date / Maturity Date

Call Option Date: April 30, 2023

Coupon Rate

As set out in Appendix B

Frequency of the Coupon Payment with specified
dates

Coupon, if any will be paid on upon exercise of
Call Option or the Scheduled Maturity Date, as the

case may be
Day Count Convention Actual/Actual
Call Option Date / No. of davs in
Cash Flows Scheduled Maturity c ' Y3 | d Amount (in Rupees)
Date oupon Perio
Coup_on on April 30, 2023 821 Coupon linked to Underlying
Redemption, if any Index
Rs. 10,00,000/- Per
Face Value
Debenture
Rs. 10,00,000 *
Total 821 (1+Coupon)/Per
Debenture

Notes:

1. The Cash Flow displayed above is calculated per Debenture (face value of Rs. 10,00,000).

2. If any interest payment date falls on a day which is not a Business Day then payment of interest will be
made on the next Business Day. If any principal payment date falls on a day which is not a Business
Day, then payment of redemption amount and accrued interest will be made on the immediately previous
Business Day. No additional interest will be paid for such days which fall on holiday.

3. The cash flow has been prepared based on the best available information on holidays and could further
undergo change(s) in case of any scheduled and unscheduled holiday(s) and/or changes in money
market settlement day conventions by the Reserve bank of India/ SEBI.

4. The cash flows are for illustration purposes.

Appendix B — Payment of Interest on the Debentures

The Debenture Holders shall be paid Coupon in the manner set out hereinbelow. The Coupon will be linked
to the performance of the Underlying Index. The parameters to be used for determining the Coupon are as

follows:

Page 79



Disclosure Document
Date: January 29, 2021

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

Underlying Index / Reference Index

Means 10 year Government security: 5.79 G-Sec
2030 having ISIN: IN0020200070 and maturity on
11-05-2030. The details of which are published on
the Bloomberg Ticker IGB 5.79% 11/05/2030.

If the said Reference Index is discontinued or ceases
to be available, then Reference Index shall be such
index as may be stipulated by the Debenture Trustee
(acting for and on behalf and on the instructions of
all the Debenture Holders).

Digital Level

Means 100% of the closing yield of the Reference
Index i.e. last traded closing yield of 5.79 G-Sec
2030, as on the date of observation, as published on
the Bloomberg Ticker IGB 5.79% 11/05/2030

Initial Fixing Level

Last traded closing yield of the Underlying Index /
Reference Index as on the Initial Fixing Date, as
determined in accordance with the Digital Level

Final Fixing Level

Last traded closing yield of the Reference Index on
the Final Fixing Date, as determined in accordance
with the Digital Level

Coupon Payable

(@) if Final Fixing Level is less than or equal to
12% (Twelve Percent), then the Coupon
payable shall be an amount which provides a
rate of return (calculated on XIRR basis using
the Microsoft Excel function) of 9% (Nine
Percent) on the principal amount of the
Debentures;

(b) if Final Fixing Level is greater than 12%
(Twelve Percent) but less than or equal to 18%
(Eighteen Percent), then the Coupon payable
shall be an amount which provides a rate of
return (calculated on XIRR basis using the
Microsoft Excel function) of 8.95% (Eight
Decimal Point Nine Five Percent) on the
principal amount of the Debentures;

(c) if Final Fixing Level is greater than 18%
(Eighteen Percent), the Coupon payable shall
be NIL.

Date of Coupon Payment

The Coupon is promised to be paid on the
Scheduled Maturity Date or upon the exercise of
Call Option, as the case may be. However, the
Company is required to make Coupon payments in
relation to the Debentures upon the occurrence of
any Trigger Event on the Post Trigger Expected
Payout Dates.
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Initial Fixing Final Fixing Return on Initial Investment in Redemption Amount
Level Level Debenture MLD (INR) (INR)
5.9801% -10.00% 21.3903% 10,00,000 12,13,903
5.9801% -5.00% 21.3903% 10,00,000 12,13,903
5.9801% 0.00% 21.3903% 10,00,000 12,13,903
5.9801% 5.00% 21.3903% 10,00,000 12,13,903
5.9801% 10.00% 21.3903% 10,00,000 12,13,903
5.9801% 12.00% 21.3903% 10,00,000 12,13,903
5.9801% 12.01% 21.2651% 10,00,000 12,12,651
5.9801% 18.00% 21.2651% 10,00,000 12,12,651
5.9801% 18.01% 0.00% 10,00,000 10,00,000
5.9801% 25.00% 0.00% 10,00,000 10,00,000
5.9801% 50.00% 0.00% 10,00,000 10,00,000

Graphical Representation
Scenario Analvsis
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*The scenario analysis (tabular and graphical data) is provided for illustrative purposes only and does not
represent actual termination or unwind prices, nor does it present all possible outcomes or describe all
factors that may affect the value of instrument.
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ANNEXURE I11: RATING LETTER

ICRA ICRA Limited

Ref: RTG/Chen/089/20-11
Date: January 215, 2021

Mr. G Srikanth

Chief Financial Officer

Frve-5tar Business Finance Limited
0ld Mo 4, New No 27,

Taylor's Road, Kilpauk,

Chennai, 600010

Dear Sir,

Fe: ICEA Provizional rating for the propozed Kz, 150.00-crore Principal Protected-Aarket Linked
Debenture (PP-ALD) Programme (ALD izsuance size Ks. 125.00 crore, Green shoe option K=, 25,00
crore) of Five-Star Business Finance Limited (Transaction Structure included in Annexure I)

Please refer to Fating Apgreement dated January 19, 2021, executed between ICFA Lomiated (“ICEA™) for
assigning ratings to the proposed prnincipal protected market linked debentures (FP-MLDs) of vour
company. The Rating Committee of ICRA, after due consideration, has assigned a Provisional PP-MLD
[ICEAJAAA(CE) (pronounced as provisional principal protected market linked debentures ICEA Triple A
Credit Enhancement) rafing to the captioned PP-MLDs. The cutlock on the long-term rating 15 Stable as
mentioned in the table below.

5. No. Instrument Amount (Rs. crore) Rating Azsizned
1. PP-MLD= 150,00 Provisional PP-MLD
[ICEAJAAA(CE) (Stable)

Note: CE stands for Credit Enhancement)’;

Instruments with this rating are considered to have the hughest degree of safety regarding timely servicing
of finanecial ebligations. Such instruments camry lowest credit risk. The latters CE in parenthesis suffixed to
a rating symbol stand for Credit Enhancement. CE rating is specific to the rated issue, its ternms, and s
structure. CE ratings do not represent ICELA s opinion on the general credit quality of the 155uers concerned.

The rating assigned 1s provisional as of now (as demoted by the prefix ‘Provisional’ before the rating
symbeol) and 15 subject to fulfillment of all condifions under the struchure as mentoned to ICRA including
execution of the transaction documents (as summarnzed in the Annexure to this letter), and the executed
documentation being in ine with the drafts shared with ICEA.

! For viewing complate rating scale and dgfinitions, refer to ICRA's Website wwnwicra.in ar other ICR4 Rating

Publications
Elacinic Mansion, 3 Flocr Tal. © 9122 61683300 Websile :wwwicrain
Appasahab Marathe Marg CIM @ LT49990L1991 FLECO42749 Email : Infoi® craindia. com
Prabhadevi, Mumbal-400025 Helpdesk : 4919354738800

Registered Office 1 1105, Kallash Bullding, 117 Floor, 26 Kasturba Gandni Marg, Mew Delhi - 110007, T, @ +81.11_23357840-45

RATING » RESEARCH -« INFORMATION
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ICRA ICRA Limited

The pronisional rating assigned by ICRA can remain valid for 2 maximum of 365 davs from the assignment
of the provisional rating. You are requested to update ICEA as soon as the pending achons’ documentation
are completed and share documentary proof for ICRA s review.

As per its policy, ICRA reviews the provisional rating penedically and converts the provisional ratng into
the final rating if the pending actioms’ documentation have been completed 1 hne with ICRA’s
expectations. In case the pending actions' documentation are net completed wathin the validity penod,
and/or they are not in line with ICEA s expectations, ICEA reviews the provizional rating as per its palicy
[Refer to ICRA’s website wwwicrain for detals of the policy followed by ICRA to assign provisional
ratng].

In any of your publicity material or other document wherever you are using our above ratmgs, 1t should be
stated as “Provisional PP-MLD [ICRAJAAA(CE) (Stable)”. We would request if you can provide vour
acceptance on the zbove Ratmg(z) by sending an emal or signed attached acknowledgement to us latest by
Janmary 29, 2021. In case vou do net commumnicate your zceeptance 'non acceptance of the assigned credit
rating, or do not appeal agamst the assigned rating by the aforesaid date, the rating will be treated by us as
non accepted and shall be disclosed on ICR A’ s website accordingly.

The rating without explicit credit enhancement stands at [ICEA]A (pronounced ICRA A).

Any intimation by you about the above rating to any banker/lending agency/government authonities/stock
exchange would constitute use of the ratmgs by vou and shall be desmed acceptance of the rating. Thi=
1ating communication letter meluding the fransaction structwe m Annexmure-I should necessanly be
mecluded m the 135ue documents/informanon memorandum as well as all legal documents executed by vou
for the pwpose of the proposed bond 1ssue.

ICEA shall not be held responsible for non-compliance with any of the stpulated terms and conditions az
well as any errors or misrepresentations of facts made by the Entity or the Trustee.

The ratings are subject to your company and the trustes ensunng compliance with the stucture submitted
to ICRA and the condifions / payment mechanism mentioned in Annexure 1. The ratings are specific to the
terms and conditions of the proposed debt programme as was indicated to us by you and any change in the
terms or size of the proposed debt programme would require the ratings to be reviewsd by us. If there 1=
any change in the terms and conditions or size of the debt programme rated, as above, the same must be
brought to our notice before the 13mme of the programme. If there 17 any such change after the ratngs are
assigned by us and aecepted or confirmed to use by vou, if would be subject to our review and may result
i change in the ratings assigned.

ICEA reserves the nght to review and'or, revize the above ratngs at any fime on the basiz of new
information or unavailabihity of information or such other cireumstances, which ICR A believes, may have
an impact on the rafing assizned to you. The ratmgs, as aforesaid, however, should not be treated as a
recommendation te buy, sell or hold the mstmment to be 15sued by you.
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ICRA ICRA Limited

You are requested to forthwith inform us about any default or delay in repayment of interest or principal
amount of the instrument rated, as above, or any other debt instruments’ borowing and keep us informed
of any other developments which may have a doect or indirect impact on the debt servicing capability of
the company including any propesal for re-schedunlement or posipenement of the repayment programmes
of the duss/ debts of the company with any lender(s) / mvestor(z).

Further, you are requested to inform us immediately a5 and when the borrowing it for the mstrument/loan
facility rated, as above, or as presenibed by the regulatory autherity (ies) 15 excesded.

The raticnale for assigning the above rating 15 being sent to you for your reference along with this miing
commumcation. Pleaze rezpond with vour comments 1f any within the aforezaid timeline of January 29,
2021.

The rating, as aforezaid, however, should not be treated as 2 recommendation to buy, sell or hold the

instruments 15sued by you

We thank you for your kind cooperation extended dunng the cowse of the rating exercise. Should you
require any clarification, please do not hesitate to get in touch with us.

Te lock forward to your communication and assure you of our best serviees.

With kind regards
Yours Sinceraly
For ICRA Limited

Digitally signed by ABHISHEK DAFRIA
Date: 2021.01.25 16:09:35 +05'30"

Abhizhek Dafria
Vice President and Group Head - Structured Finance
abhizhek dafna@icraindia com
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ANNEXURE IV: DEBENTURE TRUSTEE CONSENT LETTER

CATALYST

Belowe in poursa¥. Truit os'

Authorized Sigmatory
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CUMUMA20-21/DEB956

January 25, 2021

Five-Star Business Finance Limited
New No. 27, Ol No. 4,

Taylor's Road, Kilpauk

Chennai — 600010

Dear Sir,

Consemt to act us Trastee for Rated, Secured, Listed, Non-Coavertible
Debentures aggregating to 150 Croves 1o be issued by your Company .

The (mpmy and the Trustee shall cnlrr w10 relevast trustoe agreements and other

for the afk d sssuc of NCDs and terms loans and also agrees
& undemkcs tw comply with the peovisions of  the SEBI (Debenture Trustess)
Regulations, 1993, SEBI (Issoe and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008,
SEBI Circular No. SEBMIMDMDOE-1/Hond 200001 108 daad 11052009 on
Simplifiad Listing Agreement for Debt Securities resd with the SEBI Circular No.
SEBIIMDVDOF- /BONDCr-5/2000 dated 26th November, 2009, the RBI Circalar
Na, RBL2012-13/560 dued June 27, 2013, the Cumm-cs Act, 2013 e any other

licabl ions and pe as d from time fo time.

we L

The Company shall enter o Agreement with Trastee as required by Regulation 13
of SEBI (Debenture Trustee) Regulntioss, 1992 thersby agreeing to create the
security within three menths from the date of closure of issee or in aceordance with
the Companies Act, 2013 or as per the provisions as p ibed by amy regulatory
authority as applicable and comply with the provisions of applicable laws.

Wc are llso mbk for mclusxm of our name as trustees in the Campany's offer
! listing application/any other d o be fikd
with Use Steck Exchange(s) or any other authority as required.

Yours faithfully, We accept the above terms
Catalyst Trusteeship Linsited For Five-Star Business Finanee Limited

Private & Confidential
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Yell A Cl) @lL

CLMUM/2021DERY26
Janvary 25, 2021

Five-Star Business Finance Limited
New No, 27, Old No. 4,

Tayloe's Road, Kilpask

Chennsi — 600010

Dear Sir,
Comsent to aet as Trustee for Rated, Secured Listed, Red: ble Non-

Comvertible Debentures aggregating upto Rs. 120 Crores to be bsued by your
Company.

This is with reference to the discussions in respect of appaintment of Cotalyst
Trusteeship Limited (CTL) [Formerly GDA Trusteeship Limited] o acl as
Debemture Trusiee foe the Rated, Secwred, Listed, NoaConvertible Debentures
aggregating upto Rs. 150 Crorss 10 be ssued, b this comnection, we arc agrecable to
#i1 as Trustoe on the following trusteeship remanerticn:

Acceptamce foex + NIL
Serviee Charges 1 Rs. 1,25,0000- plus applicable taxes {One Time; Non
Refundable & payable on appointment as trustee).

All ot of pockel expenses incurned towards legal fees, travelling, inspection
charges, cto shall be levied and re-imbursed on achusal basis.

Yours Bathfully,
We Accept the above terms
For  Catabyst  Trusteeship For Five-Star Business Finance
Limited Limited
e e -
Lu.&' 1 g
Authorized Signatory Authorized Slgaatory

NOTE: As per GST guidelines, CTL would be required to pay the applicable
Tax om the amounts / charges payable to us as indicated above, Please
note that the Company would be liable to pay all such charges cves In
the event of fiation of the af i tr ion. Therefore, no
refund of amy statutory dees already paid would be made

L)

CATALYSY i L —_— — -
el NG Wi bt 6 P, AR 0 S04 3T B Sk S o i) el Fan 1
e (P 0k i, C5d S 8, Sn| Coewy g Tind P, bt 411 008 Yk oF) 01N Piae + 81 D) PMITS
Cod Oe D%e 190,16 M HRon, Ky DA 3 St b Cam il by S D004 | 1BUE 16011 S50 2900005

e

O
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ANNEXURE V: KEY TERMS OF THE ISSUE
I. Representations and warranties of the Company

The Company hereby, makes the following representations and warranties to the Debenture Trustee
and the Debenture Holders and the Company acknowledges that each of the Debenture Holders have
subscribed to the Debentures in reliance inter alia on the representations of the Company set out
herein.

1. The Company is a company duly incorporated and validly existing under Applicable Law
and the Company is duly qualified and authorised to enter into the Debenture Documents.

2. The execution, delivery and performance by Company of the Debenture Trust Deed does
not and will not, with or without the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, violate, conflict
with, require any consent under or result in a breach of or default under:

@) any law to which the Company is subject or the constitutional documents of the
Company; or

(b) any order, judgment or decree applicable to the Company; or

(©) any term, condition, covenant, undertaking, agreement or other instrument to which
the Company is a party or by which the Company is bound.

3. The Company is in compliance with all Applicable Law for the performance of its
obligations with respect to this Issue as set out in the Debenture Documents including the
Act and the rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time.

4, No consent or Governmental approval to, from or with any person, including the existing
lenders of the Company is required on the part of the Company for borrowing by way of the
issue of Debentures or in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of the
Debenture Trust Deed or any other related document including the deed of hypothecation to
be executed for creation of charge over receivables, the compliance by any of them with any
of the provisions hereof or thereof, or the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby or thereby.

5. Notice of Proceedings
That the Company has not received any notice or intimation till date of:

@ any taxes or any other sums due and payable by the Company to the Government of
India, and/ or;

(b) any proceedings pending and/ or initiated and/ or threatened against the Company
for or on account of any taxes or any other sums, which may be due and payable by
the Company to the Government of India;
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any litigation, investigation or proceedings that may have a Material Adverse Effect.

which may materially affect the creation and enforcement of security in terms of the
provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed or which is prejudicial to the Debenture Holders;

6. Security

(@)

(b)

(©)

That the Secured Property, or any part thereof, is not subject to any lien,
hypothecation, charge or other Encumbrance except the Security Interest created by
the Debenture Documents.

The Company is not aware of any judgment or legal process or defects affecting the
title, ownership of the Secured Property of the Company which has remained
undisclosed and/or which may prejudicially affect the Debenture Holder(s).

Each of loans disbursed under the Identified Loan Agreements, comply with the
criteria set out below, as on the date on which the Security Interest over the said
loans are created:

A.

All the Identified Loans are current (non-delinquent) i.e. as on the date of
assignment of the Identified Receivables to the SPV Trust, the outstanding
principal value of all Identified Loans have all instalments of principal,
interest, or any other expected payments overdue for 0 (zero) days and shall
not be delinquent for more than 30 (Thirty) days thereafter;

None of the Identified Loans should have overdues of more than 30 (Thirty)
days at any time;

The aggregate number of Identified Loans which are overdue beyond 1
(One) day but less than 30 (Thirty) days shall not comprise more than 5%
(Five Percent) of the total Identified Loans;

The loan-to-value ratio of the pool of Identified Receivables should be equal
to or less than 50% (Fifty Percent);

Concentration of loans comprising the Identified Receivables originated in
any one branch does not exceed 3% (Three Percent) of all the loans
comprising the Identified Receivables;

Concentration of loans comprising the Identified Receivables originated in
any one district does not exceed 6% (Six Percent) of all the loans
comprising the Identified Receivables;

Concentration of loans comprising the Identified Receivables originated in
any one State does not exceed 45% (Forty Five Percent) of all the loans
comprising the Identified Receivables;

Concentration of loans comprising the Identified Receivables originated in
the top three States (by concentration of loans) does not exceed 90% (Ninety
Percent) of all the loans comprising the Identified Receivables;

The Identified Loans have been granted against the security of mortgaged
property only;

The principal amounts due and payable by a single Identified Obligor under
the Identified Loans does not exceed Rs. 7,00,000 (Rupees Seven Lakhs
Only);
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Each Identified Loan should have been on the books of the Company for a
minimum period of 6 (Six) months for loans with original tenure between 2
(Two) and 5 (Five) years and 9 (Nine) months for loans with original tenure
above 5 (Five) years;

The average of the amounts disbursed under the Identified Loans are not
higher than Rs. 7,50,000/- (Rupees Seven Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) per
Identified Loan;

The weighted average rate of return of the Identified Loans should be more
than 18% (Eighteen Percent);

The residual tenor of the Identified Loans in the pool is not more than 83
(Eighty Three) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment;

Each of the Identified Loans have been originated and fully disbursed by
the Company;

The Company has not sold or encumbered the loan assets, either directly or
indirectly;

Each Identified Loan has been originated by the Company through branches
owned and operated by the Company directly and not through branches
operated by any origination partner;

The Company has complied with all the extant guidelines issued by RBI
pertaining to ‘know your customer’ (KYC), with respect to each of the
Identified Obligors;

The Identified Loans which have been restructured, shall not form more
than 5% of the total pool of the Identified Loans;

The total principal amount of Security of the Identified Loans divided by
the Outstanding Amounts should be at least equal to the Minimum Security
Cover. This shall be tested as on the last calendar day of each month.

(each of the criteria set out above shall hereinafter be collectively referred to as the
“Eligibility Criteria™)

(d) The Minimum Security Cover (as tested in accordance with the terms set out herein)
is being maintained.
7. Material Adverse Effect

There is no Material Adverse Effect existing and that there are no circumstances existing
which could give rise, with the passage of time or otherwise, to a Material Adverse Effect.

8. Event of Default or Trigger Event

The Company hereby represents that there is no Event of Default or Trigger Event that has
currently occurred or is continuing as on the date hereof.

9. NBFC

The Company is registered as a non-banking finance company with the RBI.
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10.

Information

All information provided by the Company, in writing, is true and accurate in all respects as
at the date it was provided or as at the date at which it was stated and is not misleading
whether by reason of omission to state a material fact or otherwise. The Company confirms
that all necessary disclosures have been made in the Disclosure Document and Private
Placement Offer Letter including but not limited to statutory and other regulatory
disclosures.

11. Nature of Representations and Warranties
The Company hereby expressly represents and warrants that each of the representations and
warranties set out hereinabove is true and accurate as on the date hereof and shall continue
to be true and accurate on each day until the Final Settlement Date, and nothing contained
in the said representations and warranties is / will be misleading or designed to create an
inaccurate, incomplete or false picture.

1. Information Covenants
1. The Company hereby undertakes to:

@ Submit a quarterly report to the Debenture Trustee within 7 (seven) days of the
relevant board meeting or within 45 (forty-five) days from the end of the relevant
quarter containing the following particulars:

A. Updated list of names and address of all Debenture Holders;

B. Details of interest due but unpaid and reasons for the same and timely and
accurate payment of the interest on the Debentures;

C. The number and nature of grievances received from the Debenture Holders
and (1) resolved by the Company and (2) unresolved by the Company and
the reasons for the same;

D. Statement that the assets of the Company available as Security are sufficient
to discharge the claims of the Debenture Holders as and when the same
become due;

(b) Furnish the following to the Debenture Trustee:

A its duly audited annual accounts, within 180 (One Hundred and Eighty) days
from the close of its accounting year;

B. copy of the un-audited or audited financial results on a half yearly basis on
the same day the information is submitted to stock exchanges;
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a one-time certificate from the statutory auditor of the Company with
respect to the use of the proceeds raised through the issue of Debentures as
and when such proceeds have been completely deployed toward the
proposed end-uses;

such other information in relation to the Security / Secured Property that the
Debenture Trustee may reasonably request (in a format which shall be
provided by the Debenture Trustee from time to time) for the purpose of
quarterly diligence by the Debenture Trustee to monitor the asset cover and
shall also submit to the Debenture Trustee a certificate from the director/
managing director of the Company on quarterly basis, certifying the value
of the Identified Receivables as agreed in the Debenture Documents;

a certificate from the statutory auditor of the Company on a half-yearly
basis, regarding maintenance of Minimum Security Cover, certifying the
value of the Identified Receivables and compliance with the covenants set
out in the Disclosure Document, along with the half-yearly financial results;

Send to the Stock Exchange for dissemination, as required by the listing agreements
entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges along with the half yearly
financial results, a half- yearly communication certificate from the Debenture
Trustee under Regulation 52(4) and 52(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 containing inter-alia the following
information:

A.

OOw

—Iemm

credit rating;

asset cover available;

debt-equity ratio;

previous due date for the payment of interest/principal and whether the
same has been paid or not;

next due date for the payment of interest/principal;

Debenture Redemption Reserve;

net worth;

net profit after tax;

earnings per share;

Forward/ intimate the following to the Debenture Trustee promptly:

A.

a copy of annual report at the same time as it is issued along with a copy of
certificate from the Company's auditor in respect of utilisation of funds
during the implementation period of the project for which the funds have
been raised. In case the Debentures are issued for financing working capital
or general corporate purposes or for capital raising purposes, copy of the
auditor’s certificate may be submitted at the end of each Financial Year till
the funds have been fully utilised or the purpose for which these funds were
intended has been achieved;

any revision in the rating assigned to the Debentures;
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C. any default in timely payment of interest or redemption amounts or both in
respect of the Debentures;

D. failure to create the Security; and

E. all covenants of the issue (including side letters, accelerated payment
clause, etc.)

Submit periodical status/ performance reports within 7 (Seven) days of the relevant
board meeting or within 45 (Forty-Five) days of the respective quarter whichever is
earlier.

Submit to the Debenture Trustee, a copy of all notices, resolutions and circulars
relating to:

A new issue of non-convertible debt securities at the same time as they are
sent to shareholders/ holders of non-convertible debt securities;

B. the meetings of holders of non-convertible debt securities at the same time
as they are sent to the holders of non-convertible debt securities or
advertised in the media including those relating to proceedings of the
meetings;

Submit to the Debenture Trustee, till the Final Settlement Date, its latest audited/
limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone
financial information such as Statement of Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet and Cash
Flow Statement and Audited Qualifications, if any, within the timelines as stipulated
in simplified listing agreement issued by SEBI as may be amended from time to
time;

Submit / provide to the Debenture Trustee relevant documents/ information, as
applicable, to enable the Debenture Trustee to submit the reports / certifications to
the stock exchanges as required under the SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/ MIRSD/
CRADT/ CIR/ P/ 2020/230 dated November 12, 2020, within the timelines set out
therein;

Submit such other disclosure to the Debenture Trustee as may be required under the
SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations 2008, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other Applicable
Laws; and

Provide any and all information required under any Applicable Law at all times,
during the currency of Debentures as may be called upon by the Debenture Trustee.

2. The Company shall, provide/ cause to be provided information in respect of the following
promptly and no later than 10 (Ten) Business Days from the occurrence of such event:

(@)

Inform the Debenture Trustee of any change in the nature and conduct of its business
before such change;
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Promptly inform the Debenture Trustee of any change in its name, any change in
the composition of its board of directors which may amount to change in control as
defined in Securities Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time;

Inform the Debenture Trustee of any merger, consolidation, reorganisation scheme
or arrangement or compromise with its creditors or shareholders or effect any
scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction.

Notify the Debenture Trustee in writing of any legal proceeding pending or
threatened, investigation, regulatory notices or judicial orders against any of the
Company, or any dispute between the Company and/or any Governmental
Authority, which could result in a Material Adverse Effect or affecting the Secured
Property;

Inform the Debenture Trustee of commencement of any proceedings directly
affecting the Secured Property.

Notify the Debenture Trustee in writing of any notice of any application for winding
up having been made or receipt of any statutory notice of winding up under the
provisions of the Act or any other notice under any other law or otherwise of any
suit or legal process intended to be filed and affecting the title to the property of the
Company or if a receiver is appointed of any of its properties or business or
undertaking;

Notify the Debenture Trustee in writing of any one or more events, conditions or
circumstances that exist or have occurred that has, had or could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

Notify the Debenture Trustee in writing of any event which constitutes an Event of
Default or Trigger Event or of circumstances existing which could give rise, with
the passage of time or otherwise, to an Event of Default or Trigger Event, specifying
the nature of such event and any steps the Company is taking and proposes to take
to remedy the same;

Promptly inform the Debenture Trustee of any event likely to have a substantial
effect on the Company's profits or business and of any material changes in the rate
of production or sales of the Company with an explanation of the reasons therefore;

Promptly inform the Debenture Trustee of any loss or damage which the Company
may suffer due to any force majeure circumstances or act of God, such as
earthquake, flood, tempest or typhoon, etc. against which the Company may not
have insured its properties;

Inform the Debenture Trustee on a quarterly basis regarding the Stage 3 assets (both
gross and net) of the Company and the capital adequacy ratio of the Company,
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within a maximum period of 45 days from the end of each financial quarter or 7
(Seven) days from the release of the quarterly results, whichever is earlier.

T, Affirmative Covenants
1. The Company undertakes and covenants that, the Company shall until the Final Settlement
Date:
@ keep proper books of account and keep the said books of account and all other

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

books, registers and documents relating to the affairs of the Company at its
registered office or, where permitted by law, at other place or places where the books
of account and documents of a similar nature may be kept and the Company will
ensure that all entries in the same relating to the Secured Property and the
Debentures shall, upon notice and during the regular working hours of the Company
be open for inspection of the Debenture Trustee and such person or persons, as the
Debenture Trustee shall, from time to time, for that purpose appoint, and the
Debenture Trustee or such person or persons so appointed shall be entitled to take
copies or extracts of the registers of the company available for inspection;

permit the Debenture Trustee and such person, as the Debenture Trustee shall from
time to time for that purpose appoint, to enter into or upon and to view and inspect
the state and condition of all the Secured Property, with prior written notice of 7
(Seven) days to the Company, together with all records, registers relating to the
Secured Property;

give to the Debenture Trustee or to such person or persons as aforesaid such
information as they or any of them shall require as to all matters relating to the
business, property and affairs of the Company and in relation to the Secured
Property and at the time of the issue thereof to the shareholders of the Company
furnish to the Debenture Trustee three copies of every report, balance sheet, profit
and loss account, circulars or notices issued to the shareholders and the Debenture
Trustee shall be entitled, if it thinks fit, from time to time, to nominate a firm of
chartered accountant to examine the books of account, documents and property of
the Company or any part thereof and to investigate the affairs of the Company and
the Company shall allow any such accountant to make such examination and
investigation and shall furnish them with all such information as they may require
and shall pay all reasonable costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to such
examination and investigation;

give to the Debenture Trustee any information, relating to the business, property and
affairs of the Company, pursuant to a monitoring or servicing request of the
Debenture Holders.

keep the Secured Property adequately insured, if applicable and in a proper
condition;
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punctually pay all rents, royalties, taxes, rates, levies, cesses, assessments,
impositions and outgoings, governmental, municipal or otherwise imposed upon or
payable by the Company as and when the same shall become payable including in
relation to the Secured Property and when required by the Debenture Trustee
produce the receipts for such payments and observe, perform and comply with all
covenants and obligations which ought to be observed and performed by the
Company in respect of or any part of the Secured Property;

ensure that the security cover as stipulated in the Debenture Documents in relation
to the Debentures has been maintained at all times;

utilise the funds raised through the Issue solely towards the Purpose and shall not
utilise the funds raised through the Issue or any part thereof directly/indirectly
towards capital markets (debt and equity), land acquisition or other uses that are
restricted for bank financing by the RBI;

execute all such deeds, documents and assurances and do all such acts and things as
the Debenture Trustee may reasonably require for exercising the rights under these
presents and the Debentures or for effectuating and completing the Security
intended to be hereby created and shall from time to time and at all times after the
Security hereby constituted shall become enforceable, execute and do all such
deeds, documents, assurance, acts, and things as the Debenture Trustee may require
for facilitating realisation of the Secured Property and in particular the Company
shall execute all transfers, conveyances, assignments and assurance of the Secured
Property whether to the Debenture Trustee or to their nominees and shall give all
notices and directions which the Debenture Trustee may think expedient;

carry out and conduct its business with due diligence and efficiency and in
accordance with Applicable Laws, managerial and financial standards and business
practices with qualified and experienced management and personnel;

at all times act and proceed in relation to its affairs and business in compliance with
Applicable Law including inter alia the provisions of the Act, the listing agreement
and the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or any
successor regulation thereto as in force from time to time, in so far as they are
applicable to the Debentures and shall furnish to the Debenture Trustee such data,
information, statements and reports as may be deemed necessary by the Debenture
Trustee in order to enable the Debenture Trustee to comply with the provisions of
Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 thereof in
performance of their duties in accordance therewith to the extent applicable to the
Debentures;

duly cause these presents to be registered in all respects so as to comply with the
provisions of the Companies Act or any act, ordinance or regulation and generally
do all other acts (if any) necessary for the purpose of assuring the legal validity of
these presents;
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diligently preserve its corporate existence and status and all material consents now
held or any material rights, licences, privileges or concessions hereafter acquired by
it in the conduct of its business and that it will comply with all the material terms of
the said consents, rights, licences, privileges and concessions and comply with all
acts, rules, regulations, orders and directions of any legislative, executive,
administrative or judicial body applicable to the Secured Property or any part
thereof;

Provided that the Company may contest in good faith the validity of any such acts,
rules, regulations, orders and directions and pending the determination of such
contest may postpone compliance therewith if the rights enforceable under the
Debentures or the security for the Debentures is not thereby materially endangered
or impaired,;

pay all stamp duty, taxes, charges and penalties if and when the Company may be
required to pay the same according to the laws for the time being in force and in the
event of the Company failing to pay such stamp duty, taxes and penalties as
aforesaid, the Debenture Trustee will be at liberty (but shall not be bound) to pay
the same and the Company shall reimburse the same to the Debenture Trustee on
demand;

reimburse all sums paid or expenses incurred by the Debenture Trustee or any
Receiver, attorney, manager, agent or other person appointed by the Debenture
Trustee for all or any of the purposes mentioned in these presents immediately on
receipt of a notice of demand from them in this behalf;

promptly and expeditiously attend to and redress the grievances, if any, of the
Debenture Holders. The Company further undertakes that it shall promptly comply
with the suggestions and directions that may be given in this regard, from time to
time, by the Debenture Trustees and shall advise the Debenture Trustees
periodically of the compliance; and

agrees, confirms and undertakes that in the event the Company has failed to make a
timely repayment of the Debenture Obligations or to create a charge on the Secured
Property or there is a revision of rating assigned to the Debentures, the Debenture
Trustee shall, be entitled to disclose the information to the Debenture Holders and
the general public by issuing a press release, placing the same on their websites and
with the credit rating agencies.

V. Negative Covenants

The Company shall not, till the Final Settlement Date:

1. Other than as expressly permitted under the Debenture Documents, create any Encumbrance
on the Secured Property without prior consent of the Debenture Trustee;
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In the event of the occurrence of an Event of Default or a Trigger Event, without the prior
consent of the Debenture Trustee and until the Company has paid or made satisfactory
provision for the payments (including the principal amount and Coupon) due on the
Debentures in any year, declare any dividend to the shareholders of the Company, or make
any other distributions to the holders of common equity;

Undertake or permit any merger, consolidation, reorganisation, amalgamation,
reconstruction, consolidation, scheme of arrangement or compromise with its creditors or
shareholders or effect any scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction without intimation to
the Debenture Trustee.

V. Certified Covenants

1.

The Company shall maintain a capital adequacy ratio of (i) Tier | Capital and Tier Il Capital
to (ii) aggregate of risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and risk adjusted value of off-
balance sheet items, of at least 17% (Seventeen Percent) during the term of the Debentures;
provided that in the event the minimum ratio prescribed by RBI is higher than the ratio
stipulated hereinabove, the Company shall ensure compliance with such higher ratio;

The Company shall ensure that the gross non-performing assets of the Company shall not
exceed 4% (Four Percent);

The Company shall ensure that the net non-performing assets of the Company shall not
exceed 3% (Three Percent).
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STANDALONE FINANCIAL INFORMATION (LIKE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT,
BALANCE SHEET AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT) FOR AT LEAST LAST THREE YEARS
AND AUDITOR QUALIFICATIONS, IF ANY

Flve-Star Business Finanee Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

- (R in bakhs)
As at Asat
Vot NoteNol 3y Mar 2018 315t Mar 2017
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share Capital 3 191689 1,426.50
Reserves and Sarplus 4 58,098.54 21,078.03
6001543 22,504 53
Non-current liabilities
Loag Term Bocrowings 5 3764698 1344298
Other Long Term Liabilitics 6 0.84 0.67
Loag Tam Provisions 7 737.82 261.74
3838564 33,705.39
Current liabilities
Short Term Barrowings 8 4.979.68 468775
Trade payables
1) Dues to Micro and Small Enteeprises . -
ii) Other Trade payables 9 48568 3421
Other Currcat Lisbilities 10 1287336 7,798.89
Short Term Provisions " 42231 375.93
18.761.03 13,196.78
TOTAL 1,17,162.10 69,406.70
ASSETS
Non- current assets
Fixed Assets 12
~Tangible Assets 45431 45013
-Intangible Assets 181.09 3598
-Capital Work in Progress 1413 -
~Software Under Development - 158.11
Non-Current [nvestments . .
Deferred Tax Asscts (net) 13 370 246,16
Loag Term Receivables Under Financmg Activitses 14 8297532 3939734
Loag Term Loans And Advances 15 41800 15783
Other Nan Current Assets 16 23,04 M5
8443899 40,479.70
Current assets
Current lnvestments 17 . 43431
Cash and Bank Balances 18 13,145.89 18,470.42
Short Term Receivables Under Financing Activities 19 17.850.43 9,508.18
Short Term Loans 2nd Advances 20 5196 28,59
Other Current Assets 21 1.674.83 485,50
3272311 28.927.00
TOTAL 1,17,162.10 69,406.70
Sigaificant Accounting Policies and Notes 1o the Accounts 21029

Per aur repeet of even date attached
For Brahmayya & Co.
Churfered Accoustants

Firm Registaation Number 0005115
: i g—f‘ll(ﬁj

P.Babu
Parner
Membership No. 203358

Place . Chennai
Date: 22" May 2018

For sad om behalf of Board of l)lr:Tnn

D, Lakshmipathy

Chairman & Mamging Director

—
(&Sn‘h-lﬂ’/
Chiel Financial Officer

R Amun

_ Director
B Llalivu
B.Shalini

Company Secretary
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Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2018
(Rs. o lakhs)
Particulars Note No 2017-18 2016-17
REVENUE
Revenue {rom Operations 2 192279 836773
Other [ncome 23 1,585.53 346.06
Total revenue 20,818.32 8713719
EXPENSES
Firance Costs 2 57138 238334
Employes Benefits 25 445170 191334
Adi and Other Exp 26 1,518.32 92196
Provisions, Loan Losses and Other Charges 27 932.32 28361
Depreciation 12 25943 9234
Prefiminary Expenses Written Off 1228 409
Total Expenses 12,95743 5,598 68
Profit Before Tax 7,860.89 3nsn
Tax expenses
Current Tax 240437 1,29807
Deferred Tax (126.94)] (14529)!
227743 1,152.78
Profit for the Year 5,583.46 1,96233
SRS
Larnings per equity share of Rs 10 cach 253
- Basic (Rs.) 3220 14.66
~ Diluted (Rs.) 3159 14.66
Significant A g, Policies and Notes to the Accounts 21029
Per our report of even date sttached For and on behalf of Board of Digectors
For Brahmayya & Co. e )
Chartered Accountants n—
“Fim R ion Number 0005118 D Lakshmipathy > R. Anand
\ Chainman & ing Director_ Director
T Habu \‘*\f‘ B ol &%
Partner St B.Shutini
Membership No. 203358 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place ; Chennai
Date: 22° May 2018
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(Hs. im Lakbs)
Pargiculars 21718 1617
(A Cash flaw fram opersting activities
Prafil After Tax 5,583.46 1,962.33
Provison for Taxstion 27743 115218
Hex Frofid Befare Tay T.BE0ED KA AY
Adjustmenits for:
Finands ¢osts 5TM 133
Deprecision 25943 34
Gieneral Provision on Standard Assets 48 14354
Provision sgains Mod - Perlorming assels 20.27 139.67
(Pl ks e sale af Fised Asseis 242 {242
Prafit on sale of curent investmans (Het) Wiz {Ila”ﬂ
Interest Income on Depasits with Barikes ¢ Others [™7.5%) {201?1]'
Prelisminery expesses 1223 40
ESOP expenses 2308 6,034 24 5 343370
Operatisg Profit Before Changes in Waorking Capital 14,795.13 554331
Chanpes in Werking Capital;
Adfuerments for (imcreass) £ decraase M aperRAITRE TIETL
Long term recenvables under financing activity 143, 5TT.5T)| {24,765 60)
Long temn |oans sed advanees (260 1T) {6028}
Oither ron cument assets {17 {1565
Shart term receivables under financing eclivity (8,242 25) (4,327 35H
Shart fermn lusns and sdhances: 23.37) 3004
Chthes eurrent assets 11,18%.33) 43852}
Adfuriments for increase / (decreaze) i operanng Nabiliuer:
Oither Long term Linbiliies 1 {0055)
Lang léam provisions 7183 1571
Trade payables 151.4% 17691
‘Other Current labilities 1227 i
Short berm provigions 26.00 (53,021.93) 1664 | (X9DIE12)
Cosh used in aperations (38,226.50) (2366931
Firancinl Expenses (5,718.41) {2,190 41)
Dhrieed Tasies Pand [2,574.49) 11.196.34)
Neé Cash used in operating aciivities (A) (46,520,200 {37,076 26|
B. Cash Mow from Investing aclivities
Purchase of Fined Assets [27.22) [ T4
Proceeds from sale of fixed mscts 4405 pl
Purchase fmle of Investments (nei) 43431 (34 30)
Prafit on sale of current investments (Hiet) (TE7.62) 124.53
Tnterest Income on Dieposias with Banks / Others Wi w27
Met Cash from Investing Activitles () FINT] M6 T8
. Cash Mow from Gnamcing activities
Proceeds fiom issue of equity shares {iscluding securities premium} 3204600 11,394 57
Utilissstiom of Securities premium {440 62} -
Prosaeds from hoeg term barmowings (rpasd) avaed (ned) 09725 29,304.76
Ehort Bomawings (repakd) availed (ne(d 0103 3,305.59
Met Cash fram Finaseing Activities () A0, 56 4400532
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A) + (B) +(C) [5,524,53) 1668231
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginming of the year 134T0 42 L7811
Cashand Cash Equivalents af the ool of the year 13,4589 1847042
Reconziliation of Cash and Cash Eqwivalents with the Balance Sheet
Cash and Cash equivalenes {Refer Note 18) 1314589 147042

A3 per our pepart of even dute altached
For Trnhmayya & Co

Chanered Accounia
Famk i Mumber G051 15 -

F.Babu
Partner
Membership Mo 303358

Mg | Chenm

Dabe: 22* buy 200 %

For s oo beball of Board of D

~~

1. Lakshwapathy
Chairman &

(]n—__ = I-
| Srilamr—
Chief Firancial Officer

Bochor

—

™4

B, Anand
Director

L. Le.\[l."_l:t.' L

i
H. Shlin|

Company Secretary
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Particulars

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cazh and cash eguivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Investments

Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

Current tax ssses (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-is-progress
Other intangible assets
Intangibles under development
Other non-financial assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities

Paysbles

Trade payabics

total outsmnding dues of micro and small enterprises
to¢al outsinding dees of creditors other than micro and
small entesprises

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt sccurities)

Other financisl liabilities

Non-financial Habilities
Current tax liskilities (net)
Provisions

Other non-finmceal liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

See accompanying notes 10 the financial stalements

As per our report of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accowntanis

Firm's registration number. 101248W/W-100022

ener
bership Nec 211171

Place : Chennai
Date : May 14,2019

Note Asat Asat Asut

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 April 1,2017
Ll 21,960 84 13,137.94 1841379
5 688 798 56,64
6 209.586.40 99,622.83 48,368.40
7 - - 44341
8 29078 25165 168 63
23184490 113,020.40 67,450,587
9 360.01 365.06 829
35 1,464 46 64981 350,05
10 3.56 156 356
12 74441 450.75 446.57

12 . 14.13 -
13 201.80 181,09 3598
13 . - 158.11
1 363.81 42068 72.66
313805 2,085.08 1,075.22
234,982.95 115,105.45 68,526.09

14
29269 22633 106.82
15 4297228 19,322.09 19,078.05
16 5251919 35277.66 26,126.73
” 51836 440.09 380.10
96.302.52 £5.266.17 45,691.70
18 162.17 - 170.12
19 37626 174.55 76,64
20 1,629.19 472.64 30451
2,167.62 647.19 55127
21 2,389.96 191689 142651
2 134,122 85 57,275.23 20,856.61
136,512.81 §9,192.12 228312
2}4,”2;95 115,105.48 (68,526.09
For and an behalf of the Board of Drrectors of
Five-Star Business Finance Limited

CIN - UbS99ITNI984PLCO10844

Chairmen and Mg
DIN No: 01723269 .

e -

—

Anand Ragha
Directar
DIN No : 00243485

et

Chief Financial Offices  Chief’ Ex;cuiwoﬂ'lw

Place : Chennai

Company Secretary
ACS: AS1334

Date : May 14,2019

B Slabive '
B Shalini
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Five-Star Rusiness Finance Limiied
Consolidated Statement of Profit and boss for the year ended March 31, 2019
(AN amoants are in Indian Ruopess in lakhs, excepl share data and stated olberwise)

Wear ended Vear ended

Larteaiay NOIE  March 31,2019 Mareh 31,2018
Kevense lrom opcratsns
Imigrest income ] 38,971.81 1822118
Dividend iscone 4 - 1268
Fee ircome 35 1.327.05 46825
‘Met gain oo fir value changes 4 58994 TH1.20
Total revenue fram operntions 40,890,800 20.063.29
Oither incorme n LHG 1.55%
Tatal Iecome 080246 004 R4
Exjsenses
Fimanee costs b2} 7.592.20 5598.30
Fees and pommission expenses n M7 HAHT
Impairment £ write ofTan finenclal instrumsests 30 75518 93203
Employee benefils expenses k3| 1.653.44 408221
Degrrectition and armonization &2 41946 155.43
Oither expenses 3z 2.53327 1.548.31
Tutal Expenses 12.048.32 ]m
Prafit before fax 18443 TAGLGY
Tax expense
Current tax 3za 69T 77 244,37
Dederred tax (net) s {789.16) [287.65)
5, 178.61 111672
Frafit for the perind 15,665.73 5,344.97
Oither comprebensive inonme
Itemis theat will mot he reclassified o profic or loss
Re-measurements of the defined henedit plan 53,35 41,61
Income tax nelating 1o iterms thal will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1548 [LFA NI
Met other comprehensive ineome mol (o be reclassified subseguently EETT 29.50
o il oo bos
Other comprebensive incame / (defiein) for the year, wet of ncome tax IE 29,50
Tuotal comprebemsive ineome, net of neome tax 15,627.67 231547
Earnimgs per equity share {face value Re10 ench) 3
Basic (in npess) 70.32 30.53
Diluted {in rupees) G874 .24
See sccompany g noles W e linancsl stislemonls
As per aur repart of gven date Far and on behal§ of the Board of Directors off
Jor BSR & Cs. LLP Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Charlered Accoumbing CIN ; U6S99 1 THI984PLO0O10R44

Firen's registrmlisn member: 101 248WW- 100022

o AP
mﬁk"m ' - _—>

— It Lakshmipailiy ———— Anand Righava

rimer = Chairman nneidaging Direcior Dhirectar
mbsership Me 211171 DM Mo 01 T23269 ‘ Ty DM Mo - 00243485

g i L s o
Wfi—'—;" Rangarajan K I.Ip;ihitll \‘JTJ_AA_ i

Chief Financial Officer  Chisl Execwstive Officer Company Secretary
Place ; Chermni Place : Chennai ACE: ASII34
Drate : Msy 14, 20019 Dhate : May 14, 2009
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Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Consolidated statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All smounts arc in Indian Rupos in kskhs, excepl share data aad stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
digiciis Mareh 31,2019 Mareh31. 2018
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax 2084434 7461.69
Adjustmests for:
Depreciation and smoctization 41946 259.43
Provissan for gratuity 6038 un
Provision for compensated abscnces 87.78 21.58
Pravasion for impairment oo financial inssuments and write-offs 755.18 93203
Loss on sale/retirement of property, plant and equipment (net) 0931 842
Profit on sie of curnent imvesiments (met) {589.94) (761.20)
Interest income om deposits with banks / others (1.352.38) (801.34)
Finance costs 7,592.73 5,698.30
Emmplovee stock oplion expenses 267.83 21494
Operating Profit Before Changes in Working Capital 29,086.31 13,068.57
Adfusimenn for (Increase) / Decrease n Operating Assels:
Loans (110.718.76) (52,186.45)
Other nos- financial assets (93.94) (177.02)
Other finsncial assets (82.16) {55.78)
Adjusimens for Increase / (1 i Oy o Liahil
Trade payables 6637 11953
Other nos financial liabilales 1,156.54 16813
Other fimncaal liabilstics (1.09) 134
Net cash (esed in) operations 109.673.04) (52,130.27)
Finance costs paid (7,71555 (5,633.86)
Drirect taxes pasd (net) (6.810.55) (2.931.26)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (A) (95,112.83) (47,626.82)
B. Cash Flow from Iavesting Activities
Purchase of fixed assets (585.13) (448.23)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1530 404
Profit on suke of current investments SB9.94 76120
(P of carrent is {met) . 44341
Interest incomse an depasits with banks / ethers 139541 TN
Mavement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.09 48 66
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) 1A16.61 158319
C. Cash Flow from Firancing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equily shares 473.07 49038
Proceeds from ities premdum (oet ofT utilisati 61,453.65 31,32884
Expenses towards iseac of shares {501.53) (440.62)
Fresh bosrowings during the year 63,640,00 22,200.00
Rey of borrowings (including p ing fee) (22.546.08) (12,810.82)
Net Cash from Financing Actlvities (C) 102,519.11 40,767.78
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents | (A) + (B} + (C) | 88229 (5.275.85)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginnlng of the year 13,1374 18.413.79
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 2196084 13,137.94
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As at As at
Partisplane Murch 312019 Mareh 31,2018
Notes to cash fow statement
1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 34507 168,10
Balances with banks
{i) In Current nccounts 20,596.29 1,36287
{ii} In other deposit accounts (original matarity Jess than 3 moaths) 101948 11,606.97
21,960.84 13,137.94
2 Change i liabilities arising from fi
Debt securities Borrowings (other
Particulars than debt securities)
Asat April 1, 2017 19,078.05 26,126.73
Cash flows {net) 28018 9,109.00
Otisers® (36.14) 41.93
As &t March 31,218 1932209 35,277.66
Cash flows (ne1) 2374286 17,351.06
Others* (92.66 (109.53)
As at March 31,2019 11.971.5) 52,519.19
* Others colunn includes the effect of amortization of processing fees etc.
See accompanying neees (o the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and o behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
for BSR& Co. LLP Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Chariered Accounianis CTN : U6S991 TN1984PLCO10844
s regh number: 101248WAW-100022
= e
D lakkmipa T, Anand Raghavan
Chusrman ad Mariigmy Ditector Dircetos

Membership No: 211171 DIN No : 01723269

v (o~

DIN No : 00243485

2.l -,

B Shalini

Chief Financial Officer  Chief Exocutive Officer  ACS: AS1334

Place ; Chenaai Place ; Chenmai
Date : May 14,2019 Date : May 14, 2019
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Five-Star Busineas Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(Al amounts arc in Indian Rupees in Inkhs, except share data and stated otherwisz)

Asat Asat
PacHciecy Nok  yiareh 31,2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cssh and cash cquivalents 4 2897795 21,963.73
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 16,134.94 6.88
Loans 6 3,83,080.44 200,586 40
Other financial assets 7 524 57 28589
42871790 23184490
Non-finuncial assels
Current tax assets {net) 8 43546 360.01
Deferred 1ax sssets (net) 36 282296 146446
Investment peoperty 9 356 356
Property, plant and equipment 1t 1,106.09 744.41
Right of use asset 37 1,438.00 -
Ottier intangible assets 12 19230 201.80
Other non-financinl assets 10 548.62 36381
6,597.49 3,13805
Total axsets 43531539 2.34,982.95
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial lobilities
Paysbles 13
‘Irade payubles
total outstanding does of micro and small enterprises - -
total ostanding dues of creditoes other thn micro snd small 662.40 292.69
enterprises
Debt seouritios i 10738642 43,350.77
Borrowings (other than debt securitics) 15 1.28482.89 52,652.18
Other financial liabilities 16 1,568.10 6.88
2,38,599.51 96,302.52
Non-financisl labilities
Current tax linbilities (net) 17 7480 16217
Pravisices 18 577.61 37626
Other non-financial labitites 9 1.605.12 1,629.19
225753 2,167.62
Equity
Equity share capital 20 255821 2,389.96
Other equity 2 191,800 84 134,122 85
19445808 13651281
Total labilitles and equity ESJIS\.W 2&98?.95
Sigaificant sccounting policies 2d3
See accompenying notes (o the financial stalements
As per our report of even date For and om behnlf of the Beard of Directars of
for BSR & Co, LLP Flve-Star Business Finance Limited
Chartered Accounsants CIN : U6S991 TNI984PLCO10844
s regl
Raglurl D Lakshmipathy R Arand
Fidpiner " Director
bership No: 211171 DIN No - 0172320 DIN Na : 00243485
} W"/ % Aollalive o
G Srikanty K Rangarajsn B Shalisl N
Chief Financinl Offices  Chief Executive Officer Campany Searetary
ACS ASI3H
Plage ; Chennai Place : Chenoai
Date : June 10, 2020 Date : June 10, 2020
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Year emded Year ended
Partiostins Hske Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from sperations
Imvierest income 74,682.42 3R5T3.81
Feee income: n 2070.84 1,327.05
Mez gnin o fair value changes b 1,018.22 350,04
Total revense from sperations. TETLAZ H0E.HD
Other income: Fi] 6325 186
Tatal lncome TH,734.73 4149266
Fapemscs
Finance costs ki 21,693.51 V452,20
Fioes expinsis 7 42.52 9477
Imipaiment on financial instrumesis B 403419 TES.8
Emplnyee hencfits expenses F ) 12,7078 TEsS 44
Dieprecaation and amostization ] 1,006.85 419,446
Oither expenses 3 341683 2533127
Total Expenses 43.804.68 19.048.32
Prafii before tax 34930008 2544
Tax expense
Cumeni lax za 1005607 EITTT
Deferred tnx (net) E2 (1.321.06) (799, 16)
B,735.01 GITRG]
Prafit far the year 26,195.04 15.665.73
Oilver comprehensive ineome
Ttems thst will mot be recinssified to profit or loss
Re-sweasusements of the defined benefit plan {14380 {51.55)
Income lax relaling o items thal will mot be reclassified s prafil
of kes 3745 15.49
Met other comprehensive income neot to be reclassified
subseqiently to profil or lass {111.25) {38,061
Oither comprehensive income | (defieit) for ihe year, net of income tax (I1135) [38.06)
Todal comprehensive income w 1562767
Earaings per equily share (face v lie Rel0 each)
Basic {in mpees) 103.24 6852
Diiluted {in napees) 100,70 61,39
Significat accounting policies 2wl
See accompanymg noes 1o the firancinl siniements
As por oar report of even date: Fiar arsd on bebsll of the Beerd af Directons of
Jor BSR & Ce. LLP Five-Star Business Finanes Limited
Chawrered Acooumtanis CTM - TE3%9 1 TNIGR4PLCDIDBA4
Firm's i T 101 24EWW-100022
h—
Raghurkm D Lakshmipathy B Andnd
Fiyiner = haviermar and R Director

Membership No: 211171 DN Nao 01??)&!

l:‘im!( Financial Officer chlcl Executive Oflicer

Plnge - Chennai
Drate : June 10, 2020

Plage : Chennal
Dratee ; June 10, 2030

TN Mo - 0243485

B.laling
B Shalini :
Comnpany Sesrelary
ACS: A51334
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" Year emied Yeur ended
K Mareh 31, 2020 March 31,2019
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Ml profit before tax 3403005 I1A44.34
A justmaents for:
Depreciation and amoization 1,006 85 41946
Provision for impairment on fisanciad instrumenits snd siite-offs 493419 TES 18
Loss on salefretimement of property, plant aed equipment (net) 078 [Ex)
Frafil an sale of current investmenis (pef) (100822 (SR04
Interest income an depasits with banks / others (2886,62) (1,352.38)
Tnieresi an loans {71,795,80) (37.621.43)
Finance costs 21,693.51 13027
Gain recogmised on derccopnition of heascs (661 -
Emplayes stock aption expenses 168.03 26783
Operating cash fow befare working capital changes (12973.86) (H.6H3.28)
Changes in Working Caplial:
Adjustmers for (Troreare) £ Decrease in Operating Azsets;
Loans (1, T6EE0.TH) 1,05, 06349
Other man- fimancial assels {1BL &) (93.54)
Oiher financial assels {238 68} (BZ.16)
Adbwsimenis for fncrease / fUecreare) in Cperating Lichitines:
Trade payables 150.71 6637
Frivisivn 5156 148.15
Other financial linbdlities 2R9 {1.09)
Oieher non fimameinl Linbilities ERR ] 115654
Net eash (used in) eperatioas (1,89.823,12) {1,16,552,590)
Finance cost paid (22.34327) (1.715.35)
Interes imcome received 25731 35.966,16
Direct laxes paid (net) (10218 89 (6810.55)
Net Cush Used in Dperating Activities (A) (1,52.327.07) (I5,112,84)
B. Cash Flow from Iavesting Aclavilies
Purehise of fixed assets [970.97) (585.13)
Procezds from sale of fixed asseis (i} 15.30
Profit on sale of curmen! investments 101822 5054
Interest meame om deposids with banks ¢ ethers 2662.85 140032
IMovement in bank balanoes other than cash and cash equivalents (15904 28) 1.9
Net Cash from Investing Activities () {13,193.40) 142152
. Cash Flow from Fimancing Activities
FPracezds from issue of equity shares 168,25 47307
Procesds fram secarities premium (et off wiilisation) 3152528 5145365
Expenscs wowards issue of shares . (501.53)
Fresh bormowings during the yoir 1.78,166.33 63, 64000
Repmyments of bomowings (including proceas fee) (36,94.21) {22, 546.08)
Pryment townrds lenses (excluding interest) _(376.06) -
Met Cash fran Financing Actiwitles () 1,72,833.50 10251501
Net Increase in Cash and Casks Equivalents | (A} + (B) +{C) | 701222 852779
Cash and Cash Equivalents al the beginning of the year 21,265.73 13,137.94
Cash and Cafh Equivalents at the end of the year 18,977.95 21,9573
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Asal Asnt
Partiestary March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Notes
1 Cash ad cuh eqaivabesis
Cash an hand 57.75 45,07
Balances with hanks
(i} In current accounts 13,050.95 20,596.29
{id) In aither depasit acoaunts (ariginal maturidy less than 3 montbs ) 1586925 1,034.37
1BITT.O5 11,%65.73
2 Chamge in lisghilities ariging from financing activities
Dbt securities  Borrowings (other than
Pariiewlars debi securities)
As at March 31, 2018 19.316.32 3528342
Cash flows (not) 24,127.10 1747168
CHhers* (92.65) (102.93)
As wt March 31, 2009 43,350.77 52,6521
Cash flows {net) 65,514,606 631977
Others* 999.01) (689.06)
As at March 31, 2020 1,07, 88042

* Oiibers codumn includes: the effiect of smontization of processing foes ste.

Significant accounting polscies 2and 3

Sz nccompanying notes o the financial statements

A per our report of even date For and on bebalf of the Beard of Directors of
Jor BS R & Co. LLP Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Chariered Acoownianis CTH : LSS TH 9R4PLCN 10844

Firm's registration pamber: 100 248W/W- 100022

i

——

Haugh D Lukshmi e
Plriner irman nn irecior
DIM Mo : (723260 <

Membership No: 211171

e ?@?'

G Srikantk K Rangarajam

Chief Finmneial Officer  Chief Execative Officer
Fings : Chennai Place : Chenaai
Diate: : Jume: B0, 2020 Date : June 10, 2020

Direclor
DIN Mo : (243485

B dlabivne =
B Shalini v
Company Secretary
ACS: AS1334
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ANNEXURE VII: ABRIDGED VERSION OF LATEST AUDITED/ LIMITED REVIEW HALF
YEARLY CONSOLIDATED AND STANDALONE FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND
AUDITORS’ QUALIFICATIONS, IF ANY

BSR &Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
KEM Towar, 1" & 27 Flace, Telephane : =31 44 450E 3100
Na 1, Haringtor Rosd. Chetpat, Enx 1 =81 44 4608 3198

Chennal - 500 021, India.

Limited review report

To Board of Directors of
Five-Star Business Finance Limited

. We have reviewsd the accompanying Statement of unaudited financial results of Five-Star
Business Finance Limited (“the Company™} for the half year ended results for the period
from 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020 (“the Statement™).

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company’s management and has been
approved by the Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS") 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act™), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with
Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) . Ouwr
responsibility is to issue a report on the Statement based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Inierim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entin® issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as lo whether the Statement is free of material misstaterment. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied 1o financial
data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and
accordingly, we do not express an audil opinion,

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with applicable Indian
accounting standards and other recognised accounting practices and policies has not
disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 32 of the i
Regulations including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contair

material misstatement.

B S A& Co. (e pernarship esn with Regisimation No. BABTI2Y) corvemed intd B 5 A & Ca. LLP Maginueed Oifies:
| Liminesd Lintdlity Paimnaeship wath, LLP Ragisorstion Mo saS-8181) with sfact from Ostobar 14, 2003 14ih Floce. Caniral Wing, Towar 4, Nesoo Cortar,
\atien Expitican Highwaly, Garsgiesn |Eastl, Mumbal . 400063
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BSR & Co. LLP

Limited review report
Five-Star Business Finance Limited

Page 2 af 2

5. As described in Note 7 to the Statement, in respect of accounts where moratorium benefit
have been granted, the staging of those accounts as at 30 September 2020 is based on the
days past due status considering the benefit of moratorium period in accordance with the
Reserve Bank of India Covid-19 Regulatory Package announced by the Reserve Bank of
India.

Further, the extent to which the COVID — 19 pandemic will impact the Company's financial
performance including the Company's estimates of impairment of financial instruments and
the impact of Honourable Supreme Court of India’s interim order dated 3 September 2020
on declaration of borrowers accounts as non-performing assets are dependent on future
developments which are highly uncertain.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of these matters.

for BS R & Co. LLF
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

[

K Raghuram
Patyner
Membership Na: 211171

UDIN: 20211171AAAACY 7462

Place : Chennai
Date : 6 Novemnber 2020
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T 0Mice: Mew No. 27, (0 Mad, Tylors Koed, Kitpauk, Chennal - 608 010

CIN USSHITN ISP LEDT88

Stpterment of wnnadilid Hnancisl sesalis for ihe hall yesr ended 20 September 2020

(AN amounis are in lakhes, sxcept shaee data and ax sialed)

Parteslirs MWall yearended | Hall peas coded Yearended
30 Seplomber P20 | 30 Septenber 200% | 51 March 3000
Unandited Urnaud |bed Andied
[Revenue fram operatisns
Imteregt ircene ELAIRR 1] JEneL 04 TAART A2
[ income 305 88 1051 92 257084
et gain o Tiair value changes 1204 34538 1A
[Tatal revenue fram sperstions _ mAT8ER A6, 54 | THATLAR
[t Incemne [LER 137 123
[Tatal Income ST BT 34,73
[Expienses
Finance costs 13,502 58 LAEIR-1) 2,093 51
FFets enpermei 5442 3143 A3 52
Impairsiont om Fenacial insromsnts 38 140221 451415
Empleyee benefits cxpenses TN 56 ERIEL LT
Crepreciation and amolizalion Hags 41573 100235
rher expenses 11410 L3008 Jdisdd
Y — TATLIE VLTILEe|  akBedbE
IPrahi belure tax IROTATS 15,8906 3433005
[Tix e peieies
Currenl tax 6ITLIE a8 45 108 o
Defeied lax (st {1871} (22 85) (LX) D)
Mol nx ex penses 6047 AJFTL R 4,738.00
Predit afier tax for B perind / year 1R413.28 11L.A3S. 8 Iy, 1951
iDiker compreferdive income
e Thed willl nob be reclmesificd to profit orleds X
[Rm-m easuremenis of the delined beneli plan {3.56) (B0 2TH {148 B
Incame tax peletmg te iiems that will not be mclassifed o profi) &0
- 545 217 3745 |
iher comprehensive ingome | (deficad) fir the period | yeas, nel 211} {67.55} {11135
ol income tax
:1-1 eomprehessive Income fer the period ! year, nel of incoms LABREIT 11, 75T.68 _“'m“
z
Earnings per equily share
a Hasic in rupoes) iRt ] ATAE 10324
B [Hlutzd {in nupess) 724 46 80 10
Hed genalised Hol annualised Annualised
Face wmlus par sham H 10.00 Inog L
Ber sscimpiniing Foles In The unacdiled financial rsulis |
S
< -
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Five-Star Business Finance Limited
Tegd. Office: New No. 27, Dld Ned, Taylors Road, Kllpavk, Chennai - 60 810
CTN: DS I TNI9EPLCO1 B4

Nutes:

1 Five-5tar Business Finance Limited (Mhe Company™ is o Sysicmatically Imperisni Non-Deposit laking Non-Banking Fusice Company
[MBEC-M-31) registered with the Reserve Bank of India ("lbe RBI*)

2 The unandited financisl results for the half year ended 30 Scptember 2020 have been reviewesd by the Audit Committes mnd subsequently
approved by the Beard af Diresters at thedr mestings held on 5 and § Movember 2020 respectively. The above resulis have been subjected Lo
limited review by the stalulory suditors ol the Company. The auditars have Jzzocd an anmadificd revicw report.

3 These unaudited financial reaulis have been prepared in arcordance with the recognition and meassrement principhs laid down m accordince
with the Indisn Accounting Standard {Tnd A5, 34 - "lateoms Financial Reporting” as prescribed unider Section 133 of the Companics Act,
2013 [he Aer’), and ather aceounting principles genesally pccepted in Tndis and in complisnce with Regalation 51 of the Securities Exchange
Board of India ("SEB1") {Listing Obligativns amd Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations 2015, The firancial resulis have been drawn upon the
basis of lnd AS, that arc applicable 1o the Company as st 30 Seplember 2020, Any application guidance ! clarifications | directions issued by
the RE] ar other repulators sre implomented as and when they are issued f applicable.

4 During the previous year ended 31 March 2020, the Company vide its board mesting dated 29 August 2008 had appraved the Scheme of
Amalgamation {“the Scheme™) of its wholly cwned subsidiary - Five-Star Housing Fmance Private Limited with fhe Company and their
respective chareholdess under sections 233 of the Act and ather applicable provisions of the Aet, The appointed date undor the aforesaid
Scheme is | April 2019, This scheme has been approved by the regulatory authorities, As vequired by the TNDX AS 103 - Business
Combinations, pooling of interest method hes been considered for common control business combination and accordmgly, the ussels and
liabilities are reflected in the books of the Campary al their respoctive camying amounts, Fuithes, in sccordance with Tnd AS 103 - Busines
Cumbinations, fnancial statements / results have been restatsd fram 1 April 2008 and consequently, the amaunts foc the hal! year ended 30
September 2019 included &8 part of these results incoeporate the resubs of the aforementioned wholly owned subsidiary entity. These financial
results of the wholly owned subsidiary catiey have not been subjected to limited review carlier. The financial details relating w the wholly
owneld subsidiary entily are given below:

| Mispocn in Lakhs)

Hall year ended
Particnlars 0 5lpfmh! 2019
Tolal income N 424 61
Total expenses 3155.53
Trofit befare iax BH0Y
Tax expeisses 18.74
Prafit after tax 5035

5 There is o separate reporiable segment in aceardance with Ind AS 108 on *Operating Segments” in respect af the Company.

& Reserves inclode Statutary Reserves as per Section 451C of Reserve Bank of Indin Act 1934, as por Section 2%C of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987, balanee in Securities Preminm, Employes Stock Option Flan Reserve, Geoernl Reserve, Retained Eamdiogs and Other
Comprehensive Incotme.

7 The awthreak of COVID-19 pandemic and congeguent bockdown hns severely mpacted various activities across the country. The impast of
COVID-19 on the coonomy continues 10 be uncerizin and would also be dependent upon on future developments including variows measures
taken by the Government, Regulator, responses of businesses, consumers ¢lc, Hence, the cxtent to which COVID-1% pandernic will impact the
compony's busingss, cash flaws and Gnancial results, is dependent oo such future developments, which are highly uneertain
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Motes:

In aceordance with the Roard approved mosatoriom policy read with tbe Reserve Buck of India (RB1) guldelines deled 27 March 2000, 17
April 2020 and 23 Muy 2020 relatiog e “COVID-19 - Regubuory Packape and goidelines issued thereto, the Company has pranted
moratarium up-to Gve months on the payosemt of instalinems falling diz berween 1 Apul 2020 and 31 August 2020 fo all eligible borrowers an
4 gue-moio hasis, Fased on an assessment by the Company, ihis relaxation bas oot been deemed 1o be antomatically teggenng sipnificant
increase in coedil rigk amd in ibe absence of ciher eredil risk indicstors, the gromting of 2 moraloriom period does not result in accoants
beewming past due and sutomatically inggering Siage 2 or Stage 3 classification eriteria, Actordingly, in respect ol acoounts whire mosatoniun
benefil have been granted, e staging of thase Gocounts &5 &t 30 Seprember 2020 is based on the days pest due siaias considering the benefit af
moraloriun periad in accordance with the Reserve Rank of India Covid-19 Regulateny Package.

Further no sdditional borrewer accounts have been declared as non-perfonming assels which were not declared 83 non-gerfoaning Ll 31
Aupust 2020, in view of the Supreme Court interim arder dated 3 September 2020 in the case of Public Intercst Litigation by Gajendra Sharma
Vs Union of ladia & ANR, The Compainy has made the provision on such borrower acceunts, as per the requirenent of Ind A5

While the methodologies and assumpticns applied in the impairment lass allewanze calculations remained unchanged from those applicd w/hile
preparing the financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company hae peparately incorporated estimates, assumptions and
Judgements gpecific 10 the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in the measurement ef impairment loss allowance for the peried crded 30
September 2020, In addition o the indicaiors availuble during the maratacium period, the company has alsa used potentzal siress on probability
of defeult and exposure ar defsult on the expecied credil losses on lomns und accordingly recognized an cepeeted eredit loss on loana of INR
6,452 Tukhs as at 30 Sepleniber 2020 meluding an additional impairment provision smaunting o TNE 534 lakhs during the current period, The
Comiguny belicves flat il huy considered all the possible impuct of the currently knewn events arising out of COVID-19 panderic in the
preparation of finarcial resulis. However, the impact assessuent of COVID-1% is 8 coniinuing prosess given ils uncerlainty n nature and
duration, this may have conesponding impact in the financial position, The Company will continue W monitor any material changes t the
figture ecomamic comdilions.

8 Disclosure as requited under RBI notification ne. REL2000-200220 DOR No BP.BC 632104043 2019-20 dated 17 April 2020 on COVID.
19 Regulatory Package - Aseel Classification and Provisioning:
B B {Rupcis n Lakhs)
Axoat M)
_FIHICIIIN September 2020
i1 Respective amounta in SMAdoverdue categarics, where the moratoriumideferment was cxtended * 44,885 26
i) Respective amount where aaset classification benefit is cxtended *# 1,849.92
i) Provision made on the cases where assed classificarion benefit is extended **# 100133
In respect of seeounts in defagll but standard where moratoriem is granied, and ssset classification beoefit is extended, i
Company has mude general provisions af not less than 10 per eent of the total outstanding of such acconuts as applicable
s at 30 September 2020
iv) Provisions adjsted during the respective scconnting: periods against shppages and the residunl provisions NA

= Outstanding ns an 30 Seprember 2020 on avcount of all cases where moraiarium bensfit is extended by the Company tp te 31 August 2020,

#+ (hugsianding oa sccount of cases where the assei elassification benefit is extended as on 30 Sepleather 2020 for cases which were eatitled 1o
# nyoratorivm until 31 Aupust 2020,

#2% The Company has made provision for impaiement loss allowance (as pex Expected credit loss madel) for the period caded Seplember 30,
2020,

9 I benng of the requirement a5 per RB] netifications no, RRIZ019-20/1 70 BOR (NBFC).CC, PD No. 10822, 10.106/2019-20 dated 13 Mareh
2020 an implenzentation of Tndian accoonting standards, Non Banking Finuneial Companies (NBEFCs) are required 1o create an impartment
regerve for any shortfall in impairment allowsnocs wnder nd AS 109 and Income recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
{TRACFMarms {including provision on siandard assets). The impairment allowances under Ind AS 10 made by the company cxceeds i total

on resuired under IRAC (including Standard assct provisdoning), 43 at 30 September 2040 and accardingly, no amount is required 1o be

tramsfoered (o impainment regsrve,

10 Previous period's figuses have been regrouped / roclassificd wherever necessary, to confoms with the current pericd presentation.

For and an behsll of the Beard of Divecters

Place: Chemnai

. Tl aklunipathy
Daec: & November 2020
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Moles:
Anmexure 1

a)  Credit Rating:
The CARE Ratings Limiied (*CARE™) CRISIL nod ICRA Limited (“ICRA™) have assigned following mting to the conipany:

Facility . CRISIL CARE | ICRA
{1} Mon-Converdible Diebentures CRISIL BREA CARE A ICHA A
(i) Cosmmercial Popers - CARE Al .
(i1i) Long term bank thcilities i CARE A ICTA &
(iv) Shan term hank facilities CARE AL

TCRA AA+ (500
FAASO) | AASO)

(iv) Seeuritisation (Pass fhrough certificates)

b Assct cover available for non-convertible debi securities:
Mat applicable,

c)  Debi-gquity rafio®:
Tlse debi-equity ratio of the company as per the reviewed fiumeial results for the year ended 30 September 2020 s 144

d)  Previous due dute for the payment of intevestdividend tor non-convertibleredeemable preference sharesrepaymentof principal of non-
converiible preference sharesinon-convertible debi securities and whether the same has been paid ar not:

Al previous dues with respect to debertares were paid on doe date (Refer Appendix A).
The company hag aet issoed any noo-convertible redeenuable preference shares.

¢ Neal due date for the payinent of interest / dividend of non-convertilie proference shares'principal along with the amount of interest/
dividend of mon-converlible preference shares payable and the redemption amsunt.
The eompany hns not issaed any canvertible redesmable prefocnce shares.

1} Debt service coverage ratio:
Mot applicable,

gl Interest service coverage ratie:
Nad applicahle.

n)  Outstznding redeemable preference shares (quantity und value):
Tut applicable.

0 Capital redemption reserve/Debeniure redemption reserve:
Debenmure redemption reserve is mod required in espect of privately placed debentures in teims of tale 18(7) (b {ii} of the Companics (Shars
Capital and Debentare) Rules, 2004,

i Met warth**:
Ha.213,425.09 Lakhs

Kk} Net profii afier fax:
Re 18,913 28 Lakhs

1}  Earnings Per share:

(i) Basie T80
(1} Diluted 73,24
& Dabt-equity ratio is (Debt SseuritiestOther than Debr Secursties) £ Net Worlh, - -
we Mgt Worth is equal i Paud up Equity Share Capiial + Reserve "
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Appendix &
Details of previous due dates for payment of InterestPrincipal for Nen-Convertible Debentores
. Nase - Type (J'n_teres!.r lssurlsr'Zf (s, | Interest! Principal | Paid) th-mn}l
| Principal) merk | due date _
1 _ INE128SU7010 | tnterest & Principal . 06062000 | Pad |
2 | INE128507135 & INE128507143 | Interest 25 0702020 | Paid |
|3 | INE128507234 & INE128507242 Interest 15 C1Rw0xe0 | Paid
4 INE128807275 Principal 45 LH-09- 2020 Paid
5 INE128507259 . Principal 0 28-09-2020 Pald
6 _ INE128S07267 | Inerest M 31-08-2020 Paid
7 INE 128507317  lnterest 5 2B-09-2020 Paid
]  INEL28S07325 I Interest s W09-2020 | Pad
9 | IMEIISSO7I33 Intesest | €5 IB09-2020 Faid
10 INE12BS07341 Interest & 26-09-2020 Paid
1 IMFI2RS07358 | Interest 55 29092020 _ Paid
| 12 | IME128S07374 Interest 180 28-09-2020 d Paid
13 INE1265073%0 - Interest 180 29-09-2020 Paid
14 INE126507408 | mberest 18| 29-09-2020  Paid
15 IME12E507366 Interest H na-T1-Re0 | Paid
16 INEI26507415 Interest 125 26-08-2020 Paid
17 INE126507424 Interest 5B 0092020 Paid
1 INEIZBS07440 Interist 75 14092020 | Paid
19 TME12ES07457 Interest 115 2102000 | Faid
Details of next due dates for payment of interest/Prineipal for Non-Convertible Debentures
o Tssue size (Rs. Interest | Principal
S.N_u. Naiire Tupe (Interest | Principal) P dnr ke
1 | INElzssim Interest & Principal 30 06-12-2020
2 INE1ZBS07135 & INEI128507143 Interest & Principal | 25 07-11-2020
3 INE12850723 & INE126507242 Interest 15 15-11-2020
| INE1Z8S07275 Interesl & Principal 45 28-12-2020
5 INEL28507259 Interest & Principal | 30 26-12-2020
., INE128507 267  Interest | 24 26022021
L% INE128507317 "~ Interest 5 26-12-2020
B JE128507 Interest ) €5 28.12-2020
T8 INE128507333 il Inberest 65 28-12-2020
0  INE12850731 Interest 5 ~ m1a0m
1 INE1ZRS7355 © Interest 55 29122020
12 INE12RS07374  Interest | 1511 29-12-2020
13 o INE12B507380 Interest 180 29-12-2020
1 INE128507408 L Interest 185 29122020
15 | INE128307366 1 Interest  m 30-11-2020
"N  INE128507416 | Inberest 125 28022021
17  INE12SHTAM Intecest 15 31-12-2020
18 INE128507432 Interest ~ 15 28-05-2021
19 CINE128507940 Interest 25 12-12-2020
20 INE128507457 ~ Interest 115 21012021
21 INE128507465 | interest L
22 INE128S07473 | Interest o | 3147-H21
23 | INE128S0748l  Inlerest 50 20-08-2021
E INE128507499 Interest 25 22022023
25 INE128507507 Interest - m 30092021
= 3
T
-
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